
 

City Hall Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

AGENDA 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

October 12, 2022 

6:00 PM Regular Meeting 
 

 

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361,  

along with the Governor’s State of Emergency Declaration issued on March 4, 2020, 

this meeting may be conducted via teleconference. 

 

This meeting’s options will be either in-person or via Zoom: 

In-Person Meeting 

Location: 

 

Coachella City Hall 

Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street 

Coachella, CA 

If you would like to attend the meeting via Zoom, here is the link: 

 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88457271898?pwd=REdzU1NoQmpVSFhWTDVaZ0VCekYxdz09  

Or One tap mobile : 16699006833,,88457271898#,,,,*606140# 

Or Telephone: 

     US: +1 669 900 6833   

Webinar ID: 884 5727 1898 

Passcode: 606140 

Spanish: El idioma español está disponible en Zoom seleccionado la opción en la 

parte de abajo de la pantalla 

 Public comments may be received either in person, via email, telephonically, or via Zoom with a limit 

of 250 words, or three minutes: 

o In Real Time:  

If participating in real time via Zoom or phone, during the Public Comment Period, use the “raise 

hand” function on your computer, or when using a phone, participants can raise their hand by pressing 

*9 on the keypad.  

o In Writing:  

Written comments may be submitted to the City Council electronically via email 

to cityclerk@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. All written 

comments received will be forwarded to the City Council and entered into the record.  

o If you wish, you may leave a message at (760) 262-6240 before 5:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting. 

Page 1

http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88457271898?pwd=REdzU1NoQmpVSFhWTDVaZ0VCekYxdz09
mailto:cityclerk@coachella.org


Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA October 12, 2022 

Page 2 

 

 The live stream of the meeting may be viewed online by accessing the city's website at 

www.coachella.org, and clicking on the "Watch Council Meetings" tab located on the home page, and 

then clicking on the "live" button. 

CALL TO ORDER: 

ROLL CALL: 

VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-88 a Resolution to Continue Fully or Partially Virtual Public Meetings (AB 361) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“At this time the Council/ Board/Corporation/Authority may announce any items being pulled from the Agenda 

or continued to another date or request the moving of an item on the agenda” 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

2. Recognizing Santa Fe Restaurant as the 2022 Small Business of the Year Award Recipient 

3. Presentation on the Coachella IFRP – Immigrant Families Recovery Program 

4. Presentation from Consejo de Federaciones Mexicanas (COFEM) on the Proposed Chuckwalla National 

Monument 

5. 2022 Holiday Parade Update 

6. SB 1383 Update  

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

(It is recommended that Consent Items be acted upon simultaneously unless separate discussion and/or action is 

requested by a Council Member or member of the audience.) 

7. Regular Meeting Minutes of September 14, 2022, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District, 

Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental 

Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella 

Redevelopment Agency. 

8. Voucher Listing — EFT's/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2021-22 and 2022-23 Expenditures as of October 12, 

2022, $3,765,295.53. 

9. Resolution No. 2022-83 Creating and or Updating Job Descriptions in the Customer Service and 

Management Analyst Job Position Series.   

Page 2

http://www.coachella.org/


Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA October 12, 2022 

Page 3 

 

10. Resolution 2022-90, a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Agreements on Behalf of the 

City Associated with Local Road Safety Plan – Federal Aid # LRSPL-5294(019) 

11. Award Maintenance Agreement to BRC Construction for As Needed Miscellaneous Repair Work for the 

Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Project No. 081122. 

12. Award Maintenance Agreement to BRC Construction for As Needed Block Wall and Wrought Iron Fence 

Repairs for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Project No. 081122B. 

13. Award Maintenance Agreements to both Rudy G Reyes (dba Rudy’s Electric) and Bear Electrical Solutions 

for the As Needed Electrical Repairs Project No. 081622. 

14. Approval for operation of a Beer Garden by Culturas Music & Arts on November 12, 2022, at Dateland 

Park from 11:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.   

15. Award professional services agreement to The Christmas Kings for the Holiday Lighting and Decorations 

Project No. 082522H.   

16. Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement with KOA Corporation, Inc. for an amount of 

$16,344.00 to provide PS&E and Right of Way Services for the improvements of Avenue 50 from Calhoun 

Street to Cesar Chavez Street – City Project ST-93. 

17. Authorize the City of Coachella’s Tacos, Tequila and Chavelas Festival Beer Garden operation on October 

22, 2022, at Veterans' Memorial Park from 4:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

18. Approve a Community Based Grant to the Bianca Rae Foundation in the Amount of $1,000  

19. Approve a Community Based Grant to the Assistance League Coachella Valley in the Amount of $1,000  

20. Approve a Community Based Grant to Angel View in the Amount of $1,000.00 to Support its Outreach 

Program for Children 

21. Approve a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Youth Sports Association Soccer League in the 

Amount of $1,000  

22. Authorize a Community Based Grant to Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $1,000 to Support its 

Art Center  

23. Award Construction Agreement to WGJ Enterprises Inc. (dba PCI) for the FY 2023-26 On-Call Striping 

Contract Project No. 083122.     

24. Sponsorship of Raices Cultura for 2022 Dia de los Muertos Celebration in the Amount of $15,000 

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

25. Resolution No. 2022-91 in Support of Rebuilding, Renovations, and Upgrades to Coachella Valley High 

School 

26. Resolution No. 2022-92 in Support of Action by the Desert Community College District to Establish a 

Branch in the Eastern Coachella Valley 

Page 3



Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA October 12, 2022 

Page 4 

 

27. Provide staff direction for 2022 Hometown Heroes Honorees. 

28. Castro Mobile Home Park Water Consolidation Project, City Project No. W-37: 

a) Award Construction Contract with Jacobsson Engineering Construction, Inc. in the amount of 

$762,774.00 plus 15% contingency; and 

b) Authorize the City Manager to execute contract with Atlas Technical Consultants LLC for reoccurring, 

as needed, construction materials and quality assurance testing for the Castro Mobile Home Park Water 

Consolidation Project, City Project No. W-37. 

29. 2022 Pedestrian and Road Safety Improvements, City Project No. ST-134: 

a) Award Construction Contract with Jacobsson Engineering Construction, Inc. in the amount of 

$1,498,267.98 plus 20% contingency, and 

b) Approve Amendment #1 to the professional engineering services contract with KOA in an amount not 

to exceed $75,000, and  

c) Award a professional service contract for materials testing to Atlas Technical Consultants in an amount 

not to exceed $25,000, for the 2022 Pedestrian and Road Safety Improvements, City Project No. ST-

134. 

30. Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella Art Mural at Acrisure Arena in the Amount 

of $10,000 

31. Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella 75th Anniversary Mural by Michelle 

Guerrero in the Amount of $16,000 

32. Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella 75th Anniversary Mural on the U.S. Postal 

Service Building by Michelle Guerrero in the Amount of $15,000 

33. Approve an Art in Public Places Program Proposal to Restore the Shady Lane Murals by Culturas Music 

and Arts in the Amount of $13,000 

34. Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Twenty-Nine Palms Band of Mission Indians in Regards to 

the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

None. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

The public may address the City Council/Board/Corporation/ Authority on any item of interest to the public that 

is not on the agenda but is in the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) 

minutes. 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 

Page 4



Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA October 12, 2022 

Page 5 

 

City Manager’s Comments. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
 

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection on the  

City’s website www.coachella.org. 

 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Page 5

http://www.coachella.org/


 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Dr. Gabriel Martin, City Manager 

Best Best & Krieger, LLP, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2022-88 a Resolution to Continue Fully or Partially Virtual 

Public Meetings (AB 361) 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2022-88 to continue fully or partially 

virtual public meetings.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Brown Act generally allows for teleconference or virtual meetings, provided that the physical 

locations of the council members joining by teleconference are posted on the agenda, that those 

locations are open to the public and that a quorum of the council members is located within the 

City. Newly enacted AB 361 provides an exception to these procedures in order to allow for fully 

virtual meetings during proclaimed emergencies, including the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

In March of 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which suspended portions 

of the Brown Act relating to teleconferencing, enabling fully virtual meetings without having to 

post the location of the council members attending virtually. Many cities and other public agencies 

have been holding public meeting using virtual platforms since this time. In June of 2021, 

Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, which provided that the exceptions contained 

in EO N-29-20 would sunset on September 30, 2021. 

 

On September 10, 2021, the Legislature adopted AB 361, which allows public agencies to hold 

fully virtual meetings under certain circumstances. Governor Newsom signed the bill into law on 

September 16, 2021. Because it contained an urgency provision, it took immediate effect. The 

Governor then suspended AB 361 until October 2, allowing a transition period from the prior 

Executive Order.  

 

Under AB 361, cities can hold meetings without a public meeting space and without providing 

notice of the council members’ teleconference locations if there is a Governor-proclaimed state of 

emergency and either state or local officials are imposing or recommending measures to promote 

social distancing or the City Council determines that meeting in person will be unsafe for attendees. 

If the virtual meeting is due to social distancing recommendations, the City Council does not have 

Page 6

Item 1.



to make any findings at its first meeting under AB 361. However, to continue meeting virtually, 

the City Council must find that state or local officials still at least recommend measure to promote 

social distancing. The findings must be made within 30 days of the first meeting and every thirty 

days thereafter. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

On March 4th, 2020, the Governor proclaimed a state of emergency due to the COVID-19 

pandemic. The state of emergency remains in effect as of the publication of this report. 

 

Virtual meetings are currently allowed under AB 361 because state and local officials are 

continuing to recommend measures to promote social distancing. In the case of the pandemic, the 

requisite standards for holding virtual meetings are low. The City Council would only have to find 

that any state or local official is recommending measures to promote social distancing. Under the 

plain language of the statute, there does not have to be an order requiring social distancing, and 

the recommendation only needs to come from a state or local official. Nothing in the bill requires 

that the recommendation be a formal recommendation of a local health officer or in any sort of 

formal guideline.  

 

Under AB 361, the “local agency” – which the Brown Act defines as the City, not the City Council 

- may utilize virtual meetings if the “legislative body” makes the required findings. As defined in 

the Brown Act, a “legislative body” includes both the City Council and all committees and 

commissions. Because the City Council is the most appropriate board to make findings and policy 

decisions on behalf of the City, the proposed resolution contains a two-pronged approached: It 

provides that all commissions and committees shall be authorized to utilize virtual meeting 

procedures for 30 days, and authorizes each individual commission or committee to make findings 

in support of virtual meetings if the City Council has not renewed or terminated the resolution. 

Thus, the proposed resolution provides the City Council with the flexibility to allow its 

commissions and committees to host virtual meetings, while still maintain the City Council’s 

jurisdiction to require in-person meetings as warranted. 

 

AB 361 allows the use of fully virtual meetings under the foregoing conditions, but it does not 

prohibit hybrid meetings. By adopting the proposed resolution, and continuing to renew it as 

conditions warrant, the City Council and any subordinate boards are not precluded from holding 

meetings that have some traditional components and some virtual or telephonic components. The 

City Council (and other City boards) may hold meetings where some members join in the Council 

Chambers and some members join virtually. The City Council may also continue to allow both 

live and virtual public comments, together with reduced capacity in the Chambers as conditions 

warrant.  For any hybrid meetings, AB 361 requires that members of the public be able to make 

live public comments directly to the Council or other board using telephonic or electronic means 

and that the agenda identify the means for making public comments. 

 

As noted above, by adopting the proposed Resolution, the City Council is not prohibited from 

returning to fully in-person meetings. The Resolution is intended to provide the option to utilize 

the AB 361 procedures in lieu of the Brown Act’s standard teleconferencing requirements. At 

future City Council meetings, a consent calendar item will be placed on each agenda to reconsider 

Page 7

Item 1.



and potentially renew the Resolution. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None.   

 

ATTACHMENT: 

 

Resolution No. 2022-88 

 

 

Page 8

Item 1.



81211.00100\34422055.2 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022-88 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, MAKING FINDINGS AND 

DETERMINATIONS UNDER AB 361 FOR CONTINUED VIRTUAL 

MEETINGS 

 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) generally requires 

local agencies meeting via teleconference, including through other virtual or electronic means, to 

provide public access at each location in which members of the legislative body are 

teleconferencing; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature recently enacted Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361), which 

amended Government Code section 54953 to allow local agencies to meet fully virtually during a 

proclaimed state of emergency if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures 

to promote social distancing; and   

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Governor issued a proclamation declaring a 

state of emergency on March 4, 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, pursuant to section 8625 

of the California Emergency Services Act; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of 

emergency and finds that state or local officials continue to recommend measures to promote social 

distancing; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires that the City of Coachella, including all 

commissions, committees, and other Brown Act bodies shall continue to hold virtual meetings 

pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code section 54953(e).    

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AND FIND AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 

this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. The City Council and all other commissions, committees or other Brown 

Act bodies of the City shall be authorized to continue to meet virtually in accordance with 

Government Code section 54953(e) and without compliance with section 54953(b)(3). 

Section 3. This Resolution does not prevent or prohibit the City Council or any 

commission, committee or other Brown Act body of the City from holding hybrid meetings 

(containing both virtual and in-person components) or from meeting in-person, provided such 

meetings comply with AB 361 and with all state and local health orders. Commissions, committees 

and other Brown Act bodies shall comply with all rules established by the City Council and/or 

City Manager for attendance at meetings.  

Section 4. The City Council shall take action to renew this Resolution every thirty days 

for as long as any state or local officials continue to recommend any measures to promote social 

Page 9

Item 1.



81211.00100\34922055.2 

 

Resolution No. 2022-88 

Page 2 

 

distancing, but the City Council may terminate the Resolution at any time. In the event that more 

than 30 days pass between regular City Council meetings, the City Council shall take action to 

renew this Resolution prior to taking any action or engaging in any deliberation or discussion in a 

virtual meeting; renewal of this Resolution may occur either at the beginning of the next regular 

meeting or at a special meeting called for such purposes. In the event this Resolution has lapsed, 

and the City Council has not terminated it, any commission, committee or other Brown Act board 

of the City shall be authorized to, and shall, make any required findings in order to meet virtually 

under AB 361. 

Section 5. Severability.  If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any 

such provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 

provisions or applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid provision 

or application, and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are severable. The City Council 

declares that the City Council would have adopted this Resolution irrespective of the invalidity of 

any particular portion of this Resolution. 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 

adoption. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 12th day of October 2022. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney  

Page 10

Item 1.



81211.00100\34922055.2 

 

Resolution No. 2022-88 

Page 3 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-88 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 12th day of 

October 2022, by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:  

   

NOES:   

   

ABSENT:  

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  

Deputy City Clerk 

 

Page 11

Item 1.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, Santa Fe Restaurant and owner Pedro Padilla’s success story embodies the American 

dream; and 

WHEREAS, born in San Juan De Los Lagos, Jalisco, Pedro Padilla immigrated to the United States at 

the age of 19 in search of employment opportunities. Through hard work and determination, Pedro gained 

culinary experience in various restaurants before saving enough to open his own business; and 

WHEREAS, in 2008, Pedro Padilla opened Santa Fe Restaurant in the City of Coachella, adding the Cathedral 

City location the following year; and 

WHEREAS, Santa Fe Restaurant stepped up to support seniors, struggling families, and our essential 

farmworkers during the pandemic. The food assistance program they launched saved many residents, senior 

citizens and farmworkers from going hungry. They were one of the first restaurants in the state who mobilized 

to provide this type of food delivery service, and they did so without hesitation or expectations of repayment; 

and 

WHEREAS, Pedro Padilla and his wife, Mireya, remain dedicated to various charitable causes in the 

Coachella Valley community and uplifting the dreams of other immigrants. Pedro’s generosity as a local 

philanthropist grew alongside his success as a business owner and helped students obtain computers to keep up 

with their virtual learning studies. His other charitable ventures include supporting higher education scholarships 

and citizenship assistance; and 

WHEREAS, on Wednesday, August 17, 2022, restaurant owner Pedro Padilla traveled to Sacramento 

to receive the 2022 Small Business of the Year award from Assemblymember Eduardo Garcia at an event hosted 

by the California Small Business Association. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor of the City of Coachella, by the power vested in 

me, do hereby recognize 

Santa Fe Restaurant 
 

and urge all citizens of the City of Coachella to join me in honoring them for their dedication to this community. 

  

IN WITNESS HEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 

caused the official seal of the City of Coachella, California 

to be affixed this 12th day of October 2022. 

 

______________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez, Mayor  

City of Coachella, California 

 

Page 12

Item 2.



2022
Coachella Holiday Parade

(Digimon)

Page 13

Item 5.



Holiday Parade 

• Traditionally has over 100 total 
entries.
– 60-70 are school entries 

• City met with CVUSD ASES 
advisors (24) to discuss 
Holiday Parade theme and 
address logistics. 

• CVUSD ASES agreed to keep 
entries in moving pace.

• CVUSD and City collaboration 
to pre-upload all youth 
performance music with sound 
engineer in advance of parade  
to reduce performance times. 

• Add parade contractor to 
address gaps along the route. 
(funded by sponsor)

Page 14

Item 5.



Event Title Variations
• Anime Coachella Holiday Parade 

• Coachella Anime-ated Holiday Parade

• Anime-ated Coachella Holiday Parade

• Grand Marshalls
– Artists of approved Coachella Murals during 2022

Page 15

Item 5.



Pokemon Yu-Gi-Oh!

Page 16

Item 5.



Full Metal Alchemist                 Naruto 

Page 17

Item 5.



Sailor Moon                      Dragon Ball Z

Page 18

Item 5.



SB 1383 Update

Page 19

Item 6.



Residential Services - Organics

Page 20

Item 6.



Residential Services – What goes in the Bin?

Page 21

Item 6.



Commercial Recycling/Organics Program

Page 22

Item 6.



?Questions?

Page 23

Item 6.



 

City Hall Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION AND 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

September 14, 2022 

5:00 PM Closed Session 

6:00 PM Regular Meeting 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER: - 5:00 P.M. 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Coachella was called to order at 5:05 p.m. by 

Councilmember Beaman Jacinto.  

ROLL CALL: 

Present:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember Galarza, 

Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez (arrived at 5:20 p.m.), and Mayor Hernandez (arrived at 5:30 

p.m.). 

    

   City Treasurer Aviles, and City Clerk Zepeda  

 

Absent:   None. 

 

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361, along with the Governor’s State of Emergency Declaration issued on March 

4, 2020, this meeting was conducted both in-person and via teleconference/electronically.   

VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-77 a Resolution to Continue Fully or Partially Virtual Public Meetings (AB 361) 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by: Councilmember Delgado 

Seconded by:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:  3-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

  

Page 24

Item 7.

http://www.coachella.org/


Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 14, 2022 

Page 2 

 

AYES: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember 

Galarza. 

NOES: None.  

ABSTAIN:  None. 

ABSENT:  Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

Final vote on approval of the agenda took place after Council reconvened.  

 

There were no modifications to the agenda. 

 

Motion:  To approve the agenda as presented 

 

Made by:   Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Galarza 

Approved:   5-0, by a unanimous roll call vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember Galarza, 

Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez.  

NOES:  None.  

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   None. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS): 

None.  

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: 

Council adjourned into Closed Session at 5:07 p.m. to discuss the following item: 

2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

Property:   763-412-040 

City Negotiator:  City Manager and City Attorney 

Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 

 

(Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez arrived at 5:20 p.m. and Mayor Hernandez arrived at 5:30 p.m.) 

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING: - 6:00 P.M. 

The City Council reconvened into open session at 6:00 p.m.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

City Manager Martin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Page 25

Item 7.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 14, 2022 

Page 3 

 

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

City Attorney Campos stated that Council met in Closed Session, and direction was given, but no reportable 

action was taken.  

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

3. Overview of AB617 Air Quality Improvement Program for Eastern Coachella Valley (ECV) 

4. Fiscal Year 2023/24 CDBG Program Overview 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

5. Regular Meeting Minutes of July 27, 2022, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District, 

Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental 

Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella 

Redevelopment Agency. 

6. Voucher Listing — EFT's/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 Expenditures as of 

September 14, 2022, $8,843,549.95. 

7. Ordinance No. 1197 on Behalf of CFD No. 2005-01 Authorizing the Levy  of a Special Tax within 

Annexation Area No. 34, Villa Verde Apartments, Annexed to Said District (Second Reading) 

8. Ordinance No. 1198 (Change of Zone No. 22-02) to change the zoning designation of the 7.8-acre vacant 

site (APN 763-400-016 and 763-400-017) from “Heavy Industrial” to “Urban Employment Center” located 

near the southwest corner of Avenue 52 and Industrial Way. City-Initiated. (Second Reading) 

9. Resolution No. 2022-35, Development Impact Fee Deferral Agreement for Coachella Lakes RV Resort 

10. Approve Resolution No. 2022-82 setting a Penalty and Penalty Interest Rate for Delinquent or Deficient 

Transactions that do not currently have a specified Penalty and/or Penalty Interest Rate   

11. Resolution No. 2022-84 entering into a Professional Service Agreement for a Utility Manpower Study with 

Raftelis. 

12. Investment Report – July 2022 

13. Investment Report – June 2022 

14. Contract Amendment No. 1 with Atlas Technical Consultants LLC for reoccurring, as needed, construction 

materials and quality assurance testing for the Pueblo Viejo Sustainable Transportation Project, City Project 

ST-130 

15. Authorization to file a Notice of Completion for City Project ST-123, Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening 

and Connectivity Project. 

Page 26

Item 7.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 14, 2022 

Page 4 

 

16. Authorization to file a Notice of Completion for Street Pavement Rehabilitation Phase 17, City Project ST-

105 (Las Plumas & Valencia Neighborhood Slurry and Striping Improvements) 

17. Sponsorship of Run With Los Muertos Event:  

1. Sponsorship request from Eventscape International, Inc. for $35,000.00 for the 2022 Run With Los 

Muertos Event; and 

2. Approval for operation of a Beer Garden by Palm Springs Wine Fest on November 5, 2022 in Downton 

Sixth Street from 3:00 p.m. to Midnight. 

18. Award Maintenance Services Agreement to US National Corp for Painting Maintenance Services for City 

Facilities Project No. 052522.   

19. Standard Irrigation Installation Agreement for DR Horton Tract 32074 for Irrigation Lateral Relocation. 

20. Authorize the Executive Director (City Manager) to sign the First Supplement to the Memorandum of 

Understanding regarding collaboration on the Coachella Valley Salt Nutrient Management Plan with a cost 

share amount of $199,062.79  

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation, Consent Calendar Items 5 through 20.  

 

Made by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Seconded by:   Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez 

Approved:    5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember 

Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez. 

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:    None. 

ABSENT:    None. 

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

21. Resolution No. 2022-85 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella, California, declaring 

the second Monday in October as Indigenous Peoples’ Day Holiday; encouraging other institutions to 

recognize the day; and reaffirming the City Council’s commitment to promote the well-being and growth 

of The Coachella Valley’s Indigenous Community. 

 Staff recommends adding the following section in the resolution: 

WHEREAS, the City of Coachella lies within and in proximity to the sovereign Indigenous territories of 

the Augustine Band of Mission Indians, Cabazon Band of Mission Indians, Auga Caliente band of Cahuilla 

Indians, Torres-Martinez Band of Cahuilla Indians, Twenty-Nine Palms Band of Mission Indians and 

honors their Indigenous heritage, presence and future destiny within the Coachella Valley. 

 

Written Communication: Amanda Vance – August Band of Cahuilla Indians, 9-13-2022 at 10:54 a.m. 

  Carlos Gonzales – Teamsters Local 1932, 9-14-2022, at 11:25 a.m. 

  

(Continued) 

Page 27

Item 7.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 14, 2022 

Page 5 

 

(Item 21, Resolution No. 2022-85, continued from previous page.) 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by: Councilmember Delgado 

Seconded by:  Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez 

Approved:  5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember 

Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez. 

NOES: None.  

ABSTAIN:  None. 

ABSENT:  None. 

22. Resolution No. 2022-86 Authorizing the Purchase and Implementation of a new Enterprise Resource 

Planning System. 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Seconded by:  Councilmember Delgado 

Approved:  5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember 

Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez. 

NOES: None.  

ABSTAIN:  None. 

ABSENT:  None. 

23. Resolution No. 2022-87, to transfer Fire Engine 279 to Riverside County under the current Fire Engine Use 

Agreement. 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by: Mayor Hernandez 

Seconded by:  Councilmember Delgado 

Approved:  5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember 

Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez. 

NOES: None.  

ABSTAIN:  None. 

ABSENT:  None. 

 

Page 28

Item 7.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 14, 2022 

Page 6 

 

24. Resolution No. WA-2022-05, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Coachella Water Authority, 

adopting Level 2 Demand Reduction Actions as outlined in the Authority’s Water Shortage Contingency 

Plan, and as Required by the State Water Resources Control Board’s Drought Emergency Rulemaking 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by: Board Member Galarza 

Seconded by:  President Hernandez 

Approved:  5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Board Member Beaman Jacinto, Board Member Delgado, Board Member 

Galarza, Vice President Gonzalez, and President Hernandez. 

NOES: None.  

ABSTAIN:  None. 

ABSENT:  None. 

25. Construction Contract with Petrochem Materials Innovation, LLC (PMI) in the amount of $376,269.28 plus 

20% contingency for the Street Pavement Rehabilitation Phase 17 Vista Escondida Neighborhood Slurry 

Seal and Striping Improvements, City Project ST-105. 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by: Councilmember Galarza 

Seconded by:  Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez 

Approved:  5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember 

Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez. 

NOES: None.  

ABSTAIN:  None. 

ABSENT:  None. 

26. Construction Contract with Three Peaks Corp in the amount of $624,310.21 and an amount of $62,431 for 

contingency for the construction of the Bagdouma Court Improvements– City Project P-21, CDBG Project 

No. 4.CO.24-20. 

 

Motion: To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Seconded by:  Councilmember Delgado 

Approved:  5-0, by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Beaman Jacinto, Councilmember Delgado, Councilmember 

Galarza, Mayor Pro Tem Gonzalez, and Mayor Hernandez. 

NOES: None.  

ABSTAIN:  None. 

ABSENT:  None. 

Page 29

Item 7.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA September 14, 2022 

Page 7 

 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

None. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

None. 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 

City Manager’s Comments. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to come before the City Council and the Agencies, Mayor Hernandez adjourned 

the meeting at 8:39 p.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

Page 30

Item 7.



Page 31

Item 8.



Page 32

Item 8.



Page 33

Item 8.



Page 34

Item 8.



Page 35

Item 8.



Page 36

Item 8.



Page 37

Item 8.



Page 38

Item 8.



Page 39

Item 8.



Page 40

Item 8.



Page 41

Item 8.



Page 42

Item 8.



Page 43

Item 8.



Page 44

Item 8.



Page 45

Item 8.



Page 46

Item 8.



Page 47

Item 8.



Page 48

Item 8.



Page 49

Item 8.



Page 50

Item 8.



Page 51

Item 8.



Page 52

Item 8.



Page 53

Item 8.



Page 54

Item 8.



Page 55

Item 8.



Page 56

Item 8.



Page 57

Item 8.



Page 58

Item 8.



Page 59

Item 8.



Page 60

Item 8.



Page 61

Item 8.



Page 62

Item 8.



Page 63

Item 8.



Page 64

Item 8.



Page 65

Item 8.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Nathan Statham, Finance Director  

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2022-83 creating and or updating job descriptions in the customer 

service and management analyst job position series.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve Resolution No. 2022-83 creating and or updating job descriptions in the customer service 

and management analyst job position series.   

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Customer Service Representative Series 

 

The City currently has utility billing clerks and department assistants performing customer service 

activities at the Corporate Yard and Civic Center. There are currently four City staff performing 

these customer service roles. The customer service activities include taking payments of all types, 

answering phones, utility customer account administration (opening, closing, establishing and 

adjusting customer accounts), utility billing and street sweeping citation processing among other 

duties. These positions act as the primary point of contact between the City and residents 

conducting business with the City. After reviewing the tasks performed by these positions, it was 

determined that the Department Assistant I/II and Utility Clerk job descriptions did not separately 

reflect the actual duties being performed by these positions.  

 

City Council approved the Customer Service Supervisor Position in May of 2022 when the 

previously vacated technician position for utility billing was vacated. City staff evaluated the job 

classification series as well. To properly transition from the entry level position (CSR I) to the 

highest level in the customer service series (Customer Service Supervisor) an intermediary or 

training position was needed. Without the transitional position, a CSR II would not be able to 

develop the required supervision experience to move up to the Customer Service Supervisor 

position. The Customer Service Technician positions is not filled or funded, the recommendation 

is to create the position to complete the series. Any actual filling or funding of the position would 

need separate Council approval. 

 

 

 

Page 66

Item 9.



Management Analyst Series 

 

Analyst positions across the government sector are designed to fill needs in various departments 

and divisions where a highly trained individual is needed to fill a role that does not have a 

traditional expertise set. For example, in the Engineering Department, engineers have a clearly 

defined education and licensure path that provides the requisite expertise to fill different levels of 

engineering positions e.g. Associate Engineer, Engineer, Senior Engineer. At the same time, the 

Engineering Department undertakes project and grant administration activities that require a high 

level of technical skill, but do not require engineering degrees or licenses. These activities would 

require a higher level of education and experience than would be required by general 

administrative positions. The Management Analyst position is designed to fill this need across the 

organization. 

 

The City has needs for Management Analysts across multiple departments and currently has an 

approve Senior Management Analyst position that was recently vacated due to retirement.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Customer Service Representative Series (Miscellaneous and Sanitary Bargaining Unit) 

 

Proposed job descriptions: 

 Customer Service Representative I - Grade 2, $48,158.14 to $58,491.58  

 Customer Service Representative II - Grade 3, $50,526.22 to $61,397.86 

 Customer Service Technician - Grade 17, $63,356.90 to $77,005.66 

 

To properly align duties with job descriptions, a new job description of Customer Service 

Representative I/II (CSR) is being proposed. Salaries are equivalent between the proposed CSR 

I/II, Department Assistant I/II and Utility Clerk positions. The proposed action would reclassify 

the Utility Clerk and Department Assistant I/II staff currently working in customer service as 

Customer Service Representatives in their current I/II classifications. The Utility Clerk I/II position 

is no longer needed for City operations and would be retired as a job description. The Department 

Assistant I/II classification is used across the City in other departments and would remain as an 

approved job description, but there would be no Department Assistant’s in the Finance 

Department. 

 

Staff is additionally recommending that a job description of Customer Service Technician be 

created to allow a CSR II to gain supervisory experience that would allow them to transition to a 

Customer Service Supervisor. Without the transitional position, City staff would never be able to 

gain the experience required under the already approved Customer Service Supervisor position 

and the City would always be hiring from outside for the Supervisor role. 

 

Management Analyst Series (Confidential Mid-Management) 

 

Proposed job descriptions: 

 Management Analyst - Grade TBD, - $82,189.22 to $101,117.02  

 Senior Management Analyst - Grade 24 - $101,117.02 to $122,903.35 

Page 67

Item 9.



In the 2022-23 budget, Council approved new positions for two Senior Management Analysts. 

However, as discussed with City staff during the budget process, these positions did not need to 

be filled by a (Senior) Management Analyst which was the only approved job description in the 

management analyst series. This action would add the more appropriate Management Analyst job 

description and clarify duties for the Senior Management Analyst position to make it consistent 

with the proposed Management Analyst position. The Management Analyst position would be 

more limited in supervision and expected responsibility than the Senior Management Analyst 

positon and would act as a transitional position to gain experience consistent with the Senior 

Management Analyst position. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There is no fiscal impact from this action since funding for positions in these series was approved 

in the 2022-23 annual budget. This action does not add any additional staff or increase any 

compensation, it only approves job descriptions. Any change in related funding or staffing 

approval would be part of a separate Council action. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Approve staff’s recommendation to approve Resolution No. 2022-83 creating and updating 

job positions in the customer service and management analyst job position series. 

2. Give staff direction on modifications to the proposed new positions and updates. 

 

ATTACHMENTS  

Resolution 2022-83 

Exhibit 1: 

Management Analyst Job Description  

Senior Management Analyst Job Description 

Customer Service Representative I/II Job Description 

Customer Service Technician Job Description 

Page 68

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-83 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE CREATION AND OR 

MODIFICATION OF POSITIONS IN THE CUSTOMER SERVICE AND 

MANAGEMENT ANALYST JOB SERIES 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has customer service and management analyst job descriptions 

created but does not have a comprehensive progressive sequence of job descriptions creating a 

series for either area.  

 

 WHEREAS, customer service positions are currently classified as department assistants 

and utility clerks. The current customer service functions and assigned duties are not consistent 

with either current job description. It would be more appropriate to classify customer service 

positions under a customer service classification series. City Council has already approved and 

funded a Customer Service Supervisor job description to oversee customer service activities. 

 

WHEREAS, City Council has approved and funded a senior management analyst position. 

The current senior management analyst job description is overly specific and the City does not 

have an approved management analyst position. The City has a need to fill positions consistent 

with a management analyst position that do not require the compensation level of a senior 

management analyst.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED by the 

City Council of the City of Coachella, as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby finds and determines that the foregoing Recitals 

of this Resolution are true and correct and hereby incorporated into this Resolution as though fully 

set forth herein. 

 

 Section 2. The City approves the creation of a full-time customer service 

representative I, customer service representative II, customer service technician, and management 

analyst while modifying the senior management analyst positions based on the job descriptions 

attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 

 

Section 3. Currently approved job descriptions of utility clerk 1 and utility clerk II are 

retired and the four currently approved customer service positions classified as department 

assistants and utility clerks are reclassified to customer service representatives in the same 

respective levels. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 12th day of October 2022. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

Page 69

Item 9.



Resolution No. 2022-83 

Page 2 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

  

Page 70

Item 9.



Resolution No. 2022-83 

Page 3 

 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-83 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 12th day of 

October 2022, by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:  

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:  

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  

Deputy City Clerk 

Page 71

Item 9.



[Type here] 

 

Civic Center 

53-990 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Telephone: (760) 398-3502 

 

October 2022                  FLSA: EXEMPT 

 

 

MANAGEMENT ANALYST 

 

DEFINITION 

 

Under direction of the respective department head, performs a full range of analytical work to research, 

evaluate, develop, implement and administer assigned programs, projects and functions; plans and 

implements analytical strategies to resolve problems; gather and analyzes information from various sources 

to prepare comprehensive analytical reports and recommendations; administers complex research and 

assignments as it pertains to the respective department. Performs a full range of responsible and varied 

professional, analytical, financial, systems, statistical programmatic, management and other administrative 

analyses duties in providing responsible staff support to a City department, division, function, or program 

area; performs a variety of assigned projects, prepares various reports to improve the efficiency and 

effectiveness of departmental or division operations; and coordinates assigned activities with other 

departments, divisions, outside agencies, and the general public. This is a broad classification with 

individual positions assigned to specific functional areas; duties and assignments may overlap depending 

on department staffing and operational needs. This position is intended to fit individual department/division 

needs. All duties outlined are general with the understanding that they pertain to the respective hiring 

department. 

 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

  

Receives direct and general direction from the respective department head or designee. May exercise 
technical and functional supervision over technical and office support staff if assigned. 

 

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 
 

This is the full journey-level class in the Management Analyst Series.  Incumbent is responsible for the 

management and administration of new and existing departmental projects.  Incumbent works under general 

and direct supervision and exercises a moderate level of discretion and independent judgment in performing 

a full range of routine and complex functions and duties relating to the management of departmental projects 

and analytical research. 

 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only) 

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change or rescind the work assignments of different 

positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential 

functions of the job. 

 Performs difficult and responsible assignments in assigned areas of respective department. 

 Drafts proposed contracts, bid documents; agreements and a variety of other supporting 

documents; monitors program/ contract performance and expenditures; researches and 

Resolution 2022-83 Exhibit 1 

Page 72

Item 9.



  

resolves program/contract problems and disputes; compiles and drafts federal and state 

agency reports and documents. 

 Reviews specification; develops, procures, implements and administers contracts and 

agreements. May prepare RFP's for contract services to establish new projects within the 

department. 

 Responsible for the management, administration and oversight of programs.  

 Assists the department head in the development and administration of programs. 

 May assists other departments in various tasks or programs. 
 Performs duties of disaster worker in event of an emergency. 
 Performs related duties as assigned. 

QUALIFICATIONS  

 

Knowledge of:  

 Principles, practices, and methods of administrative, organizational, financial and procedural 

analysis. 

 Principles and practices of public administration, including budgeting, contracting, 

purchasing and maintenance of public records. 

 Federal state and local laws, regulations and court decisions applicable to assigned areas of 

responsibility, including the Public Contracts Code. 

 State guidelines and rules. 

 City department guidelines and specifications. 

 Principles and practices of effective management and supervision. 

 Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the 

work. 

 English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation. 

 Techniques for effectively representing the City in contacts with government agencies, 

community groups, and various business, professional, regulatory, and legislative 

organizations. 

Ability to:  

 Organize, set priorities and exercise sound independent judgment within areas of 

responsibility; coordinate effort with other City departments and regulatory agencies. 

 Analyze administrative, operational, procedural, organizational and/or financial problems, 

evaluate alternatives and reach sound, logical, fact-based conclusions and recommendations. 

 Communicate effectively, both orally and in writing; present conclusions and 

recommendations clearly and logically. 

 Prepare clear, concise and comprehensive correspondence, reports and other written 

materials. 

 Establish and administer contracts in accordance with contract requirements and all 

applicable legal and other requirements. 

Page 73

Item 9.



  

 Analyze proposed state and local legislation to determine impacts on the City or respective 

City departments. 

 Use and operate computers and standard business software; maintains files, records and 

documentation 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with staff, contractors, developers, 

consultants and other encountered in the course of work. 

Education and Experience: 

Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills and abilities 

is qualifying. 

Graduation from an accredited four-year college or university with major coursework consistent 

with the standard needs of the hiring department or a closely related field and at least three (3) 

years of progressively responsible professional work experience performing duties consistent with 

the needs of the respective department. 

Licenses and Certifications:  

 

Valid California class C driver’s license with satisfactory driving record and automobile insurance. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS 

 

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, be able to 

operate a motor vehicle to visit various City and meeting sites, possess adequate vision to read printed 

materials and a computer screen and possess sufficient hearing and speech to communicate in person, before 

groups, and over the telephone.  This position includes sedentary activities but standing in work areas and 

walking between work areas will be required.  Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter and retrieve data 

using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.  Positions in this 

classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push and pull drawers open and closed to retrieve and 

file information.  Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push and pull materials and objects 

weighing up to 25 pounds. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 

 

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions, 

and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances.  Employees may interact with upset staff and/or 

public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures. 

Page 74

Item 9.



[Type here] 

 

Civic Center 

53-990 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Telephone: (760) 398-3502 

 

October 2022                  FLSA: EXEMPT 

 

 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT ANALYST 

 

DEFINITION 

 

Under direction of the respective department head, performs a full range of analytical work to research, 

evaluate, develop, implement and administer assigned programs, projects and functions; plans and 

implement analytical strategies to resolve problems; gather and analyzes information from various sources 

to prepare comprehensive analytical reports and recommendations; administers complex research and 

assignments as it pertains to the respective department. Performs a full range of responsible and varied 

professional, analytical, financial, systems, statistical programmatic, management and other administrative 

analyses duties in providing responsible staff support to a City department, division, function, or program 

area; performs a variety of assigned projects, prepares various reports to improve the efficiency and 

effectiveness of departmental or division operations; and coordinates assigned activities with other 

departments, divisions, outside agencies, and the general public. The Senior Management analyst excises 

general discretion and oversight in the performance of work assignments and is responsible for managing 

assigned staff. This is a broad classification with individual positions assigned to specific functional areas; 

duties and assignments may overlap depending on department staffing and operational needs. This position 

is intended to fit individual department/division needs.  All duties outlined are general with the 

understanding that they pertain to the respective hiring department. 

 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

  

Receives general direction from the respective department head or designee.  May exercise direct, 
technical and functional supervision over support staff if assigned. 

 

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 
 

Incumbent is responsible for the management and administration of new and existing departmental projects.  

Incumbent works under general direction and exercises a high level of discretion and independent judgment 

in performing a full range of routine and complex functions and duties relating to the management of 

departmental projects and analytical research. 

 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only) 

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change or rescind the work assignments of different 

positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential 

functions of the job. 

 Plans, organizes, supervises and evaluates the work of assigned staff; develops, implements and 

monitors work plans to achieve goals and objectives; contributes to development of and 

monitoring of performance against departmental projects and budgets; participates in 

developing, implementing and evaluating work programs, plans, processes, systems and 

Resolution 2022-83 Exhibit 1 
 

Page 75

Item 9.



  

procedures to achieve City goals, objectives and performance measures consistent with the 

City's quality and service expectations. 

 Performs difficult and responsible assignments in assigned areas of respective department. 

 Drafts proposed contracts, bid documents; agreements and a variety of other supporting 

documents; monitors program/ contract performance and expenditures; researches and 

resolves program/contract problems and disputes; compiles and drafts federal and state agency 

reports and documents. 

 Reviews specification; develops, procures, implements and administers contracts and 

agreements. May prepare RFP's for contract services to establish new projects within the 

department. 

 Responsible for the management administration and oversight of programs.  

 Provides day-to-day leadership and works with staff to ensure a high performance, customer 

service-oriented work environment, which supports achieving City and District objectives and 

service expectations; provides leadership and participates in programs and activities that 

promote a positive employee relations environment. 

 Assist the department head in the development and administration of programs. 

 May assists other departments in various tasks or programs. 
 Performs duties of disaster worker in event of an emergency. 

 Performs related duties as assigned. 

QUALIFICATIONS  

 

Knowledge of:  

 Principles and practices of effective management and supervision. 

 Principles, practices, and methods of administrative, organizational, financial and procedural 

analysis. 

 Principles and practices of public administration, including budgeting, contracting, purchasing 

and maintenance of public records. 

 Federal state and local laws, regulations and court decisions applicable to assigned areas of 

responsibility, including the Public Contracts Code. 

 State guidelines and rules. 

 City department guidelines and specifications. 

 Principles and practices of effective management and supervision. 

 Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment and applications related to the 

work. 

 English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation. 

 Techniques for effectively representing the City in contacts with government agencies, 

community groups, and various business, professional, regulatory, and legislative 

organizations. 

Ability to:  

Page 76

Item 9.



  

 Organize, set priorities and exercise sound independent judgment within areas of 

responsibility; coordinate effort with other City departments and regulatory agencies. 

 Analyze administrative, operational, procedural, organizational and/or financial problems, 

evaluate alternatives and reach sound, logical, fact-based conclusions and recommendations. 

 Communicate effectively, both orally and in writing; present conclusions and 

recommendations clearly and logically. 

 Prepare clear, concise and comprehensive correspondence, reports and other written materials. 

 Establish and administer contracts in accordance with contract requirements and all applicable 

legal and other requirements. 

 Analyze proposed state and local legislation to determine impacts on the City or respective 

City departments. 

 Use and operate computers and standard business software; maintains files, records and 

documentation 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with staff, contractors, developers, 

consultants and other encountered in the course of work. 

Education and Experience: 

Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills and abilities 

is qualifying. 

Graduation from an accredited master degree program is preferred. At a minimum, the incumbent 

must have graduated from an accredited four-year college or university with major coursework 

consistent with the standard needs of the hiring department or a closely related field and have at 

least five (5) years of progressively responsible professional work experience performing duties 

consistent with the needs of the respective department. 

Licenses and Certifications:  

 

Valid California class C driver’s license with satisfactory driving record and automobile insurance. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS 

 

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, be able to 

operate a motor vehicle to visit various City and meeting sites, possess adequate vision to read printed 

materials and a computer screen and possess sufficient hearing and speech to communicate in person, before 

groups, and over the telephone.  This position includes sedentary activities but standing in work areas and 

walking between work areas will be required.  Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter and retrieve data 

using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.  Positions in this 

classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push and pull drawers open and closed to retrieve and 

file information.  Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push and pull materials and objects 

weighing up to 25 pounds. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 

 

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions, 

and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances.  Employees may interact with upset staff and/or 

public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures. 

Page 77

Item 9.



 

Civic Center 

53-990 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Telephone: (760) 398-3502 

 

October 2022                  FLSA: EXEMPT 

 

 

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE 

 

DEFINITION 

 

Under direct supervision, provides customer service to City constituents, performs a variety of routine to 

complex technical and administrative support duties in the preparation, maintenance, and processing of 

accounting and customer account records for the City, in addition to balancing, reconciling and maintaining 

accounting and financial records; prepares correspondence using independent judgment in content and 

style; interacts frequently with the public and explains City policies and procedures and performs related 

work as required. 

 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

  

Receives direct supervision from the Finance Director or designee. Exercises no direct supervision over 

staff.  

 

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 
 

Customer Service Representative I -  This is the entry-level class in the CSR series.  Initially, under close 

supervision, incumbents with basic clerical experience learn to perform routine to moderately complex 

customer service and administrative support duties, including document preparation, records management, 

researching, compiling, and organizing information from various sources, screening phone calls, visitors, 

mail, directing questions to the appropriate staff, and customer account functions. As more experience is 

gained, assignments become more varied and are performed with greater independence.  Positions at this 

level usually perform most of the duties required of the positions at the II class, but are not expected to 

function at the same skill level and usually exercise less independent discretion and judgment in matters 

related to work procedures and methods.  Work is usually supervised while in progress and fits an 

established structure or pattern.  Exceptions or changes in procedures are explained in detail as they 

arise.  Since this class is often used as a training class, employees may have only limited or no directly 

related work experience. Must have the ability to properly communicate with customers and provide 
exceptional customer service. 

Customer Service Representative II - This is the full journey-level class in the CSR series.  Incumbents are 

capable of performing the full range of complex customer service and administrative support duties, 

including document preparation, records management, researching, compiling, and organizing information 

from various sources, screening phone calls, visitors, mail, directing questions to the appropriate staff, and 

customer account functions. Positions at this level are distinguished from the I level by the performance of 

the full range of duties as assigned, working independently and exercising judgement and initiative.  

Positions at this level receive only occasional instruction or assistance as new or unusual situations arise 

and are fully aware of the operating procedures and policies of the work unit. They exercise a higher level 

of discretion and independent decision-making and provides technical and functional direction to class I 

CSR staff. 

 

Resolution 2022-83 Exhibit 1 
 

Page 78

Item 9.



Customer Service Representative 

Page 2 of 3  

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only) 

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change or rescind the work assignments of different 

positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential 

functions of the job. 

 Receives payments and fees from the public and/or other departments and processes payments at 

customer service locations; makes change as necessary and maintains cash drawer as appropriate; 

processes automatic customer account debits through electronic bank transfers; balances payments and 

posts transactions in the accounting system daily. 

 Post information to departmental, fiscal or other records; collects and submits data for reports pertaining 

to assigned functions. 

 Sets up new accounts or closes out terminated accounts; enters meter readings for monthly billing; 

notifies customers of excessive usage and initiates work orders to investigate for high consumption, 

potential leaks, or broken utility meters; calculates and processes billing adjustments due to leaks, 

penalty adjustments, or overestimating; enters new meters into utility inventory system, and performs 

other various customer account activities. 

 Sends out late and final notices, collection notices, and performs necessary collections and delinquency 

processing. 

 Performs a variety of routine to complex administrative and technical account support duties related to 

utility billing, citations, revenue, collections and other customer related payments, including posting, 

balancing, reconciling, and maintaining account and financial records according to established policies 

and procedures. 

 Verifies, posts, and records a variety of financial transactions; prepares and maintains database, records, 

and a variety of periodic and special financial, accounting and statistical reports. 

 Maintains a variety of ledgers, registers, and journals according to established account policies and 

procedures; reconciles transactions and data as directed; records changes and resolves differences; 

maintains the accuracy of accounting and financial records. 

 Generates and assists in the preparation of monthly, quarterly, and year-end financial, summary and 

technical reports. 

 Researches records within areas of responsibility to prepare and provide follow-up information to 

customer and staff inquiries. 

 Performs general office support duties such as opening and routing mail and deliveries; preparing 

correspondence; filing and record keeping; and duplicating and distributing various written materials. 

 Operates a variety of standard office equipment, including job-related computer hardware and software 

applications, copiers, postage meters, scanners, facsimile machines, and multi-line telephones; may 

operate other department-specific equipment. 

 Assists customers, departments, and employees by providing answers and information regarding 

specific account information, discrepancies and/or general accounting procedures; researches issues 

regarding specific transactions; and updates related files and departments on action items. 

 May provide direction and training to lower-level or less experienced staff in area of assignment. 

 Performs duties of disaster worker in event of an emergency. 

 Performs other related duties as assigned. 

QUALIFICATIONS  

 

Knowledge of:  

 Terminology and practices of financial and account document processing and record keeping, related 

to utility billing. 

 Business arithmetic and basic financial and statistical techniques. 

 Record-keeping principles and procedures. 

 Standard office practices, methods, and computer equipment. 

Page 79

Item 9.



Customer Service Representative 

Page 3 of 3  

 Computer applications related to work, including word processing spreadsheet, customer billing 

software and cash handling. 

 English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation. 

 Techniques for providing a high level of customer service by effectively dealing with the public, 

vendors, contractors and City staff. 

Ability to:  

 Provide exceptional customer service including greeting customers, communicating with customer 

and resolving issues with unsatisfied customers. 

 Respond to and effectively prioritize multiple phone calls and other requests for service. 

 Interpret, apply, and explain policies and procedures. 

 Compose correspondence and reports independently or from brief instructions. 

 Make accurate arithmetic, financial, and statistical computations 

 Establish and maintain a variety of filing, record-keeping, and tracking systems. 

 Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 

 Organize and prioritize a variety of projects and multiple tasks in an effective and timely manner; 

organize own work, set priorities, and meet critical time deadlines. 

 Operate and learn how to operate computer equipment and specialized software applications. 

 Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing. 

 Use tact, initiative, prudence, and independent judgment within general policy, procedural, and legal 

guidelines. 

 Establish, maintain, and foster positive and harmonious working relationships with those contacted in 

the course of work. 

Education and Experience: 

Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills and abilities 

is qualifying. 

Customer Service Representative I - Graduation from high school or possession of a high school 

equivalency and one (1) year of varied customer service and administrative support experience.  

Customer Service Representative II - In addition to the above, specialized training in business or customer 

accounts and three (3) years of increasingly responsible administrative support experience, or two (2) years 

of experience equivalent to the Customer Service Representative I at the City of Coachella. An associates 

degree from an accredited college or university can be substituted for (1) year of experience and a bachelor 

degree for (2) years of experience. 

Licenses and Certifications:  

 

Valid California class C driver’s license with satisfactory driving record and automobile insurance. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS 

 

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, be able to 

operate a motor vehicle to visit various City and meeting sites, possess adequate vision to read printed 

materials and a computer screen and possess sufficient hearing and speech to communicate in person, before 

groups, and over the telephone.  This position includes sedentary activities but standing in work areas and 

walking between work areas will be required.  Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter and retrieve data 

using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.  Positions in this 

classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push and pull drawers open and closed to retrieve and 

Page 80

Item 9.



Customer Service Representative 

Page 4 of 3  

file information.  Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push and pull materials and objects 

weighing up to 25 pounds. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 

 

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions, 

and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances.  Employees may interact with upset staff and/or 

public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures. 

Page 81

Item 9.



 

Civic Center 
53-990 Enterprise Way 
Coachella, CA  92236 

Telephone: (760) 398-3502 

 

August 2022                  FLSA: EXEMPT 

 

 

CUSTOMER SERVICE TECHNICIAN 

 

DEFINITION 

 

Under direct and/or general supervision, provides a variety of technical customer service to City 

constituents, performs a variety of routine to complex technical and administrative support duties in the 

preparation, maintenance, and processing of accounting and customer account records for the City, in 

addition to balancing, reconciling and maintaining accounting and financial records; prepares 

correspondence using independent judgment in content and style; interacts frequently with the public and 

explains City policies and procedures and performs related work as required. 

 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

  

Receives direct or technical supervision from the Finance Director or designee. Exercises supervision over 
lower-level staff.  

 

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 
 

Customer Service Technician:  This is the full journey-level class in the customer service series.  

Incumbents are capable of performing the full range of complex customer service and administrative 

support duties, including document preparation, records management, researching, compiling, and 

organizing information from various sources, screening phone calls, visitors, mail, directing questions to 

the appropriate staff, and customer account functions. The incumbent organizes and oversees assigned 

customer service functions and provides direct and technical supervision to assigned customer service 

representatives. 

 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS (Illustrative Only) 

Management reserves the right to add, modify, change or rescind the work assignments of different 

positions and to make reasonable accommodations so that qualified employees can perform the essential 

functions of the job. 

 Receives payments and fees from the public and/or other departments and processes payments at 

customer service locations; makes change as necessary and maintains cash drawer as appropriate; 

processes automatic customer account debits through electronic bank transfers; balances payments and 

posts transactions in the accounting system daily. 

 Post information to departmental, fiscal or other records; collects and submits data for reports pertaining 

to assigned functions. 

 Sets up new accounts or closes out terminated accounts; enters meter readings for monthly billing; 

notifies customers of excessive usage and initiates work orders to investigate for high consumption, 

potential leaks, or broken utility meters; calculates and processes billing adjustments due to leaks, 

penalty adjustments, or overestimating; enters new meters into utility inventory system, and performs 

other various customer account activities. 

Resolution 2022-83 Exhibit 1 
 

Page 82

Item 9.



Customer Service Technician 

Page 2 of 3  

 Sends out late and final notices, collection notices, and performs necessary collections and delinquency 

processing. 

 Performs a variety of routine to complex administrative and technical account support duties related to 

utility billing, citations, revenue, collections and other customer related payments, including posting, 

balancing, reconciling, and maintaining account and financial records according to established policies 

and procedures. 

 Verifies, posts, and records a variety of financial transactions; prepares and maintains database, records, 

and a variety of periodic and special financial, accounting and statistical reports. 

 Maintains a variety of ledgers, registers, and journals according to established account policies and 

procedures; reconciles transactions and data as directed; records changes and resolves differences; 

maintains the accuracy of accounting and financial records. 

 Generates and assists in the preparation of monthly, quarterly, and year-end financial, summary and 

technical reports. 

 Researches records within areas of responsibility to prepare and provide follow-up information to 

customer and staff inquiries. 

 Performs general office support duties such as opening and routing mail and deliveries; preparing 

correspondence; filing and record keeping; and duplicating and distributing various written materials. 

 Operates a variety of standard office equipment, including job-related computer hardware and software 

applications, copiers, postage meters, scanners, facsimile machines, and multi-line telephones; may 

operate other department-specific equipment. 

 Assists customers, departments, and employees by providing answers and information regarding 

specific account information, discrepancies and/or general accounting procedures; researches issues 

regarding specific transactions; and updates related files and departments on action items. 

 May provide direction and training to lower-level or less experienced staff in area of assignment. 

 Performs duties of disaster worker in event of an emergency. 

 Performs other related duties as assigned. 

QUALIFICATIONS  

 

Knowledge of:  

 Principles of direct and technical supervision (may be learned on the job). 

 Terminology and practices of financial and account document processing and record keeping, related 

to utility billing. 

 Business arithmetic and basic financial and statistical techniques. 

 Record-keeping principles and procedures. 

 Standard office practices, methods, and computer equipment. 

 Computer applications related to work, including word processing spreadsheet, customer billing 

software and cash handling. 

 English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation. 

 Techniques for providing a high level of customer service by effectively dealing with the public, 

vendors, contractors and City staff. 

Ability to:  

 Provide exceptional customer service including greeting customers, communicating with customer 

and resolving issues with unsatisfied customers. 

 Respond to and effectively prioritize multiple phone calls and other requests for service. 

 Interpret, apply, and explain policies and procedures. 

 Compose correspondence and reports independently or from brief instructions. 

 Make accurate arithmetic, financial, and statistical computations 

 Establish and maintain a variety of filing, record-keeping, and tracking systems. 

 Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 

Page 83

Item 9.



Customer Service Technician 

Page 3 of 3  

 Organize and prioritize a variety of projects and multiple tasks in an effective and timely manner; 

organize own work, set priorities, and meet critical time deadlines. 

 Operate and learn how to operate computer equipment and specialized software applications. 

 Use English effectively to communicate in person, over the telephone, and in writing. 

 Use tact, initiative, prudence, and independent judgment within general policy, procedural, and legal 

guidelines. 

 Establish, maintain, and foster positive and harmonious working relationships with those contacted in 

the course of work. 

 Oversee and review the work of assigned CSRs. 

Education and Experience: 

Any combination of training and experience that would provide the required knowledge, skills and abilities 

is qualifying.  

Graduation from an accredited  wo (2) year college with a degree in accounting, finance, business or related 

field and two (2) years of experience in a related field equivalent to the Customer Service Representative 

II. 

Licenses and Certifications:  

 

Valid California class C driver’s license with satisfactory driving record and automobile insurance. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS 

 

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment, be able to 

operate a motor vehicle to visit various City and meeting sites, possess adequate vision to read printed 

materials and a computer screen and possess sufficient hearing and speech to communicate in person, before 

groups, and over the telephone.  This position includes sedentary activities but standing in work areas and 

walking between work areas will be required.  Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter and retrieve data 

using a computer keyboard or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.  Positions in this 

classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push and pull drawers open and closed to retrieve and 

file information.  Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push and pull materials and objects 

weighing up to 25 pounds. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 

 

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature conditions, 

and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances.  Employees may interact with upset staff and/or 

public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing departmental policies and procedures. 

Page 84

Item 9.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Andrew Simmons, P.E., City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Resolution 2022-90, A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager To Execute 

Agreements on Behalf of the City Associated with Local Road Safety Plan – 

Federal Aid # LRSPL-5294(019) 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve Resolution 2022-90, A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager To Execute 

Agreements on Behalf of the City Associated with Local Road Safety Plan – Federal Aid # LRSPL-

5294(019) 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The City of Coachella has been awarded Federal funding to create a Local Road Safety Plan. The 

State is the administering agency for these funds and is requiring the execution of a Program 

Supplemental Agreement to the current State Master Agreement. The State is also requiring a 

certified authorizing resolution that clearly identifies the project and the official authorized to 

execute the agreements. 

 

The total funds are in the amount of $44,000. It is recommended that a blanket resolution 

authorizing the City Manager to have all project associated agreements executed on the City’s 

behalf at their discretion be adopted. This will greatly facilitate the processing of future certificates, 

agreements, reimbursements, or other related paperwork that will be required as the project 

progresses. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

No fiscal impact to budget. The local match for this project is $16,000 and has been appropriated 

in the CIP FY 22/23 budget. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Resolution 2022-90 

2. Master Agreement – No. 08-5294S21 

3. Program Supplement – No. 000000X76 

Page 85

Item 10.



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-90 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 

AGREEMENTS ON BEHALF OF THE CITY ASSOCIATED WITH 

LOCAL ROAD SAFETY PLAN – FEDERAL AID # LRSPL-5294(019) 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City intends to pursue state and federal funding for the completion of this 

project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State requires that certain agreements be executed between the State and 

the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to streamline the process of executing agreements and 

facilitating completion of the project for the benefit of its citizens; and    

 

WHEREAS, the City Manager is entrusted with the trust and support of City Council; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Coachella 

do hereby resolve and authorize the City Manager to execute on behalf of the City any and all 

agreements associated with this project. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 12th day of October 2022. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney

Page 86

Item 10.



Resolution No. 2022-90 

Page 2 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-90 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 12th day of 

October 2022 by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:    

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:  

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  

Deputy City Clerk 
 

Page 87

Item 10.



 MASTER AGREEMENT
ADMINISTERING AGENCY-STATE AGREEMENT FOR

STATE-FUNDED PROJECTS

                                          08              City of Coachella
                                          --------         ----------------------------------------------
                                          District        Administering Agency

                                           Agreement No. 08-5294S21

This AGREEMENT, is entered into effective this _______ day of __________, 20___, by and
between the City of Coachella, hereinafter referred to as "ADMINISTERING AGENCY," and the
State of California, acting by and through its Department of Transportation (Caltrans),
hereinafter referred to as "STATE", and together referred to as "PARTIES" or individually as a
"PARTY."

RECITALS:

1. WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of California has enacted legislation by which certain
State funds are made available for use on local transportation related projects of public entities
qualified to act as recipients of these state funds; and

2. WHEREAS, ADMINISTERING AGENCY has applied to the California Transportation
Commission (CTC) and/or STATE for funding from a State-funded program (herein referred to
as STATE FUNDS), as defined in the Local Assistance Program Guidelines (LAPG) and/or in
the respective CTC Guidelines, for use on local authorized transportation related projects as a
local administered project(s), hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"; and

3. WHEREAS, said PROJECT will not receive any federal funds; and

4. WHEREAS, before STATE FUNDS will be made available for PROJECT, ADMINISTERING
AGENCY and STATE are required to enter into an agreement to establish terms and conditions
applicable to the ADMINISTERING AGENCY when receiving STATE FUNDS for a designated
PROJECT facility and to the subsequent operation and maintenance of that completed facility.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES agree as follows:

Page of 161

Page 88

Item 10.



ARTICLE I - PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

1. This AGREEMENT shall have no force or effect with respect to any program project unless
and until a project- specific Program Supplement to this AGREEMENT for state funded projects,
hereinafter referred to as "PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT", has been fully executed by both STATE
and ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

2. The State approved project-specific allocation notification letter and approved CTC allocation
documentation designate the party responsible for implementing PROJECT, type of work, and
location of PROJECT for projects requiring CTC allocation by PROJECT component of work.

3. The PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT sets out special covenants as a condition for the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY to receive STATE FUNDS from/through STATE for designated
PROJECT. The PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall also show these STATE FUNDS that have
been initially encumbered for PROJECT along with the matching funds to be provided by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and/or others. Execution of PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT by the
PARTIES shall cause ADMINISTERING AGENCY to adopt all the terms of this AGREEMENT
as though fully set forth therein in the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT. Unless otherwise expressly
delegated in a resolution by the governing body of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, and with written
concurrence by STATE, the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall be approved and managed by the
governing body of ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to execute and return each project-specific PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT. The PARTIES agree that STATE may suspend future allocations,
encumbrances and invoice payments for any on- going or future STATE FUNDED PROJECT
performed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if any project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT is
not returned, unless otherwise agreed by STATE in writing.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY further agrees, as a condition to the release and payment of
STATE FUNDS encumbered for the PROJECT described in each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT,
to comply with the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT and all the agreed-upon Special
Covenants or Remarks incorporated within the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, and
Cooperative/Contribution Agreement where appropriate, defining and identifying the nature of
the specific PROJECT.

6. STATE FUNDS will not participate in any portion of PROJECT work performed in advance of
the effective date of allocation by CTC, or by STATE for allocations delegated to STATE by
CTC, for said PROJECT.

7. Projects allocated with STATE FUNDS will be administered in accordance with the current
CTC STIP Guidelines, applicable chapter(s) of the LAPG, LAPM and/or any other instructions
published by STATE.

8. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to ensure compliance with all relevant State laws and
requirements for work related to PROJECT, including the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA).

9. ADMINISTERING AGENCY's eligible costs for preliminary engineering work includes all
preliminary work directly related to PROJECT up to contract award for construction, including,
but not limited to, environmental studies and permits (E&P),

Page of 162

Page 89

Item 10.



preliminary surveys and reports, laboratory work, soil investigations, the preparation of plans,
specifications and estimates (PS&E), advertising for bids, awarding of a contract and project
development contract administration.

10. ADMINISTERING AGENCY's eligible costs for construction engineering include actual
inspection and supervision of PROJECT construction work; construction staking; laboratory and
field testing; and the preparation and processing of field reports, records, estimates, final
reports, and allowable expenses of employees/consultants engaged in such activities.

11. Unless the PARTIES agree otherwise in writing, ADMINISTERING AGENCY's employees
or its contracted engineering consultant shall be responsible for all PROJECT engineering work.

12. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not proceed with final design of PROJECT until final
environmental approval of PROJECT. Final design entails the design work necessary to
complete the PS&E and other work necessary for a construction contract but not required
earlier for environmental clearance of that PROJECT.

13. If PROJECT is not on STATE-owned right-of-way, PROJECT shall be constructed in
accordance with Chapter 11 of the LAPM that describes minimum statewide design standards
for local agency streets and roads. The design standards for projects off the National Highway
System (NHS) allow STATE to accept either the current Caltrans Highway Design Manual
standards, the current FHWA-adopted American Association of State Highway and
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets
standards, or the approved geometric design standards of ADMINISTERING AGENCY.
Additionally, for projects off the NHS, STATE will accept ADMINISTERING AGENCY-approved
standard specifications, standard plans, materials sampling and testing quality assurance
programs that meet the conditions described in the then current Local Assistance Procedures
Manual.

14. If PROJECT involves work within or partially within STATE-owned right-of-way, that
PROJECT shall also be subject to compliance with the policies, procedures and standards of
the STATE Project Development Procedures Manual and Highway Design Manual and where
appropriate, an executed cooperative agreement between STATE and ADMINISTERING
AGENCY that outlines the PROJECT responsibilities and respective obligations of the
PARTIES. ADMINISTERING AGENCY and its contractors shall each obtain an encroachment
permit through STATE prior to commencing any work within STATE rights-of-way or work which
affects STATE facilities.

15. When PROJECT is not on the State Highway System (SHS) but includes work to be
performed by a railroad, the contract for such work shall be prepared by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY or by STATE, as the PARTIES may hereafter agree. In either event,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall enter into an agreement with the railroad providing for future
maintenance of protective devices or other facilities installed under the contract.

16. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with the provisions of sections 4450 and 4454 of
the California Government Code, as well as other Department of General Services guidance, if
applicable, for the contract PS&E for the construction of buildings, structures, sidewalks, curbs
and related facilities for accessibility and

Page of 163

Page 90

Item 10.



usability. Further requirements and guidance are provided in Title 24 of the California Code of
Regulations.

17. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall provide a full-time public employee to be in responsible
charge of each PROJECT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall provide or arrange for adequate
supervision and inspection of each PROJECT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY may utilize
consultants to perform supervision and inspection work for PROJECT with a fully qualified and
licensed engineer. Utilization of consultants does not relieve ADMINISTERING AGENCY of its
obligation to provide a full-time public employee to be in responsible charge of each PROJECT.

18. Unless otherwise provided in the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, ADMINISTERING AGENCY
shall advertise, award, and administer the PROJECT construction contract or contracts.

19. The cost of maintenance, security, or protection performed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY
or contractor forces during any temporary suspension of PROJECT or at any other time may not
be charged to the PROJECT.

20. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall submit PROJECT-specific award information to STATE's
District Local Assistance Engineer, within sixty (60) days after contract award.

21. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall submit the final report documents that collectively
constitute a "Final Project Expenditure Report", LAPM Exhibit 17-M, within one hundred eighty
(180) days of PROJECT completion. Failure by ADMINISTERING AGENCY to submit a "Final
Project Expenditure Report", within 180 days of project completion will result in STATE
imposing sanctions upon ADMINISTERING AGENCY in accordance with the Local Assistance
Procedures Manual.

22. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of
1990 that prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability and all applicable regulations and
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA.

23. The Governor and the Legislature of the State of California, each within their respective
jurisdictions, have prescribed certain nondiscrimination requirements with respect to contract
and other work financed with public funds. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with
the requirements of the FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ADDENDUM, attached hereto as
Exhibit A and further agrees that any agreement entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY
with a third party for performance of work connected with PROJECT shall incorporate Exhibit A
(with third party's name replacing ADMINISTERING AGENCY) as parts of such agreement.

24. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall include in all contracts and subcontracts awarded when
applicable, a clause that requires each subcontractor to comply with California Labor Code
requirements that all workers employed on public works aspects of any project (as defined in
California Labor Code sections 1720-1815) be paid not less than the general prevailing wage
rates predetermined by the Department of Industrial  Relations as effective  at the date of
contract award by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

Page of 164

Page 91

Item 10.



ARTICLE II - RIGHTS-OF-WAY

1. No contract for the construction of a STATE FUNDED PROJECT shall be awarded until all
necessary rights of way have been secured. Prior to the advertising for construction of
PROJECT, ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall certify and, upon request, shall furnish STATE
with evidence that all necessary rights-of-way are available for construction purposes or will be
available by the time of award of the construction contract.

2. The furnishing of rights of way by ADMINISTERING AGENCY as provided for herein
includes, and is limited to, the following, unless the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT provides
otherwise.

(a) Expenditures of capital and support to purchase all real property required for PROJECT free
and clear of liens, conflicting easements, obstructions and encumbrances, after crediting
PROJECT with the fair market value of any excess property retained and not disposed of by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

(b) The cost of furnishing of right-of-way as provided for herein includes, in addition to real
property required for the PROJECT, title free and clear of obstructions and encumbrances
affecting PROJECT and the payment, as required by applicable law, of damages to owners of
remainder real property not actually taken but injuriously affected by PROJECT.

(c) The cost of relocation payments and services provided to owners and occupants pursuant to
Government Code sections 7260-7277 when PROJECT displaces an individual, family,
business, farm operation or nonprofit organization.

(d) The cost of demolition and/or the sale of all improvements on the right-of-way after credit is
recorded for sale proceeds used to offset PROJECT costs.

(e) The cost of all unavoidable utility relocation, protection or removal.

(f) The cost of all necessary hazardous material and hazardous waste treatment, encapsulation
or removal and protective storage for which ADMINISTERING AGENCY accepts responsibility
and where the actual generator cannot be identified, and recovery made.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to indemnify and hold STATE harmless from any liability
that may result in the event the right-of-way for a PROJECT is not clear as certified by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY, including, but not limited to, if said right-of-way is found to contain
hazardous materials requiring treatment or removal to remediate in accordance with Federal
and State laws. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall pay, from its own non- matching funds, any
costs which arise out of delays to the construction of PROJECT because utility facilities have
not been timely removed or relocated, or because rights-of-way were not available to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the orderly prosecution of PROJECT work.

Page of 165

Page 92

Item 10.



ARTICLE III - MAINTENANCE AND MANAGEMENT

1. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will maintain and operate the property acquired, developed,
constructed, rehabilitated, or restored by PROJECT for its intended public use until such time as
the parties might amend this AGREEMENT to otherwise provide. With the approval of STATE,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY or its successors in interest in the PROJECT property may transfer
this obligation and responsibility to maintain and operate PROJECT property for that intended
public purpose to another public entity.

2. Upon ADMINISTERING AGENCY's acceptance of the completed construction contract or
upon contractor being relieved of the responsibility for maintaining and protecting PROJECT,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be responsible for the maintenance, ownership, liability, and
the expense thereof, for PROJECT in a manner satisfactory to the authorized representatives of
STATE and if PROJECT falls within the jurisdictional limits of another Agency or Agencies, it is
the duty of ADMINISTERING AGENCY to facilitate a separate maintenance agreement(s)
between itself and the other jurisdictional Agency or Agencies providing for the operation,
maintenance, ownership and liability of PROJECT. Until those agreements are executed,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be responsible for all PROJECT operations, maintenance,
ownership and liability in a manner satisfactory to the authorized representatives of STATE. If,
within ninety (90) days after receipt of notice from STATE that a PROJECT, or any portion
thereof, is not being properly operated and maintained and ADMINISTERING AGENCY has not
satisfactorily remedied the conditions complained of, the approval of future STATE FUNDED
PROJECTS of ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be withheld until the PROJECT shall have been
put in a condition of operation and maintenance satisfactory to STATE. The provisions of this
section shall not apply to a PROJECT that has been vacated through due process of law with
STATE's concurrence.

3. PROJECT and its facilities shall be maintained by an adequate and well-trained staff of
engineers and/or such other professionals and technicians as PROJECT reasonably requires.
Said operations and maintenance staff may be employees of ADMINISTERING AGENCY,
another unit of government, or a contractor under agreement with ADMINISTERING AGENCY.
All maintenance will be performed at regular intervals or as required for efficient operation of the
complete PROJECT improvements.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with all applicable law, including but not limited to,
all applicable legal authority regarding construction standards.

Page of 166

Page 93

Item 10.



ARTICLE IV - FISCAL PROVISIONS

1. All contractual obligations of STATE are subject to the appropriation of resources by the
Legislature and the allocation of resources by the CTC.

2. STATE'S financial commitment of STATE FUNDS will occur only upon the execution of this
AGREEMENT, the execution of each project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and/or
STATE's approved finance letter.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, as a minimum, to submit invoices in arrears for
reimbursement of allowable PROJECT costs at least once every six months commencing after
the STATE FUNDS are encumbered on either the project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
or through a project-specific finance letter approved by STATE. STATE reserves the right to
suspend future allocations and invoice payments for any on-going or future STATE FUNDED
project performed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if PROJECT costs have not been invoiced by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY for a six-month period

4. Invoices shall be submitted on a standardized billing summary template, in accordance with
Chapter 5 of the LAPM to claim reimbursement by ADMINISTERING AGENCY. For
construction invoices, pay estimates must be included.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY must retain at least one copy of supporting backup
documentation for allowable costs incurred and claimed for reimbursement by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit supporting backup
documentation with invoices if requested by State. Acceptable backup documentation includes,
but is not limited to, agency's progress payment to the contractors, copies of cancelled checks
showing amounts made payable to vendors and contractors, and/or a computerized summary of
PROJECT costs.

6. Payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY can only be released by STATE as
reimbursements of actual allowable PROJECT costs already incurred and paid for by the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

7. Indirect Cost Allocation Plans/Indirect Cost Rate Proposals (ICAP/ICRP), Central Service
Cost Allocation Plans and related documentation are to be prepared and provided to the
Inspector General - Independent Office of Audits and Investigations for review and approval
prior to ADMINISTERING AGENCY seeking reimbursement of indirect cost incurred within each
fiscal year being claimed for reimbursement. ICAPs/ICRPs must be prepared in accordance
with the requirements set forth in 2 CFR, Part 200, Chapter 5 of the LAPM, and the ICAP/ICRP
approval procedures established by STATE.

8. STATE will withhold the greater of either two (2) percent of the total of all STATE FUNDS
encumbered for each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT or $40,000 until ADMINISTERING AGENCY
submits the Final Report of Expenditures for each completed PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
PROJECT.

9. The estimated total cost of PROJECT, the amount of STATE FUNDS obligated, and the
required matching funds may be adjusted by mutual consent of the PARTIES with a finance
letter, and an allocation notification letter when applicable. STATE FUNDING may be increased
to cover PROJECT cost increases only if such additional funds are available and the CTC
and/or STATE concurs with that increase in the

Page of 167

Page 94

Item 10.



form of an allocation and finance letter.

10. When such additional STATE FUNDS are not available, ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees
that any increases in PROJECT costs must be defrayed with ADMINISTERING AGENCY's own
funds.

11. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall use its own non-STATE FUNDS to finance the local share
of eligible costs and all PROJECT expenditures or contract items ruled ineligible for financing
with STATE FUNDS. STATE shall make the final determination of ADMINISTERING AGENCY's
cost eligibility for STATE FUNDED financing with respect to claimed PROJECT costs.

12. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will reimburse STATE for STATE's share of costs for work
performed by STATE at the request of ADMINISTERING AGENCY. STATE's costs shall include
overhead assessments in accordance with section 8755.1 of the State Administrative Manual.

13. STATE FUNDS allocated by the CTC and/or STATE are subject to the timely use of funds
provisions approved in CTC Guidelines and State procedures approved by the CTC and
STATE.

14. STATE FUNDS encumbered for PROJECT are available for liquidation only for a limited
period from the beginning of the State fiscal year when those funds were appropriated in the
State Budget. STATE FUNDS not liquidated within these periods will be reverted unless a
Cooperative Work Agreement (CWA) is submitted by ADMINISTERING AGENCY and
approved by the California Department of Finance in accordance with Section 16304 of the
Government Code. The exact date of fund reversion will be reflected in the STATE signed
PROJECT finance letter.

15. Payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY for PROJECT-related travel and subsistence (per
diem) expenses of ADMINISTERING AGENCY forces and its contractors and subcontractors
claimed for reimbursement or as local match credit shall not exceed rates authorized to be paid
to rank and file STATE employees under current California Department of Human Resources
(CalHR) rules unless a Cooperative Work Agreement (CWA) is submitted by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY and approved by the California Department of Finance in accordance with
Government Code section 16304. If the rates invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY are in
excess of CalHR rates, ADMINISTERING AGENCY is responsible for the cost difference, and
any overpayments inadvertently paid by STATE shall be reimbursed to STATE by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY on demand.

16. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with California Government Code 4525-
4529.14. Administering Agency shall undertake the procedures described in California
Government Code 4527(a) and 4528(a). Administering Agency shall also comply with 2 CFR
Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirement for
Federal Awards, excluding 2 CFR Part 200.318-200.326.

17. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees and will assure that its contractors and subcontractors
will be obligated to agree that Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal
Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31, et seq., shall be used to determine the
allowability of individual PROJECT cost items.

Page of 168

Page 95

Item 10.



Every recipient and sub-recipient receiving PROJECT funds under this AGREEMENT shall
comply with Federal administrative procedures in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards,
excluding 2 CFR Part 200.318-200.326Governments. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to
comply with the provisions set forth in 23 CFR Parts 140, 645 and 646 when contracting with
railroad and utility companies.

18. Every recipient and sub-recipient receiving PROJECT funds under this AGREEMENT shall
comply with 2 CFR 200 excluding 2 CFR Part 200.318-200.326, 48 CFR Chapter 1, Part 31,
LAPM, Public Contract Code (PCC) 10300- 10334 (procurement of goods), PCC 10335-10381
(non-A&E services), California Government Code 4525-4529.5 including 4527(a) and 4528(a),
and other applicable STATE regulations.

19. Any PROJECT costs for which ADMINISTERING AGENCY has received payment or credit
that are determined by subsequent audit to be questioned, disallowed, or unallowable under 2
CFR, Part 200, 48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31, 23 CFR Parts 140, 645 and 646, LAPM, Public
Contract Code (PCC) 10300-10334 (procurement of goods), PCC 10335-10381 (non-A&E
services), California Government Code 4525-4529.5 including 4527(a) and 4528(a), and other
applicable STATE regulations are subject to repayment by ADMINISTERING AGENCY to
STATE and may result in STATE imposing sanctions on ADMINISTERING AGENCY as
described in Chapter 20 of the Local Assistance Procedures Manual.

20. Should ADMINISTERING AGENCY fail to refund any moneys due upon written demand by
STATE as provided herein or should ADMINISTERING AGENCY breach this AGREEMENT by
failing to complete PROJECT without adequate justification and approval by STATE, then,
within thirty (30) days of demand, or within such other period as may be agreed to in writing
between the PARTIES hereto, STATE, acting through the State Controller, the State Treasurer,
the CTC or any other public entity or agency, may intercept, withhold and demand the transfer
of an amount equal to the amount paid by or owed to STATE for each PROJECT, from future
apportionments, or any other funds due ADMINISTERING AGENCY from the Highway Users
Tax Fund or any other sources of funds, and/or may also withhold approval of future STATE
FUNDED projects proposed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

21. Should ADMINISTERING AGENCY be declared to be in breach of this AGREEMENT or
otherwise in default thereof by STATE, and if ADMINISTERING AGENCY is constituted as a
joint powers authority, special district, or any other public entity not directly receiving funds
through the State Controller, STATE is authorized to obtain reimbursement from whatever
sources of funding are available, including the withholding or transfer of funds, 20from those
constituent entities comprising a joint powers authority or by bringing of an action against
ADMINISTERING AGENCY or its constituent member entities, to recover all funds provided by
STATE hereunder.

22. ADMINISTERING AGENCY acknowledges that the signatory party represents the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and further warrants that there is nothing within a Joint Powers
Agreement, by which ADMINISTERING AGENCY was created, if any exists, that would restrict
or otherwise limit STATE's ability to recover STATE FUNDS improperly spent by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY in contravention of the terms of this AGREEMENT.

Page of 169

Page 96

Item 10.



ARTICLE V

AUDITS, THIRD PARTY CONTRACTING, RECORDS RETENTION AND REPORTS

1. STATE reserves the right to conduct technical and financial audits of PROJECT work and
records and ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, and shall require its contractors and
subcontractors to agree, to cooperate with STATE by making all appropriate and relevant
PROJECT records available for audit and copying as required by paragraph three (3) of Article
V.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractors and subcontractors shall establish and maintain
a financial management system and records that properly accumulate and segregate
reasonable, allowable, and allocable incurred PROJECT costs and matching funds by line item
for the PROJECT. The financial management system of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its
contractors and all subcontractors shall conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
enable the determination of incurred costs at interim points of completion, and provide support
for reimbursement payment vouchers or invoices sent to or paid by STATE.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, ADMINISTERING AGENCY's contractors and subcontractors,
and STATE shall each maintain and make available for inspection and audit by STATE, the
California State Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of STATE or the United States,
all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the
performance of such contracts, including, but not limited to, the costs of administering those
various contracts, and ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall furnish copies thereof if requested. All
of the above-referenced parties shall make such AGREEMENT and PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the entire PROJECT
period and for three (3) years, or 35 years for Prop 1B funds, from the date of final payment to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not award a construction contract over $25,000 on the
basis of a noncompetitive negotiation for work to be performed under this AGREEMENT without
the prior written approval of STATE. All contracts awarded by ADMINISTERING AGENCY
intended or used as local match credit must meet the requirements set forth in this
AGREEMENT regarding local match funds.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 4525)
Division 5 of Title 1 of the Government Code and shall undertake the procedures described in
California Government Code 4527(a) and 4528(a). Administering Agency shall comply with
Chapter 10 of the LAPM for A&E Consultant Contracts.

6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with Government Code Division 5 Title 1 sections
4525-4529.5 and shall undertake the procedures described in California Government Code
4527(a) and 4528(a) for procurement of professional service contracts. Administering Agency
shall follow Public Contract Code Section 10335-10381 for other professional service contracts.

7. Any subcontract entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY as a result of this AGREEMENT
shall contain all of the provisions of Article IV, FISCAL PROVISIONS, and this ARTICLE V,
AUDITS, THIRD-PARTY CONTRACTING, RECORDS RETENTION AND REPORTS and shall
mandate that travel and per diem reimbursements and third-

Page of 1610

Page 97

Item 10.



party contract reimbursements to subcontractors will be allowable as PROJECT costs only after
those costs are incurred and paid for by the subcontractors.

8. To be eligible for local match credit, ADMINISTERING AGENCY must ensure that local
match funds used for a PROJECT meet the fiscal provisions requirements outlined in ARTICLE
IV in the same manner that is required of all other PROJECT expenditures.

9. Except as provided in this Article, this AGREEMENT is solely between and for the benefit of
the PARTIES and there are no third-party beneficiaries.

Page of 1611

Page 98

Item 10.



ARTICLE VI - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
1. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to use all PROJECT funds reimbursed hereunder only
for transportation purposes that are in conformance with Article XIX of the California State
Constitution and other California laws.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall conform to all applicable State and Federal statutes and
regulations, and the Local Assistance Program Guidelines and Local Assistance Procedures
Manual as published by STATE and incorporated herein, including all subsequent approved
revisions thereto applicable to PROJECT unless otherwise designated in the project-specific
executed PROJECT SUPPLEMENT.

3. This AGREEMENT is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, conditions, or any
statute enacted by the State Legislature or adopted by the CTC that may affect the provisions,
terms, or funding of this AGREEMENT in any manner.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY and the officers and employees of ADMINISTERING AGENCY,
when engaged in the performance of this AGREEMENT, shall act in an independent capacity
and not as officers, employees or agents of STATE.

5. Each project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall separately establish the terms and
funding limits for each described PROJECT funded under this AGREEMENT and that
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT. No STATE FUNDS are obligated against this AGREEMENT.

6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY certifies that neither ADMINISTERING AGENCY nor its
principals are suspended or debarred at the time of the execution of this AGREEMENT, and
ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that it will notify STATE immediately in the event a
suspension or a debarment occurs after the execution of this AGREEMENT.

7. ADMINISTERING AGENCY certifies, by execution of this AGREEMENT, that no person or
selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this AGREEMENT upon an
agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee,
excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies
maintained by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the purpose of securing business. For breach or
violation of this warranty, STATE has the right to annul this AGREEMENT without liability, pay
only for the value of the PROJECT work actually performed, or in STATE's discretion, to deduct
from the price of PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT consideration, or otherwise recover, the full
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

8. In accordance with Public Contract Code section 10296, ADMINISTERING AGENCY hereby
certifies under penalty of perjury that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt
of court by a federal court has been issued against ADMINISTERING AGENCY within the
immediate preceding two (2) year period because of ADMINISTERING AGENCY's failure to
comply with an order of a federal court that orders ADMINISTERING AGENCY to comply with
an order of the National Labor Relations Board.
9. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship with
STATE that may have an impact upon the outcome of this AGREEMENT or any individual
PROJECT encompassed within a PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY
shall also list current contractors who may have a financial interest in the outcome of a
PROJECT undertaken pursuant to this

Page of 1612

Page 99

Item 10.



AGREEMENT. These disclosures shall be delivered to STATE in a form deemed acceptable by
the STATE prior to execution of this AGREEMENT.

10. ADMINISTERING AGENCY hereby certifies that it does not have, nor shall it acquire, any
financial or business interest that would conflict with the performance of any PROJECT initiated
under this AGREEMENT.

11. ADMINISTERING AGENCY certifies that this AGREEMENT was not obtained or secured
through rebates, kickbacks or other unlawful consideration either promised or paid to any
STATE employee. For breach or violation of this warranty, STATE shall have the right, in its
sole discretion, to terminate this AGREEMENT without liability, to pay only for PROJECT work
actually performed, or to deduct from a PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT price or otherwise recover
the full amount of such rebate, kickback, or other unlawful consideration.

12. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this AGREEMENT that is not
disposed of by agreement shall be decided by the STATE's Contract Manager, who shall be
identified to ADMINISTERING AGENCY at the time of execution of this AGREEMENT and, as
applicable , any time that Contract Manager changes during the duration of this AGREEMENT
who may consider any written or verbal evidence submitted by ADMINISTERING AGENCY.
The decision of the Contract Manager, issued in writing, shall be conclusive and binding on the
PARTIES on all questions of fact considered and determined by the Contract Manager.

13. Neither the pending of a dispute nor its consideration by the Contract Manager will excuse
the ADMINISTERING AGENCY from full and timely performance in accordance with the terms
of this AGREEMENT and each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT.

14. Neither STATE nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury, damage or
liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction of ADMINISTERING
AGENCY arising under this AGREEMENT. It is understood and agreed that ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall fully defend, indemnify and save harmless STATE and all of its officers and
employees from all claims and suits or actions of every name, kind and description brought forth
under, including but not limited to, tortuous, contractual, inverse condemnation or other theories
or assertions of liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY under this AGREEMENT.

15. Neither ADMINISTERING AGENCY nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for
any injury, damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by,
under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction arising under this AGREEMENT. It
is understood and agreed that STATE shall fully defend, indemnify and save harmless the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and all of its officers and employees from all claims, suits or
actions of every name, kind and description brought forth under, including but not limited to,
tortuous, contractual, inverse condemnation and other theories or assertions of liability
occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by STATE under this
AGREEMENT.

16. In the event of (a) ADMINISTERING AGENCY failing to timely proceed with effective
PROJECT work in accordance with the project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT; (b) failing
to maintain any applicable bonding requirements; and (c)

Page of 1613

Page 100

Item 10.



otherwise materially violating the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT and/or any
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, STATE reserves the right to terminate funding for that PROJECT
upon thirty (30) days' written notice to ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA                                City of Coachella
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
By______________________________        By_______________________________
________________________________         _______________________________
Chief, Office of Project Implementation           City of Coachella
Division of Local Assistance                            Representative Name & Title
                                                                        (Authorized Governing Body Representative)
Date __________________________            Date __________________________

17. No termination notice shall become effective if, within thirty (30) days after
receipt of a Notice of Termination, ADMINISTERING AGENCY either cures the default
involved or, if the default is not reasonably susceptible of cure within said thirty (30)
day period the ADMINISTERING AGENCY proceeds thereafter to complete that cure
in a manner and time line acceptable to STATE.

18. Any such termination shall be accomplished by delivery to ADMINISTERING
AGENCY of a Notice of Termination, which notice shall become effective not less
than thirty (30) days after receipt, specifying the reason for the termination, the
extent to which funding of work under this AGREEMENT and the applicable
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT is terminated and the date upon which such termination
becomes effective, if beyond thirty (30) days after receipt. During the period before
the effective termination date, ADMINISTERING AGENCY and STATE shall meet to
attempt to resolve any dispute. In the event of such termination, STATE may
proceed with the PROJECT work in a manner deemed proper by STATE. If STATE
terminates funding for PROJECT with ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the reasons
stated in paragraph sixteen (16) of ARTICLE VI, STATE shall pay ADMINISTERING
AGENCY the sum due ADMINISTERING AGENCY under the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
and/or STATE-approved finance letter prior to termination, provided, however,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY is not in default of the terms and conditions of this
AGREEMENT or the project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and that the cost of any
PROJECT completion to STATE shall first be deducted from any sum due
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

19. In the case of inconsistency or conflicts with the terms of this AGREEMENT and
that of a project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and/or Cooperative Agreement,
the terms stated in that PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and/or Cooperative Agreement
shall prevail over those in this AGREEMENT.

20. Without the written consent of STATE, this AGREEMENT is not assignable by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY either in whole or in part.

21. No alteration or variation of the terms of this AGREEMENT shall be valid unless
made in writing and signed by the PARTIES, and no oral understanding or
agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the PARTIES.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this AGREEMENT by their
duly authorized officer.

Page of 1614

Page 101

Item 10.



EXHIBIT A - FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ADDENDUM

1. In the performance of this Agreement, ADMINISTERING AGENCY will not discriminate
against any employee for employment on account of race, religious creed, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital
status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and
veteran status. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will take affirmative action to ensure that employees
are treated during employment without regard to their race, religious creed, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information,
marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or
military and veteran status. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
employment; upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or
termination; rates  of  pay  or  other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall post in conspicuous places, available to
employees for employment, notices to be provided by STATE setting forth the provisions of this
Fair Employment section.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractor(s) and all subcontractors shall comply with the
provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code, 1290-0 et seq.), and the
applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code Regs., Title 2, 11000, et seq.). The
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing
Government Code section 12900(a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division  4  of  Title  2  of  the
California Code of Regulations are incorporated into this AGREEMENT by reference and made
a part hereof as if set forth in full. Each of the ADMINISTERING AGENCY'S contractors and all
subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor
organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreements, as appropriate.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of
this clause in all contracts and subcontracts to perform work under this AGREEMENT.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will permit access to the records of employment, employment
advertisements, application forms, and other pertinent data and records by STATE, the State
Fair Employment and Housing Commission, or any other agency of the State of California
designated by STATE, for the purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the Fair
Employment section of this Agreement.

5. Remedies for Willful Violation:

(a) STATE may determine a willful violation of the Fair Employment provision to have occurred
upon receipt of a final judgment to that effect from a court in an action to which
ADMINISTERING AGENCY was a party, or upon receipt of a written notice from the Fair
Employment and Housing Commission that it has investigated and determined that
ADMINISTERING AGENCY has violated the Fair Employment Practices Act.

(b) For willful violation of this Fair Employment Provision, STATE shall have the right

Page of 1615

Page 102

Item 10.



to terminate this Agreement either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage sustained by
STATE in securing the goods or services thereunder shall be borne and paid for by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and by the surety under the performance bond, if any, and STATE
may deduct from any moneys due or thereafter may become due to ADMINISTERING
AGENCY, the difference between the price named in the Agreement and the actual cost thereof
to STATE to cure ADMINISTERING AGENCY's breach of this Agreement.

Page of 1616

Page 103

Item 10.



Page 104

Item 10.



SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

08-RIV-0-COA
LRSPL-5294(019)

1. All obligations of STATE under the terms of this Agreement are subject to the appropriation of
resources by the Legislature and the encumbrance of funds under this Agreement. Funding
and reimbursement are available only upon the passage of the State Budget Act containing
these STATE funds.

2. Any State and Federal funds that may have been encumbered for this project are available for
disbursement for limited periods of time.  For each fund encumbrance the limited period is
from the start of the fiscal year that the specific fund was appropriated within the State Budget
Act to the applicable fund Reversion Date shown on the State approved project finance letter.
Per Government Code Section 16304, all project funds not liquidated within these periods will
revert unless an executed Cooperative Work Agreement extending these dates is requested
by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY and approved by the California Department of Finance.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY should ensure that invoices are submitted to the District Local
Assistance Engineer at least 75 days prior to the applicable fund Reversion Date to avoid the
lapse of applicable funds. Pursuant to a directive from the State Controller's Office and the
Department of Finance; in order for payment to be made, the last date the District Local
Assistance Engineer can forward an invoice for payment to the Department's Local Programs
Accounting Office for reimbursable work for funds that are going to revert at the end of a
particular fiscal year is May 15th of the particular fiscal year.  Notwithstanding the unliquidated
sums of project specific State and Federal funding remaining and available to fund project
work, any invoice for reimbursement involving applicable funds that is not received by the
Department's Local Programs Accounting Office at least 45 days prior to the applicable fixed
fund Reversion Date will not be paid.  These unexpended funds will be irrevocably reverted by
the Department's Division of Accounting on the applicable fund Reversion Date.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with the requirements in 2 CFR Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (applicable to Federal and State Funded Projects).

4. This PROJECT is funded with State-Only funding from the Local Roadway Safety Plan
(LRSP) Program. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to develop an LRSP under this
PROJECT.

The ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to follow all relevant State laws and requirements
including the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

This PSA allows reimbursement of eligible PROJECT expenditures to the ADMINISTERING
AGENCY for which the LRSP State funds are allocated.  The effective State allocation date
establishes the eligibility date for the ADMINISTERING AGENCY to start reimbursable work.
Any work performed prior the effective allocation date is not eligible for reimbursement from
the LRSP funds.

2Page of 3Program Supplement 08--529-X76- SERIALPage 105

Item 10.



SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

08-RIV-0-COA
LRSPL-5294(019)

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that LRSP funds available for reimbursement will be
limited to the amount allocated and encumbered by the STATE consistent with the scope of
work in the STATE approved application.  Funds encumbered may not be used for a modified
scope of work after a project is awarded unless approved by the Statewide LRSP Coordinator
prior to performing work.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to the program delivery and reporting requirements. The
study and the LRSP must be completed within thirty-six (36) months of the funding allocation.
The Final Report of Expenditure, the final invoice and the LRSP report must be submitted to
the DLAE within six (6) months of the report completion.

3Page of 3Program Supplement 08--529-X76- SERIALPage 106

Item 10.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Award maintenance agreement to BRC Construction for As Needed 

Miscellaneous Repair Work for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance 

Districts Project No. 081122. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award maintenance agreement to BRC Construction for As Needed Miscellaneous Repair Work 

for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Project No. 081122. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City published a Request for Proposals (RFP) for As Needed Miscellaneous Repair Work 

for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Project No. 081122.  This RFP closed on 

September 14, 2022 and the City received one response.   

The RFP was published to obtain a general contractor that can complete minor jobs as needed 

throughout the LLMDs; examples of work assignments include: cleanup of disposed items, sign 

repair, playground equipment repair/replacement.  Staff has reviewed the response received from 

BRC Construction and recommends approval of a maintenance agreement.  The agreement as 

identified in the RFP will have a term commencing October 15, 2022 – October 14, 2025 and not 

exceed $450,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The recommended action will not have a negative impact on the budget.  The award amount is 

allocated in the LLMD Budget. 

 

Attachment: 

Proposed Agreement  

 

 

Page 107

Item 11.



B-1 

 

As Needed Miscellaneous Repair Work for the Landscape 
and Lighting Maintenance Districts 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 2022 by and between 

the City of Coachella, a municipal organization organized under the laws of the State of California 

with its principal place of business at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 92236, 

(hereinafter referred to as “City”) and BRC Construction with its principal place of business at 

P.O. Box 491, Palm Desert, CA 92261 (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”).  City and 

Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties” in this 

Agreement. 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 Contractor. 

Contractor desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 

maintenance services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  

Contractor represents that it is experienced in providing Miscellaneous Repair Maintenance 

services to public clients, that it and its employees or subcontractors have all necessary licenses 

and permits to perform the Services in the State of California, and that is familiar with the plans 

of City. 

2.2 Project. 

City desires to engage Contractor to render such services for As Needed Miscellaneous 

Repair Work for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Project No. 081122 (“Project”) 

as set forth in this Agreement. 

2.3 License Requirements. 

The Contractor must obtain a City of Coachella Business License and show proof that it 

possesses at a minimum an active State Contractor License as required by the State of California 

in conformance with performing the duties under this contract. 

 

 

 

 

Page 108

Item 11.



2 

 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Contractor promises and agrees to furnish to 

the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 

necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional Miscellaneous Repair Maintenance 

services necessary for the Project (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject 

to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and 

regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from October 15, 2022 to October 14, 

2025, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, 

extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to complete the Services. Contractor shall complete 

the Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 

deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if 

necessary to complete the Services.  

3.2 Responsibilities of Contractor. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 

Services shall be performed by Contractor or under its supervision.  Contractor will determine the 

means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 

Agreement.  City retains Contractor on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  

Contractor retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of 

this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf 

of Contractor shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under Contractor’s 

exclusive direction and control.  Contractor shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due 

such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as 

required by law.  Contractor shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 

additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax withholding, 

unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services expeditiously, 

within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services set forth in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Contractor represents that it has 

the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in conformance with 

such conditions.  In order to facilitate Contractor’s conformance with the Schedule, City shall 

respond to Contractor’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, Contractor shall 

provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 

Contractor shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates the City Manager, or his 

or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“City’s 

Page 109

Item 11.



3 

 

Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the City for all 

purposes under this Agreement.  Contractor shall not accept direction or orders from any person 

other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.5 Contractor’s Representative.  Contractor hereby designates Branden 

Rickard or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 

(“Contractor’s Representative”).  Contractor’s Representative shall have full authority to represent 

and act on behalf of the Contractor for all purposes under this Agreement.  The Contractor’s 

Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and attention, and shall 

be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the 

satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.6 Coordination of Services.  Contractor agrees to work closely with City staff 

in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other staff at 

all reasonable times. 

3.2.7 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Contractor shall perform all 

Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 

generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 

California.  Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling 

necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor warrants that all employees and subcontractors shall 

have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor 

represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 

approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City 

Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of 

this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Contractor 

shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the City, any services 

necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Contractor’s failure to comply 

with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Contractor or its sub-

contractors who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 

adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any 

employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be 

promptly removed from the Project by the Contractor and shall not be re-employed to perform any 

of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.7.1  Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Contractor 

shall perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 

3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Contractor shall perform the Services in strict accordance with 

any completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits “A” or “B” attached hereto, 

or which may be provided separately in writing to the Contractor.  Contractor agrees that if the 

Services specified in Exhibit “D”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, are 

not completed within the aforementioned Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such 

completion schedule or Project milestones developed pursuant to provisions of this Agreement, it 

is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer damage.  Pursuant to Government 

Code Section 53069.85, Contractor shall pay to the City as fixed and liquidated damages, and not 

as a penalty, the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per day for each and every calendar 

Page 110

Item 11.



4 

 

day of delay beyond the Performance Time or beyond any completion schedule or Project 

milestones established pursuant to this Agreement. 

3.2.8 Laws and Regulations.  Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of and in 

compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 

performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall give 

all notices required by law.  Contractor shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations 

in connection with Services.  If the Contractor performs any work knowing it to be contrary to 

such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, Contractor shall be 

solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 

City, its officials, directors, officers, employees and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the 

indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure 

or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.9 Insurance. 

3.2.9.1 Time for Compliance.  Contractor shall not commence Work under 

this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has secured all 

insurance required under this section.  In addition, Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to 

commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that the 

subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.9.2 Minimum Requirements.  Contractor shall, at its expense, procure 

and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 

damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 

Agreement by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  Contractor 

shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the 

duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of 

coverage: 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 

broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 

Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 

Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and 

(3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 

required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain 

limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with general 

aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general aggregate 

limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice 

the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ 

Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California.  Employer’s 

Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

Page 111

Item 11.



5 

 

3.2.9.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall contain the 

following provisions, or Contractor shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved by 

the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 

endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations performed 

by or on behalf of the Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection 

with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an 

unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not be called upon 

to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall 

be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 

maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 

Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s 

scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s 

insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 

insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Contractor. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 

or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.9.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance 

required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, such 

insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the City, 

its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.9.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-

insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Contractor shall guarantee that, 

at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-

insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

Page 112

Item 11.



6 

 

volunteers; or (2) the Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigation costs, claims and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.9.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers 

with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in California, and 

satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.9.7 Verification of Coverage.  Contractor shall furnish City with 

original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement 

on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy 

shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be 

on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and endorsements must be received 

and approved by the City before work commences.  The City reserves the right to require complete, 

certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.9.8 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in addition 

to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in connection with 

the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.10 Safety.  Contractor shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury 

or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Contractor shall at all times 

be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall 

exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature of the work 

and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as applicable shall 

include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving equipment and 

procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and subcontractors, such as 

safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, 

trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing apparel as are 

necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the 

proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Contractor shall receive compensation, including 

authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in 

Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation shall 

not exceed Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($450,000.00).  Extra Work 

may be authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and 

manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Contractor shall submit to City a monthly 

itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Contractor.  

The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the initial 

commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, through 

the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review the 

statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

Page 113

Item 11.



7 

 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Contractor shall not be reimbursed for any 

expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 

request that Contractor perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work which 

is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which the parties 

did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  Contractor 

shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization from City’s 

Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Contractor is aware of the requirements of California 

Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, 

Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of prevailing 

wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” and “maintenance” 

projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or 

“maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is 

$1,000 or more, Contractor agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  City shall 

provide Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the 

commencement of this Agreement.  Contractor shall make copies of the prevailing rates of per 

diem wages for each craft; classification or type of worker needed to execute the Services available 

to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Contractor’s principal place of 

business and at the project site.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its elected 

officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or liability arising out 

of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Contractor shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 

records shall be clearly identifiable.  Contractor shall allow a representative of City during normal 

business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other 

documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall allow inspection of all work, data, 

documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years 

from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to Contractor, 

terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving written 

notice to Contractor of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at least seven 

(7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be 

compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, and Contractor 

shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Contractor may not terminate this Agreement except 

for cause. 

Page 114

Item 11.



8 

 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 

herein, City may require Contractor to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data and 

other information of any kind prepared by Contractor in connection with the performance of 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be required to provide such document and other 

information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 

whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it 

may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this Agreement 

shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 

respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

CONTRACTOR: 

   BRC CONSTRUCTION  

Address: PO Box 491 

Palm Desert, CA 92261 

Attn: Branden Rickard 

 

 

CITY: 
City of Coachella 

53-462 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Attn: Maritza Martinez 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 

(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at 

its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 

occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 

appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.4 Attorney’s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other 

party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 

the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 

reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.5 Indemnification.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its 

officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, 

demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage, or injury, in law or equity, to 

property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of or incident to any 

alleged acts, omissions or willful misconduct of Contractor, its officials, officers, employees, 

agents, consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the 

Page 115

Item 11.



9 

 

Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all 

consequential damages and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Contractor shall 

defend, at Contractor’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 

other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, 

award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Contractor shall reimburse 

City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal 

expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity 

herein provided.  Contractor’s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, 

if any, received by the City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

3.5.6 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both 

parties. 

3.5.7 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.8 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 

this Agreement. 

3.5.9 City’s Right to Employ Other Contractors.  City reserves right to employ 

other contractors in connection with this Project. 

3.5.10 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors 

and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.11 Assignment or Transfer.  Contractor shall not assign, hypothecate or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 

prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 

hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 

assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.12 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 

participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 

construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any term 

referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work days.  

All references to Contractor include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 

Contractor, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its 

elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 

Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 

reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content or intent of this 

Agreement. 

3.5.13 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment of 

this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

Page 116

Item 11.



10 

 

3.5.14 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 

default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 

contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 

beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.16 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 

provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.17 Prohibited Interests.  Contractor maintains and warrants that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 

for Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Contractor warrants that it has not 

paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 

solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Contractor further 

agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subcontractors to file, a Statement of Economic 

Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 

Services.  For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 

Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 

City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 

Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.18 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Contractor represents that it is an equal 

opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex 

or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial 

employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 

termination.  Contractor shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority Business 

Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines currently in 

effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.19 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor certifies that it 

is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every 

employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance 

in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such provisions before 

commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.20 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Contractor has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 

warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 

authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.21 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original. 

Page 117

Item 11.



11 

 

 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of 

the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 

approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 

provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 118

Item 11.



12 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA    BRC CONSTRUCTION  

        

By:                                                      By:                                                      

Dr. Gabriel D. Martin    Branden Rickard   

City Manager     Owner 

 

Attest: 

                                                      

Andrea Carranza, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Carlos Campos, City Attorney 

Page 119

Item 11.



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

1. Maintenance and repair Landscape Lighting and Maintenance District properties and 

improvements in those areas.   

  

Page 120

Item 11.



B-1 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

1. Services for this maintenance agreement are as needed.  Response times based on 

urgency of repair are as follows: 

a. Emergency Repair: 30 minutes – 2 hours 

b. Non-Emergency Repair: 1-10 days 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 121

Item 11.



 

C-1 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

 

LICENSED CONTRACTOR HOURLY COST -   $150.00 PER HOUR 

APPRENTICE/HELPER HOURLY COST -   $75.00 PER HOUR 

TRAVEL TIME FLAT RATE -     $125 PER TRIP 

MATERIAL COST -      10% MARKUP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 122

Item 11.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Award maintenance agreement to BRC Construction for As Needed Block Wall 

and Wrought Iron Fence Repairs for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance 

Districts Project No. 081122B. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award maintenance agreement to BRC Construction for As Needed Block Wall and Wrought 

Iron Fence Repairs for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Project No. 081122B. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City published a Request for Proposals (RFP) for As Needed Block Wall and Wrought Iron 

Fence Repairs for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Project No. 081122B.  This 

RFP closed on September 14, 2022 at 2pm and the City received one response.   

The RFP was published to obtain a general contractor that can complete fence and masonry wall 

repairs throughout the LLMDs; these repairs are required from time to time due to traffic 

collisions that affect these improvements, vandalism or age of improvement.  Staff has reviewed 

the response received from BRC Construction and recommends approval of a maintenance 

agreement.  The agreement as identified in the RFP will have a term commencing October 15, 

2022 – October 14, 2025 and not exceed $450,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The recommended action will not have a negative impact on the budget.  The award amount is 

allocated in the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 LLMD Budget. 

 

Attachment: 

Proposed Agreement  

 

 

Page 123

Item 12.



B-1 

 

As Needed Block Wall and Wrought Iron Fence Repairs for 
the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 2022 by and between 

the City of Coachella, a municipal organization organized under the laws of the State of California 

with its principal place of business at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 92236, 

(hereinafter referred to as “City”) and BRC Construction with its principal place of business at 

P.O. Box 491, Palm Desert, CA 92261 (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”).  City and 

Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties” in this 

Agreement. 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 Contractor. 

Contractor desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 

maintenance services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  

Contractor represents that it is experienced in providing Block Wall and Wrought Iron Fencing 

Repair Maintenance services to public clients, that it and its employees or subcontractors have all 

necessary licenses and permits to perform the Services in the State of California, and that is 

familiar with the plans of City. 

2.2 Project. 

City desires to engage Contractor to render such services for As Needed Block Wall and 

Wrought Iron Fence Repairs for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Project No 

081122B (“Project”) as set forth in this Agreement. 

2.3 License Requirements. 

The Contractor must obtain a City of Coachella Business License and show proof that it 

possesses at a minimum an active State Contractor License as required by the State of California 

in conformance with performing the duties under this contract. 

 

 

 

 

Page 124

Item 12.



2 

 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Contractor promises and agrees to furnish to 

the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 

necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional Block Wall and Wrought Iron Fence 

Repair Maintenance services necessary for the Project (“Services”).  The Services are more 

particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All 

Services shall be subject to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal 

laws, rules and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from October 15, 2022 to October 14, 

2025, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, 

extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to complete the Services. Contractor shall complete 

the Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 

deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if 

necessary to complete the Services.  

3.2 Responsibilities of Contractor. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 

Services shall be performed by Contractor or under its supervision.  Contractor will determine the 

means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 

Agreement.  City retains Contractor on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  

Contractor retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of 

this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf 

of Contractor shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under Contractor’s 

exclusive direction and control.  Contractor shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due 

such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as 

required by law.  Contractor shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 

additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax withholding, 

unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services expeditiously, 

within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services set forth in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Contractor represents that it has 

the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in conformance with 

such conditions.  In order to facilitate Contractor’s conformance with the Schedule, City shall 

respond to Contractor’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, Contractor shall 

provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 

Contractor shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates the City Manager, or his 

or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“City’s 

Page 125

Item 12.



3 

 

Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the City for all 

purposes under this Agreement.  Contractor shall not accept direction or orders from any person 

other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.5 Contractor’s Representative.  Contractor hereby designates Branden 

Rickard or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 

(“Contractor’s Representative”).  Contractor’s Representative shall have full authority to represent 

and act on behalf of the Contractor for all purposes under this Agreement.  The Contractor’s 

Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and attention, and shall 

be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the 

satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.6 Coordination of Services.  Contractor agrees to work closely with City staff 

in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other staff at 

all reasonable times. 

3.2.7 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Contractor shall perform all 

Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 

generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 

California.  Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling 

necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor warrants that all employees and subcontractors shall 

have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor 

represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 

approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City 

Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of 

this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Contractor 

shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the City, any services 

necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Contractor’s failure to comply 

with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Contractor or its sub-

contractors who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 

adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any 

employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be 

promptly removed from the Project by the Contractor and shall not be re-employed to perform any 

of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.7.1  Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Contractor 

shall perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 

3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Contractor shall perform the Services in strict accordance with 

any completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits “A” or “B” attached hereto, 

or which may be provided separately in writing to the Contractor.  Contractor agrees that if the 

Services specified in Exhibit “D”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, are 

not completed within the aforementioned Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such 

completion schedule or Project milestones developed pursuant to provisions of this Agreement, it 

is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer damage.  Pursuant to Government 

Code Section 53069.85, Contractor shall pay to the City as fixed and liquidated damages, and not 

as a penalty, the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per day for each and every calendar 

Page 126

Item 12.



4 

 

day of delay beyond the Performance Time or beyond any completion schedule or Project 

milestones established pursuant to this Agreement. 

3.2.8 Laws and Regulations.  Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of and in 

compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 

performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall give 

all notices required by law.  Contractor shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations 

in connection with Services.  If the Contractor performs any work knowing it to be contrary to 

such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, Contractor shall be 

solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 

City, its officials, directors, officers, employees and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the 

indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure 

or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.9 Insurance. 

3.2.9.1 Time for Compliance.  Contractor shall not commence Work under 

this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has secured all 

insurance required under this section.  In addition, Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to 

commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that the 

subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.9.2 Minimum Requirements.  Contractor shall, at its expense, procure 

and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 

damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 

Agreement by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  Contractor 

shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the 

duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of 

coverage: 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 

broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 

Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 

Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and 

(3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 

required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain 

limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with general 

aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general aggregate 

limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice 

the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ 

Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California.  Employer’s 

Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

Page 127

Item 12.



5 

 

3.2.9.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall contain the 

following provisions, or Contractor shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved by 

the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 

endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations performed 

by or on behalf of the Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection 

with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an 

unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not be called upon 

to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall 

be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 

maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 

Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s 

scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s 

insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 

insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Contractor. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 

or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.9.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance 

required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, such 

insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the City, 

its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.9.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-

insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Contractor shall guarantee that, 

at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-

insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

Page 128

Item 12.



6 

 

volunteers; or (2) the Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigation costs, claims and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.9.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers 

with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in California, and 

satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.9.7 Verification of Coverage.  Contractor shall furnish City with 

original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement 

on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy 

shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be 

on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and endorsements must be received 

and approved by the City before work commences.  The City reserves the right to require complete, 

certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.9.8 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in addition 

to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in connection with 

the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.10 Safety.  Contractor shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury 

or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Contractor shall at all times 

be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall 

exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature of the work 

and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as applicable shall 

include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving equipment and 

procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and subcontractors, such as 

safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, 

trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing apparel as are 

necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the 

proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Contractor shall receive compensation, including 

authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in 

Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation shall 

not exceed Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($450,000.00).  Extra Work 

may be authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and 

manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Contractor shall submit to City a monthly 

itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Contractor.  

The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the initial 

commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, through 

the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review the 

statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

Page 129

Item 12.



7 

 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Contractor shall not be reimbursed for any 

expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 

request that Contractor perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work which 

is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which the parties 

did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  Contractor 

shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization from City’s 

Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Contractor is aware of the requirements of California 

Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, 

Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of prevailing 

wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” and “maintenance” 

projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or 

“maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is 

$1,000 or more, Contractor agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  City shall 

provide Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the 

commencement of this Agreement.  Contractor shall make copies of the prevailing rates of per 

diem wages for each craft; classification or type of worker needed to execute the Services available 

to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Contractor’s principal place of 

business and at the project site.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its elected 

officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or liability arising out 

of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Contractor shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 

records shall be clearly identifiable.  Contractor shall allow a representative of City during normal 

business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other 

documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall allow inspection of all work, data, 

documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years 

from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to Contractor, 

terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving written 

notice to Contractor of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at least seven 

(7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be 

compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, and Contractor 

shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Contractor may not terminate this Agreement except 

for cause. 

Page 130

Item 12.



8 

 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 

herein, City may require Contractor to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data and 

other information of any kind prepared by Contractor in connection with the performance of 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be required to provide such document and other 

information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 

whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it 

may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this Agreement 

shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 

respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

CONTRACTOR: 

 BRC CONSTRUCTION  

Address: PO Box 491 

Palm Desert, CA 92261 

Attn: Branden Rickard 

 

CITY: 
City of Coachella 

53-462 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Attn: Maritza Martinez 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 

(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at 

its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 

occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 

appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.4 Attorney’s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other 

party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 

the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 

reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.5 Indemnification.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its 

officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, 

demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage, or injury, in law or equity, to 

property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of or incident to any 

alleged acts, omissions or willful misconduct of Contractor, its officials, officers, employees, 

agents, consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the 

Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all 

Page 131

Item 12.



9 

 

consequential damages and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Contractor shall 

defend, at Contractor’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 

other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, 

award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Contractor shall reimburse 

City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal 

expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity 

herein provided.  Contractor’s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, 

if any, received by the City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

3.5.6 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both 

parties. 

3.5.7 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.8 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 

this Agreement. 

3.5.9 City’s Right to Employ Other Contractors.  City reserves right to employ 

other contractors in connection with this Project. 

3.5.10 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors 

and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.11 Assignment or Transfer.  Contractor shall not assign, hypothecate or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 

prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 

hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 

assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.12 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 

participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 

construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any term 

referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work days.  

All references to Contractor include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 

Contractor, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its 

elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 

Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 

reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content or intent of this 

Agreement. 

3.5.13 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment of 

this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

Page 132

Item 12.



10 

 

3.5.14 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 

default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 

contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 

beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.16 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 

provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.17 Prohibited Interests.  Contractor maintains and warrants that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 

for Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Contractor warrants that it has not 

paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 

solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Contractor further 

agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subcontractors to file, a Statement of Economic 

Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 

Services.  For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 

Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 

City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 

Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.18 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Contractor represents that it is an equal 

opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex 

or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial 

employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 

termination.  Contractor shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority Business 

Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines currently in 

effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.19 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor certifies that it 

is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every 

employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance 

in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such provisions before 

commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.20 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Contractor has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 

warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 

authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.21 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original. 

Page 133

Item 12.



11 

 

 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of 

the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 

approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 

provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 134

Item 12.



12 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA    BRC CONSTRUCTION  

        

By:                                                      By:                                                      

Dr. Gabriel D. Martin    Branden Rickard   

City Manager     Owner 

 

Attest: 

                                                      

Andrea Carranza, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Carlos Campos, City Attorney 

Page 135

Item 12.



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

1. Maintenance and repair Landscape Lighting and Maintenance District properties and 

improvements in those areas.   

  

Page 136

Item 12.



B-1 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

1. Services for this maintenance agreement are as needed.  Response times based on 

urgency of repair are as follows: 

a. Emergency Repair: 30 minutes – 2 hours 

b. Non-Emergency Repair: 1-10 days 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 137

Item 12.



 

C-1 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

 

LICENSED CONTRACTOR HOURLY COST -   $150.00 PER HOUR 

APPRENTICE/HELPER HOURLY COST -   $75.00 PER HOUR 

TRAVEL TIME FLAT RATE -     $125 PER TRIP 

MATERIAL COST -      10% MARKUP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 138

Item 12.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Award maintenance agreements to both Rudy G Reyes (dba Rudy’s Electric) and 

Bear Electrical Solutions for the As Needed Electrical Repairs Project No. 

081622. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award maintenance agreements to both Rudy G Reyes (dba Rudy’s Electric) and Bear Electrical 

Solutions for the As Needed Electrical Repairs Project No. 081622. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City published a Request for Proposals (RFP) for As Needed Electrical Repairs Project No. 

081622.  This RFP closed on September 21, 2022 at 2pm and the City received two responses.   

The RFP was published to select a licensed electrical contractor that can complete repairs to 

electrical as needed in city buildings, city parks and throughout the Landscape Lighting and 

Maintenance Districts.  However, as identified in the RFP, the City may award more than one 

contract if desired. After review of the two proposals received and discussions with both 

proposers, staff recommends awarding a maintenance agreement to both proposers (Rudy G 

Reyes and Bear Electrical Solutions).  Awarding the Project to two contractors will provide 

redundancy and improve staff’s access to resources when needed.  The term and compensation 

of both agreements will be identical – the terms will commence October 15, 2022 – October 14, 

2025 and not exceed $450,000.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The recommended action will not have a negative impact on the budget.  The award amount is 

allocated in the Building Maintenance, LLMD, and Park Division Budgets. 

 

Attachment: 

Proposed Agreements 

 

Page 139

Item 13.



B-1 

 

As Needed Electrical Repairs Project No. 081622 

City of Coachella  
MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 2022 by and between 

the City of Coachella, a municipal organization organized under the laws of the State of California 

with its principal place of business at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 92236, 

(hereinafter referred to as “City”) and Rudys Electric Co. with its principal place of business at 

736 Palm Avenue, Coachella CA 92236 (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”).  City and 

Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties” in this 

Agreement. 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 Contractor. 

Contractor desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 

electrical maintenance services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement.  Contractor represents that it is experienced in providing electrical repair services to 

public clients, that it and its employees or subcontractors have all necessary licenses and permits 

to perform the Services in the State of California, and that is familiar with the plans of City. 

2.2 Project. 

City desires to engage Contractor to render such services for the As Needed Electrical 

Repairs Project No 081622 (“Project”) as set forth in this Agreement. 

2.3 License Requirements. 

The Contractor must obtain a City of Coachella Business License and show proof that it 

possesses at a minimum an active State Contractor License as required by the State of California 

in conformance with performing the duties under this contract. 

 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Contractor promises and agrees to furnish to 

the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 

necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional Electrical Repair Maintenance services 

Page 140

Item 13.



2 

 

necessary for the Project (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit 

“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject to, and 

performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from October 15, 2022 to October 14, 

2025, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, 

extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to complete the Services. Contractor shall complete 

the Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 

deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if 

necessary to complete the Services.  

3.2 Responsibilities of Contractor. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 

Services shall be performed by Contractor or under its supervision.  Contractor will determine the 

means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 

Agreement.  City retains Contractor on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  

Contractor retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of 

this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf 

of Contractor shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under Contractor’s 

exclusive direction and control.  Contractor shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due 

such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as 

required by law.  Contractor shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 

additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax withholding, 

unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services expeditiously, 

within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services set forth in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Contractor represents that it has 

the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in conformance with 

such conditions.  In order to facilitate Contractor’s conformance with the Schedule, City shall 

respond to Contractor’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, Contractor shall 

provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 

Contractor shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates the City Manager, or his 

or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“City’s 

Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the City for all 

purposes under this Agreement.  Contractor shall not accept direction or orders from any person 

other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.5 Contractor’s Representative.  Contractor hereby designates Rudy G. Reyes 

or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 

(“Contractor’s Representative”).  Contractor’s Representative shall have full authority to represent 

Page 141

Item 13.



3 

 

and act on behalf of the Contractor for all purposes under this Agreement.  The Contractor’s 

Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and attention, and shall 

be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the 

satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.6 Coordination of Services.  Contractor agrees to work closely with City staff 

in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other staff at 

all reasonable times. 

3.2.7 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Contractor shall perform all 

Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 

generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 

California.  Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling 

necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor warrants that all employees and subcontractors shall 

have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor 

represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 

approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City 

Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of 

this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Contractor 

shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the City, any services 

necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Contractor’s failure to comply 

with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Contractor or its sub-

contractors who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 

adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any 

employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be 

promptly removed from the Project by the Contractor and shall not be re-employed to perform any 

of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.7.1  Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Contractor 

shall perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 

3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Contractor shall perform the Services in strict accordance with 

any completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits “A” or “B” attached hereto, 

or which may be provided separately in writing to the Contractor.  Contractor agrees that if the 

Services specified in Exhibit “D”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, are 

not completed within the aforementioned Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such 

completion schedule or Project milestones developed pursuant to provisions of this Agreement, it 

is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer damage.  Pursuant to Government 

Code Section 53069.85, Contractor shall pay to the City as fixed and liquidated damages, and not 

as a penalty, the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per day for each and every calendar 

day of delay beyond the Performance Time or beyond any completion schedule or Project 

milestones established pursuant to this Agreement. 

3.2.8 Laws and Regulations.  Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of and in 

compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 

performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall give 

all notices required by law.  Contractor shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations 

in connection with Services.  If the Contractor performs any work knowing it to be contrary to 

Page 142

Item 13.



4 

 

such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, Contractor shall be 

solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 

City, its officials, directors, officers, employees and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the 

indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure 

or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.9 Insurance. 

3.2.9.1 Time for Compliance.  Contractor shall not commence Work under 

this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has secured all 

insurance required under this section.  In addition, Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to 

commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that the 

subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.9.2 Minimum Requirements.  Contractor shall, at its expense, procure 

and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 

damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 

Agreement by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  Contractor 

shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the 

duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of 

coverage: 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 

broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 

Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 

Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and 

(3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 

required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain 

limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with general 

aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general aggregate 

limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice 

the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ 

Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California.  Employer’s 

Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

3.2.9.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall contain the 

following provisions, or Contractor shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved by 

the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 

endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations performed 

by or on behalf of the Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection 

Page 143

Item 13.



5 

 

with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an 

unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not be called upon 

to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall 

be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 

maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 

Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s 

scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s 

insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 

insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Contractor. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 

or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.9.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance 

required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, such 

insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the City, 

its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.9.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-

insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Contractor shall guarantee that, 

at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-

insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers; or (2) the Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigation costs, claims and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.9.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers 

with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in California, and 

satisfactory to the City. 

Page 144

Item 13.



6 

 

3.2.9.7 Verification of Coverage.  Contractor shall furnish City with 

original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement 

on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy 

shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be 

on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and endorsements must be received 

and approved by the City before work commences.  The City reserves the right to require complete, 

certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.9.8 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in addition 

to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in connection with 

the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.10 Safety.  Contractor shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury 

or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Contractor shall at all times 

be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall 

exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature of the work 

and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as applicable shall 

include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving equipment and 

procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and subcontractors, such as 

safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, 

trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing apparel as are 

necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the 

proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Contractor shall receive compensation, including 

authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in 

Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation shall 

not exceed Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($450,000.00).  Extra Work 

may be authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and 

manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Contractor shall submit to City a monthly 

itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Contractor.  

The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the initial 

commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, through 

the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review the 

statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Contractor shall not be reimbursed for any 

expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 

request that Contractor perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work which 

is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which the parties 

did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  Contractor 

Page 145

Item 13.



7 

 

shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization from City’s 

Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Contractor is aware of the requirements of California 

Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, 

Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of prevailing 

wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” and “maintenance” 

projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or 

“maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is 

$1,000 or more, Contractor agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  City shall 

provide Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the 

commencement of this Agreement.  Contractor shall make copies of the prevailing rates of per 

diem wages for each craft; classification or type of worker needed to execute the Services available 

to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Contractor’s principal place of 

business and at the project site.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its elected 

officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or liability arising out 

of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Contractor shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 

records shall be clearly identifiable.  Contractor shall allow a representative of City during normal 

business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other 

documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall allow inspection of all work, data, 

documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years 

from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to Contractor, 

terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving written 

notice to Contractor of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at least seven 

(7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be 

compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, and Contractor 

shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Contractor may not terminate this Agreement except 

for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 

herein, City may require Contractor to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data and 

other information of any kind prepared by Contractor in connection with the performance of 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be required to provide such document and other 

information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

Page 146

Item 13.



8 

 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 

whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it 

may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this Agreement 

shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 

respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

CONTRACTOR: 

 RUDY G REYES   

Address: 736 Palm Avenue 

Coachella, CA 92236 

Attn: Rudy G. Reyes 

 

CITY: 
City of Coachella 

53-462 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Attn: Maritza Martinez 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 

(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at 

its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 

occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 

appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.4 Attorney’s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other 

party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 

the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 

reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.5 Indemnification.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its 

officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, 

demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage, or injury, in law or equity, to 

property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of or incident to any 

alleged acts, omissions or willful misconduct of Contractor, its officials, officers, employees, 

agents, consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the 

Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all 

consequential damages and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Contractor shall 

defend, at Contractor’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 

other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, 

award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

Page 147

Item 13.



9 

 

agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Contractor shall reimburse 

City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal 

expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity 

herein provided.  Contractor’s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, 

if any, received by the City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

3.5.6 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both 

parties. 

3.5.7 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.8 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 

this Agreement. 

3.5.9 City’s Right to Employ Other Contractors.  City reserves right to employ 

other contractors in connection with this Project. 

3.5.10 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors 

and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.11 Assignment or Transfer.  Contractor shall not assign, hypothecate or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 

prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 

hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 

assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.12 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 

participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 

construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any term 

referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work days.  

All references to Contractor include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 

Contractor, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its 

elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 

Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 

reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content or intent of this 

Agreement. 

3.5.13 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment of 

this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.14 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 

default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 

contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

Page 148

Item 13.



10 

 

3.5.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 

beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.16 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 

provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.17 Prohibited Interests.  Contractor maintains and warrants that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 

for Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Contractor warrants that it has not 

paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 

solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Contractor further 

agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subcontractors to file, a Statement of Economic 

Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 

Services.  For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 

Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 

City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 

Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.18 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Contractor represents that it is an equal 

opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex 

or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial 

employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 

termination.  Contractor shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority Business 

Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines currently in 

effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.19 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor certifies that it 

is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every 

employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance 

in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such provisions before 

commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.20 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Contractor has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 

warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 

authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.21 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original. 

 

 

 

Page 149

Item 13.



11 

 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of 

the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 

approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 

provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 150

Item 13.



12 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA    RUDY G REYES (RUDY’S ELECTRIC) 

        

By:                                                      By:                                                      

Dr. Gabriel D. Martin    Rudy G. Reyes   

City Manager     Owner 

 

Attest: 

                                                      

Andrea Carranza, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Carlos Campos, City Attorney 

Page 151

Item 13.



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

Electrical maintenance and repair services for City parks, City building and Landscape 

Lighting and Maintenance District properties and improvements in those areas.   

  

Page 152

Item 13.



B-1 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

Services for this maintenance agreement are as needed.  Response times based on urgency of 

repair are as follows: 

a. Emergency Repair: 1 hours 

b. Non-Emergency Repair: 1 -5 days  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 153

Item 13.



 

C-1 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

 

LICENSED ELECTRICIAN HOURLY COST -   $85.00 PER HOUR /  

APPRENTICE/HELPER HOURLY COST -   $60.00 PER HOUR 

        

MATERIAL COST -      15% MARKUP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 154

Item 13.



B-1 

 

As Needed Electrical Repairs Project No. 081622 

City of Coachella  
MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 2022 by and between 

the City of Coachella, a municipal organization organized under the laws of the State of California 

with its principal place of business at 53-990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 92236, 

(hereinafter referred to as “City”) and Bear Electrical Solutions Inc. with its principal place of 

business at PO BOX 924, Alviso CA 95002 (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”).  City and 

Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties” in this 

Agreement. 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 Contractor. 

Contractor desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain 

electrical maintenance services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement.  Contractor represents that it is experienced in providing electrical repair services to 

public clients, that it and its employees or subcontractors have all necessary licenses and permits 

to perform the Services in the State of California, and that is familiar with the plans of City. 

2.2 Project. 

City desires to engage Contractor to render such services for the As Needed Electrical 

Repairs Project No 081622 (“Project”) as set forth in this Agreement. 

2.3 License Requirements. 

The Contractor must obtain a City of Coachella Business License and show proof that it 

possesses at a minimum an active State Contractor License as required by the State of California 

in conformance with performing the duties under this contract. 

 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Contractor promises and agrees to furnish to 

the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 

necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional Electrical Repair Maintenance services 

Page 155

Item 13.



2 

 

necessary for the Project (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit 

“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject to, and 

performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from October 15, 2022 to October 14, 

2025, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, 

extend the term of this Agreement if necessary to complete the Services. Contractor shall complete 

the Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 

deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if 

necessary to complete the Services.  

3.2 Responsibilities of Contractor. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 

Services shall be performed by Contractor or under its supervision.  Contractor will determine the 

means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 

Agreement.  City retains Contractor on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  

Contractor retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of 

this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf 

of Contractor shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under Contractor’s 

exclusive direction and control.  Contractor shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due 

such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as 

required by law.  Contractor shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 

additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax withholding, 

unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services expeditiously, 

within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services set forth in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Contractor represents that it has 

the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in conformance with 

such conditions.  In order to facilitate Contractor’s conformance with the Schedule, City shall 

respond to Contractor’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, Contractor shall 

provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 

Contractor shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates the City Manager, or his 

or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“City’s 

Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the City for all 

purposes under this Agreement.  Contractor shall not accept direction or orders from any person 

other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.5 Contractor’s Representative.  Contractor hereby designates Robert 

Asuncion or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 

(“Contractor’s Representative”).  Contractor’s Representative shall have full authority to represent 

Page 156

Item 13.



3 

 

and act on behalf of the Contractor for all purposes under this Agreement.  The Contractor’s 

Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and attention, and shall 

be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the 

satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.6 Coordination of Services.  Contractor agrees to work closely with City staff 

in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other staff at 

all reasonable times. 

3.2.7 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Contractor shall perform all 

Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 

generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 

California.  Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling 

necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor warrants that all employees and subcontractors shall 

have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor 

represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 

approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City 

Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of 

this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Contractor 

shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the City, any services 

necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Contractor’s failure to comply 

with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Contractor or its sub-

contractors who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 

adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any 

employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be 

promptly removed from the Project by the Contractor and shall not be re-employed to perform any 

of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.7.1  Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Contractor 

shall perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 

3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Contractor shall perform the Services in strict accordance with 

any completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits “A” or “B” attached hereto, 

or which may be provided separately in writing to the Contractor.  Contractor agrees that if the 

Services specified in Exhibit “D”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, are 

not completed within the aforementioned Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such 

completion schedule or Project milestones developed pursuant to provisions of this Agreement, it 

is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer damage.  Pursuant to Government 

Code Section 53069.85, Contractor shall pay to the City as fixed and liquidated damages, and not 

as a penalty, the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per day for each and every calendar 

day of delay beyond the Performance Time or beyond any completion schedule or Project 

milestones established pursuant to this Agreement. 

3.2.8 Laws and Regulations.  Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of and in 

compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 

performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall give 

all notices required by law.  Contractor shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations 

in connection with Services.  If the Contractor performs any work knowing it to be contrary to 

Page 157

Item 13.



4 

 

such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, Contractor shall be 

solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 

City, its officials, directors, officers, employees and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the 

indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure 

or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.9 Insurance. 

3.2.9.1 Time for Compliance.  Contractor shall not commence Work under 

this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has secured all 

insurance required under this section.  In addition, Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to 

commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that the 

subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.9.2 Minimum Requirements.  Contractor shall, at its expense, procure 

and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 

damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 

Agreement by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  Contractor 

shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the 

duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of 

coverage: 

(A)  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as 

broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 

Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 

Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and 

(3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 

required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain 

limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with general 

aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general aggregate 

limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice 

the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ 

Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California.  Employer’s 

Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

3.2.9.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall contain the 

following provisions, or Contractor shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved by 

the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 

endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations performed 

by or on behalf of the Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection 

Page 158

Item 13.



5 

 

with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an 

unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not be called upon 

to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall 

be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 

maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 

Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s 

scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s 

insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 

insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Contractor. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 

or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.9.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance 

required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, such 

insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the City, 

its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.9.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-

insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Contractor shall guarantee that, 

at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-

insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 

volunteers; or (2) the Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigation costs, claims and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.9.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers 

with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in California, and 

satisfactory to the City. 

Page 159

Item 13.



6 

 

3.2.9.7 Verification of Coverage.  Contractor shall furnish City with 

original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement 

on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy 

shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be 

on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and endorsements must be received 

and approved by the City before work commences.  The City reserves the right to require complete, 

certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.9.8 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in addition 

to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in connection with 

the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.10 Safety.  Contractor shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury 

or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Contractor shall at all times 

be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall 

exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature of the work 

and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as applicable shall 

include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving equipment and 

procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and subcontractors, such as 

safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, 

trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing apparel as are 

necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the 

proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Contractor shall receive compensation, including 

authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in 

Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation shall 

not exceed Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($450,000.00).  Extra Work 

may be authorized, as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and 

manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Contractor shall submit to City a monthly 

itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Contractor.  

The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the initial 

commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, through 

the date of the statement.   City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review the 

statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Contractor shall not be reimbursed for any 

expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 

request that Contractor perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work which 

is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which the parties 

did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  Contractor 

Page 160

Item 13.



7 

 

shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization from City’s 

Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Contractor is aware of the requirements of California 

Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations, 

Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment of prevailing 

wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” and “maintenance” 

projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or 

“maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is 

$1,000 or more, Contractor agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  City shall 

provide Contractor with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in effect at the 

commencement of this Agreement.  Contractor shall make copies of the prevailing rates of per 

diem wages for each craft; classification or type of worker needed to execute the Services available 

to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Contractor’s principal place of 

business and at the project site.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its elected 

officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or liability arising out 

of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Contractor shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 

records shall be clearly identifiable.  Contractor shall allow a representative of City during normal 

business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other 

documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall allow inspection of all work, data, 

documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years 

from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to Contractor, 

terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving written 

notice to Contractor of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at least seven 

(7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be 

compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, and Contractor 

shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Contractor may not terminate this Agreement except 

for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 

herein, City may require Contractor to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data and 

other information of any kind prepared by Contractor in connection with the performance of 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall be required to provide such document and other 

information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

Page 161

Item 13.



8 

 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 

whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it 

may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this Agreement 

shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 

respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

CONTRACTOR: 

 BEAR ELECTRICAL SOLUTIONS INC    

Address: PO BOX 924 

Alviso, CA 95002-0924 

Attn: Robert Asuncion  

 

CITY: 
City of Coachella 

53-462 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA  92236 

Attn: Maritza Martinez 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 

(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at 

its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 

occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 

appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.4 Attorney’s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other 

party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 

the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 

reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.5 Indemnification.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its 

officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, 

demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage, or injury, in law or equity, to 

property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of or incident to any 

alleged acts, omissions or willful misconduct of Contractor, its officials, officers, employees, 

agents, consultants, and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the 

Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all 

consequential damages and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Contractor shall 

defend, at Contractor’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 

other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, 

award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

Page 162

Item 13.



9 

 

agents, or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Contractor shall reimburse 

City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal 

expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity 

herein provided.  Contractor’s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, 

if any, received by the City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

3.5.6 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both 

parties. 

3.5.7 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.8 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 

this Agreement. 

3.5.9 City’s Right to Employ Other Contractors.  City reserves right to employ 

other contractors in connection with this Project. 

3.5.10 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors 

and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.11 Assignment or Transfer.  Contractor shall not assign, hypothecate or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 

prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 

hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 

assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.12 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 

participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 

construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any term 

referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not work days.  

All references to Contractor include all personnel, employees, agents, and subcontractors of 

Contractor, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to City include its 

elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise specified in this 

Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for convenience and ease of 

reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content or intent of this 

Agreement. 

3.5.13 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment of 

this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.14 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 

default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 

contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

Page 163

Item 13.



10 

 

3.5.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 

beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.16 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 

provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.17 Prohibited Interests.  Contractor maintains and warrants that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 

for Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Contractor warrants that it has not 

paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 

solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Contractor further 

agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subcontractors to file, a Statement of Economic 

Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 

Services.  For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 

Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 

City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 

Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.18 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Contractor represents that it is an equal 

opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex 

or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial 

employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 

termination.  Contractor shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority Business 

Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines currently in 

effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.19 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Contractor certifies that it 

is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every 

employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance 

in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such provisions before 

commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.20 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Contractor has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 

warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 

authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.21 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original. 

 

 

 

Page 164

Item 13.



11 

 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of 

the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 

approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 

provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 165

Item 13.



12 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA    Bear Electrical Solutions, Inc.  

        

By:                                                      By:                                                      

Dr. Gabriel D. Martin    Mike Peters   

City Manager     President  

 

Attest: 

                                                      

Andrea Carranza, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Carlos Campos, City Attorney 

Page 166

Item 13.



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

Electrical maintenance and repair services for City parks, City building and Landscape 

Lighting and Maintenance District properties and improvements in those areas.   

  

Page 167

Item 13.



B-1 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

Services for this maintenance agreement are as needed.  Response times based on urgency of 

repair are as follows: 

a. Emergency Repair: 2 hours 

b. Non-Emergency Repair: 2 hours 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 168

Item 13.



 

C-1 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

 

LICENSED ELECTRICIAN HOURLY COST -   $150.00 PER HOUR /  

APPRENTICE/HELPER HOURLY COST -   $115.00 PER HOUR  

 

TRAVEL TIME EXPENSE FLAT RATE OR  $150.00 PER TRIP 

TRAVEL TIME PER HOUR     $125.00 PER HOUR  

        

MATERIAL COST -      15% MARKUP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 169

Item 13.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Approval for operation of a beer garden by Culturas Music & Arts on November 

12, 2022 at Dateland Park from 11am to 8pm.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approval for operation of a beer garden by Culturas Music & Arts on November 12, 2022 at 

Dateland Park from 11am to 8pm.   

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The 2022 Synergy Music and Arts Festival is planned to occur on Saturday, November 12, 2022 

from 11am to 8pm.  This event has been a recurring event in Coachella since 2012.  The event 

would occur at Dateland Park and include live bands, disc jockey, food vendors, art displays, 

merchandise vendors, car show and beer garden.   

Culturas Music and Arts is requesting to be authorized to operate a beer garden at this event from 

11am - 8pm; all event permit approvals would be contingent upon the applicant meeting all 

permitting requirements by City, County, ABC and other required regulatory agencies. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None.  

 

  

 

Page 170

Item 14.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Award professional services agreement to The Christmas Kings for the Holiday 

Lighting and Decorations Project No. 082522H.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award professional services agreement to The Christmas Kings for the Holiday Lighting and 

Decorations Project No. 082522H. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City published a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for Holiday Lighting and Decorations Project 

No. 082522H.  This RFP closed on September 26, 2022 and the City received two responses; from 

Hi-Tech Lights and The Christmas King.  The project is for design and installation of holiday 

décor that is synchronized to music along Sixth Street in front of City Hall and the Coachella 

Library.   

 

The proposals received from both firms were reviewed by staff and scored based on the following 

categories identified in the RFP: Understanding of Work to the Performed, Demonstrated quality 

of firm, Familiarity with City, County and State Procedures, References, Completeness of the 

Proposal, and Cost.  Based on the score results staff is recommending award to The Christmas 

Kings.  The proposed agreement, will have a term beginning November 1, 2022 – January 5, 2023 

and compensation in the amount of $50,000.     

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The proposed work was approved in the current budget and the recommended action will not have 

a fiscal impact. 

 

Attachments: 

Proposed Agreement 

 

 

Page 171

Item 15.



 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

PROJECT NO. 082522H 

  

 
1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Agreement is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 2022, by and between 

the City of Coachella, a municipal organization organized under the laws of the State of California 

with its principal place of business at 53990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California 92236 (“City”) 

and The Christmas Kings, a corporation with its principal place of business at 31500 Grape St, 

Suite 3233, Lake Elsinore, CA 92532.  (“Consultant”).  City and Consultant are sometimes 

individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS. 

2.1 City.  City is a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

California, with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose. 

2.2 Consultant.  Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the 

provision of certain professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth 

in this Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing methods of studying 

policing services to public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar with the 

plans of City. 

2.3 Project.  City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the Holiday 

Lighting and Decorations (“Project”) as set forth in this Agreement. 

3. TERMS. 

3.1 Scope of Services and Term. 

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish 

to the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 

necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional consulting services necessary for the 

Project (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject to, and performed in 

accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from November 1, 2022 to 

January 5, 2023, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Consultant shall complete the 

Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and 

deadlines. 

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

Page 172

Item 15.



 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 

Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine the 

means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 

Agreement.  City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  

Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of 

this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf 

of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under Consultant’s 

exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due 

such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement and as 

required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 

additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax withholding, 

unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform the Services 

expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services 

set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Consultant 

represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in 

conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance with the 

Schedule, City shall respond to Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, 

Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule 

of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 

Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to City that 

certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should one 

or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of at 

least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event that City and Consultant cannot 

agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement for 

cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner 

acceptable to the City, or who are determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a 

threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or 

property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant at the request of the City.  

The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: Mathew Kronquist. 

3.2.5 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates City Manager or 

his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“City’s 

Representative”).  City’s Representative shall have the power to act on behalf of the City for all 

purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept direction or orders from any person other 

than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Mathew 

Kronquist, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 

(“Consultant’s Representative”).  Consultant’s Representative shall have full authority to represent 

and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement.  The Consultant’s 

Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and attention, and shall 

Page 173

Item 15.



 

be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the 

satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with City 

staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City’s staff, consultants and other 

staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform 

all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 

generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of 

California.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling 

necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and subcontractors shall 

have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them.  Finally, Consultant 

represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications and 

approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, including a City 

Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of 

this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Consultant 

shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the City, any services 

necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply 

with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Consultant or its sub-

consultants who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 

adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any 

employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be 

promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant and shall not be re-employed to perform any 

of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of 

and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner 

affecting the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, 

and shall give all notices required by law.  Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws 

and regulations in connection with Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to 

be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, 

Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant shall defend, 

indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers, employees and agents free and harmless, 

pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or liability arising 

out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence the 

Services under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has 

secured all insurance required under this section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 

subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to 

the City that the subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, 

procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to 

Page 174

Item 15.



 

persons or damages to property, which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 

the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  

Consultant shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance 

for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels 

of coverage: 

(A) Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least 

as broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 

Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 

Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); and 

(3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 

required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain 

limits no less than: (1) General Liability: Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for 

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or 

other form with general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply 

separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required 

occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for 

bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: 

Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California.  

Employer’s Liability limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or 

disease.   

3.2.10.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall contain 

the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved 

by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be 

endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the Services or operations 

performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in 

connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand 

in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 

agents and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to 

contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy 

shall be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 

volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 

maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 

Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 

volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 

scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 

Page 175

Item 15.



 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s 

insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability 

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 

insurance policy, which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 

or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 

the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance 

required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, such 

insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the City, 

its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles or 

self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant shall guarantee 

that, at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or 

self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 

volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigation costs, claims and administrative and defense expenses. 

3.2.10.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers 

with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A-:VII, licensed to do business in California, and 

satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.7 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish City with 

original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement 

on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy 

shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be 

on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and endorsements must be received 

and approved by the City before work commences.  The City reserves the right to require complete, 

certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 

injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at all 

times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and 

shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature of the 

work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as applicable 

shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving equipment 

and procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and subcontractors, such 

as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space 

Page 176

Item 15.



 

procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, equipment and wearing 

apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and (C) adequate 

facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including 

authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in 

Exhibit ”A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation shall 

not exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($50,000.00). Extra Work may be 

authorized, as described below; and if authorized, said Extra Work will be compensated at, the 

rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Consultant shall submit to City a monthly-

itemized statement, which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by Consultant.  

The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the initial 

commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate, through 

the date of the statement.  City shall, within forty-five (45) days of receiving such statement, review 

the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for 

any expenses unless authorized in writing by City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may 

request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work, 

which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which 

the Parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.  

Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization 

from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Prevailing Wages.  Consultant is aware of the requirements of 

California Labor Code Sections 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of 

Regulations, Title 8, Section 16000, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the payment 

of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and 

“maintenance” projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public 

works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total 

compensation is One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with 

such Prevailing Wage Laws.  City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of 

per diem wages in effect at the commencement of this Agreement. Consultant shall make copies 

of the prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft; classification or type of worker needed to 

execute the Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the 

Consultant’s principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify 

and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless 

from any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of any failure or alleged failure 

to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

Page 177

Item 15.



 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 

records shall be clearly identifiable.  Consultant shall allow a representative of City during normal 

business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other 

documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all work, data, 

documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years 

from the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to 

Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by 

giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, 

at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Consultant 

shall be compensated only for those services, which have been adequately rendered to City, and 

Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not terminate this 

Agreement except for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as 

provided herein, City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and 

Data and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance 

of Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide such documents and 

other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated 

in whole or in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as 

it may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this 

Agreement shall be given to the respective Parties at the following address, or at such other address 

as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

City 

City of Coachella 

53462 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA 92236 

Attn: Maritza Martinez  

Consultant 
The Christmas Kings 

31500 Grape St, Suite 3233 

Lake Elsinore, CA 92532 

 

 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 

(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at 

its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice 

occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

Page 178

Item 15.



 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  This 

Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or 

sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, 

specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in 

any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data 

magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be 

prepared by Consultant under this Agreement (“Documents & Data”).  Consultant shall require all 

subcontractors to agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for 

any Documents & Data the subcontractor prepares under this Agreement.  Consultant represents 

and warrants that Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & Data.  

Consultant makes no such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data, which 

were prepared by design professionals other than Consultant or provided, to Consultant by the 

City.  City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the Documents & Data at any time, provided 

that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement shall be at City’s sole risk. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, 

procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written information, 

and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in connection with the 

performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant.  Consultant shall not, 

without the prior written consent of City, use such materials for any purposes other than the 

performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be disclosed to any person or entity not 

connected with the performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing furnished to Consultant, 

which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has become known, to the related 

industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use City’s name or insignia, 

photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or the Project in any 

magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other similar medium without 

the prior written consent of City. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 

appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either Party commences an action against the other 

Party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 

the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 

reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, 

its officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, 

demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury, in law or equity, to 

property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of or incident to any 

negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, 

agents, consultants and contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the 

Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all 

consequential damages and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses. Consultant shall 

defend, at Consultant’s own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 

Page 179

Item 15.



 

other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its directors, 

officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Consultant shall pay and satisfy any such 

judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, officials, officers, 

employees, agents or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Consultant 

shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and/or volunteers, for 

any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in 

enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Consultant’s obligation to indemnify shall not be 

restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its directors, officials, officers, 

employees, agents or volunteers. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of 

the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both 

Parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision 

of this Agreement. 

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  City reserves right to 

employ other consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the 

successors and assigns of the Parties. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate, or 

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 

prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 

hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 

assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents 

have participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall 

be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 

term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not 

workdays.  All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and 

subcontractors of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 

City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 

specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 

content, or intent of this Agreement. 

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification, or 

amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both 

Parties. 

Page 180

Item 15.



 

3.5.15 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 

default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 

contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 

beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 

invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 

provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 

for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not 

paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 

solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation 

of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term 

of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of City, during the term of his or her service 

with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated 

material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Consultant represents that it is an 

equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subcontractor, employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex 

or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 

initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 

or termination.  Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of any City’s Minority 

Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines 

currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies that 

it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which require every 

employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance 

in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such provisions before 

commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and 

authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 

warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 

authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.22 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

Page 181

Item 15.



 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion 

of the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 

approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 

provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE.] 

  

Page 182

Item 15.



 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

By:   

 Dr. Gabriel D. Martin 

 City Manager 

 

 THE CHRISTMAS KINGS 

By:   

 Mathew Kronquist, Owner Operator  

Attest: 

By:   

 City Clerk 

  

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

****Approved Form**** 

Best Best & Krieger LLP 

City Attorney 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 183

Item 15.



 

Exhibit A 

 

The City of Coachella desires to highlight its Downtown public spaces to create a festive 

and attractive atmosphere for residents, visitors, and businesses.  The successful responder must 

demonstrate the ability to utilize creativity and cohesiveness with the established aesthetic of the 

Downtown.  Total project budget cannot exceed $50,000. 

The scope of work includes the design, installation, maintenance/service and removal.  The 

lighting and decorations will be installed in two locations in Coachella: 1515 Sixth Street  (City 

Hall) and 1500 Sixth Street (Coachella Library).  With the focus along the Sixth Street corridor.  

Electricity is available at each site and the power costs will be paid by the City.  Lighting and 

decorations shall be securely fastened to reduce the likelihood of damages and outaged due to 

wind.  All extension cord connections should be wrapped/anchored to protect moisture and prevent 

tripping hazards.  Trees are to be fully wrapped including trunk and branches.  The City is 

requesting proposals include a holiday music and lighting synchronization programming.  Holiday 

lighting and decorations must be completely installed as of December 5, 2022 and removal of the 

installed items must be done between January 2-5, 2023. 

 City Hall Location – decorated areas include the Sixth Street facing building and turf area 

between Orchard Street and Vine Street.  City staff will be wrapping all palm trees and 

installing warm C9 bulbs along the roofline.  

 Coachella Library Location – decorated areas include the Sixth Street facing building and 

parkway/courtyard area along Sixth Street.   City staff will be wrapping all palm trees and 

installing warm C9 bulbs along the roofline.  

 

 

 

 

Page 184

Item 15.



Fu  

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Andrew Simmons, P.E., City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement with KOA 

Corporation, Inc. for an amount of $16,344.00 to provide PS&E and Right of 

Way Services for the improvements of Avenue 50 from Calhoun Street to Cesar 

Chavez Street – City Project ST-93. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment #2 to the Professional Services Agreement 

with KOA Corporation, Inc. for an amount of $16,344.00 to provide PS&E and Right of Way 

Services for the improvements of Avenue 50 from Calhoun Street to Cesar Chavez Street – City 

Project ST-93. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The total cost to complete improvements for this project is an amount of $9,250,000, currently 

there is a reimbursement agreement between CVAG and The City of Coachella to provide funding 

with the regional share of 75%(CVAG) for an amount $6,937,500 of the total cost. The Project is 

among the Top 10 projects listed in the 2015 Transportation Project Prioritization Study (TPPS). 

 

The City is the lead agency for this proposed work. The project will widen the existing street and 

construct concrete curb and gutter on within areas where none exists between Calhoun Street and 

Cesar Chavez Street. The finished project will complete the planned widening of Avenue 50 to 

two traffic lanes in each direction, and include pedestrian, bicycle and drainage facilities. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

On October 9, 2019 City Council authorized an agreement with KOA Corporation for professional 

design services. The consultant has completed the environmental document and finalized project 

scope, which include right-of-way acquisition. 

 

On November 10, 2021 City Council authorized Amendment #1 to KOA to modify the plans to 

evaluate value engineering and underground utility considerations between De Oro and 

Kensington. 

 

Page 185

Item 16.



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Funding for these services will be reimbursed at the rate previously specified of 75% CVAG 

($12,258), and 25% City ($4,086) from Street DIF funds. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement 

2. Amendment Proposal 

 

 

 

Page 186

Item 16.



SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  

CITY OF COACHELLA 

AND KOA CORPORATION 

Project ST-93 
 
 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into as of October 12, 

2022 by   and   between   the   City   of   Coachella ("City")   and   KOA Corporation (“Consultant”). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:    
 

1.   Recitals.  This Amendment i s  made with the respect to the following facts and purposes: 
 

a. On or about October 9th, 2019 the City and Consultant entered into that certain agreement 

entitled “City of Coachella Professional Services Agreement” between the City and 

Consultant in the amount of $545,360 for project ST-93. 

 

b. On or about November 10 t h, 2021 the City and Consultant entered into that 

certain agreement entitled “First Amendment” between the City and Consultant 

in the amount of $71,680.  

 

c. The parties now desire to amend the Agreement as set forth in this Amendment. 

 
2.   Amendment.    Section 3.3.1, Compensation, of the Agreement is hereby amended in its entirely 

to read as follows: 

   

 "3.3.1   Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including authorized 

reimbursements,  for  all Services rendered  under  this Agreement  as set  forth  in Exhibit 

"A" at  the  rates  set  forth  in  Exhibit  "B" attached   hereto  and  incorporated  herein  by 

reference.     The total   compensation shall   not exceed   Six Hundred Thirty-Three 

Thousand Three Hundred Eighty-Four Dollars ($633,384.00) without written 

approval of the City’s representative.   Extra Work may be authorized, as described below, and 

if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement." 

 

3. Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by this Amendment, all provisions of 

the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. From and after the date of 

this Amendment, whenever the term “Agreement” appears in the Agreement, it shall mean the 

Agreement as amended by this Amendment. 

 

4. Adequate Consideration. The parties hereto irrevocably stipulate and agree that they have 

each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the obligations they 

have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment. 
 
 

   

 

Page 187

Item 16.



 

 

5.  Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed  in duplicate  originals, each of which  is 

deemed  to be an original,  but when taken together  shall constitute  but one and the same 

instrument. 

 
 

IN WITNESS  THEREOF, the parties have executed  this Amendment  as of the day and 

year first set  forth above,  which date shall be considered by the parties to be the effective date of 

this Amendment. 

 
 
 

CITY OF COACHELLA  KOA CORPORATION. 

 

 
 
 
By:____________________________           By:_________________________ 

    Gabriel Martin, City Manager    Min Zhou, Chief Executive Officer/President             

      

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 
 
By:_____ 

 
     Carlos Campos, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

Attest:  

 

By:___________________________ 
    Angela Zepeda, City Clerk 

 

Page 188

Item 16.



  

  

Avenue 50 CVWD Line Abandonment and Signal Interconnect Conduit Design Page 1 

City of Coachella   

5095 Murphy Canyon Road, Suite 330, San Diego, CA 92123 

T: 619.683.2933 | F: 619.683.7982 | www.koacorp.com 

MONTEREY PARK ORANGE   ONTARIO   SAN DIEGO 

 

September 28, 2022 

 

Mr. Andrew Simmons, P.E. 

City Engineer 

53990 Enterprise Way 

Coachella, CA 92236 

 

Subject: Avenue 50 CVWD Line Abandonment and Signal Interconnect Design 

 

Dear Mr. Simmons: 

 

Thank you for requesting KOA Corporation (KOA) to provide this proposal for assisting the City in the 

abandonment of the CVWD irrigation line 118.7 east of meter number 1700 along Avenue 50 between 

Calhoun Street and Van Buren Street, and for provision for future traffic signal interconnection between 

Calhoun Street and Cesar Chavez Street, the westerly 1300 feet of which will be constructed by DR Horton, 

and the easterly remainder to be incorporated into the Avenue 50 Street Improvement Plans. specifications, 

and estimate. 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
The widening of Avenue 50 between Calhoun Street and Van Buren Street has triggered a concern on the 

part of CVWD that the construction activities may compromise the integrity of one of their irrigation 

distribution lines.  To that end the City has suggested that the CVWD abandon irrigation 118.7 east of meter 

number 1700, which no longer serves any customers. Preliminary discussion with the CVWD and City 

indicated that the irrigation line could be abandoned by filling the pipe with flowable fill and relocating 

meter number 1700.  KOA would provide assistance to the City in the abandonment process. 

 

The original scope of services did not anticipate interconnect of the traffic signals along Avenue 50.  CVAG 

has initiated a project to interconnect the traffic signals on significant travel corridors throughout the region, 

including Avenue 50. Because the design for this segment of the CV Synch signal interconnect project will 

occur after the Avenue 50 construction, it would seem practical to install conduit and pull boxes for future 

interconnect as a part of the Avenue 50 Improvements.  The plans should include 3” HDPE conduit schedule 

80 with No. 6 E pull boxes spaced not more than 500 feet apart, with a N40 splice vault adjacent to each 

traffic signal controller. 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES  
The scope of services to be provided include: 

 

CVWD Line Abandonment Coordination 

 

1. KOA will provide existing utility plan base sheets to CVWD for verification of CVWD utilities. We will 

request from CVWD abandonment requirements, specifications, and details. We will assist the City 

in coordinating for the abandonment of the line through providing the Avenue 50 Improvement 

Plans. 

 

Traffic Signal Interconnect Conduit for Avenue 50 Improvement 

Page 189

Item 16.



  

  

Avenue 50 CVWD Line Abandonment and Signal Interconnect Conduit Design Page 2 

City of Coachella   

5095 Murphy Canyon Road, Suite 330, San Diego, CA 92123 

T: 619.683.2933 | F: 619.683.7982 | www.koacorp.com 

MONTEREY PARK ORANGE   ONTARIO   SAN DIEGO 

 

 

2. KOA will utilize the Avenue 50 Improvement Plan base sheets to prepare conduit and pull box plans 

for future fiberoptic signal interconnect along Avenue 50 from the DR Horton frontage to Cesar 

Chavez Street.  The plans will depict 3” HDPE conduit, with number 6E pull boxes spaced at not 

more than 500 feet.  Conduit will be designed with 45-degree sweeps, and splice vaults will be 

situated near each controller for subsequent fiber optic design. Plans will be submitted at the 100% 

completion level. We will respond to City comments and submit final plans as part of the Avenue 

50 Improvement plans. 

 

FEE  
KOA Corporation will perform the work specified in the scope above based on the following fee summary.   

 

 

  

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 
Our proposal was developed on the following understanding of the project. 

 KOA will not be preparing abandonment plans for the CVWD lines, but will only be assisting the 

City through coordination and supplying Avenue 50 Improvement plans  

 KOA’s plans for CVWD line abandonment will be provided in KOA’s CAD layers, and plans will not 

be prepared per CVWD CAD standards. 

 Conduit and pull boxes only with pull ropes will be designed for future interconnect. Fiber optic 

design will not be provided at this time. 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions or comments regarding our proposal and we can discuss it 

at your convenience. Thanks for this opportunity! 

 

Sincerely, 

 

  
Ali Shahzad, PE 

Managing Director/Senior Engineer 

KOA CORPORATION 

 

 

TASK NUMBER SR ENGR II

S

R 

E

N

G

R 

I

SR. 

ASSOC 

ENGR I

ASSOC 

ENGR II

SR 

ADMIN

TOTAL 

HOURS
DIRECT  COSTS

TOTAL 

COSTS

$249.00 $145.00 $133.00 $98.00

1. CVWD Line Abandonment Coordination 8 8 2 18 $3,348.00

3. Traffic Signal Interconnect Conduit for Avenue 50 12 36 36 84 $12,996.00

TOTAL 20 44 36 2 102 $0.00 $16,344.00

FEE FOR AVENUE 50 CVWD LINE ABANDONMENT AND SIGNAL INTERCONNECT CONDUIT DESIGN

Page 190

Item 16.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Authorize The City of Coachella’s Tacos, Tequila and Chavelas Festival beer 

garden operation on October 22, 2022 at Veterans Memorial Park from 4pm to 

8pm. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize The City of Coachella’s Tacos, Tequila and Chavelas Festival beer garden operation on 

October 22, 2022 at Veterans Memorial Park from 4pm to 8pm. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City of Coachella’s Tacos Tequila and Chavelas Festival has been an event focused on 

celebrating Coachella’s culinary talents and supporting its local eateries.  In partnership with the 

Greater Coachella Chamber of Commerce (Chamber), the City developed and launched this event 

in 2017.  The 2022 event is recommended to take place on Saturday, October 22, 2022 from 4pm 

to 8pm at Veterans Park.  

Staff is working with the Chamber to secure a total of ten to eleven taco vendors for 2022.  The 

2022 ticket sales remain the same - $20.00 for taco tasting and $25.00 for taco tasting with one 

chavela/tequila tasting.  All participating restaurants will be provided a $500-$750 stipend to aid 

participants in paying for their food costs and all will compete for 1st, 2nd and 3rd place cash prizes 

of $3,000, $2,000 and $1,000.  All participants will also compete for People’s Choice Award.  

In addition to the event’s food attractions, the event will include two live bands, live ballet 

folklorico dancing, a live dj, lawn games and a mechanical bull.  The event includes a beer garden 

and staff is requesting authorization for the event to permit a beer garden at Veterans Park from 

4pm-8pm on Saturday, October 22, 2022.   

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None.  

 

Page 191

Item 17.



Page 192

Item 18.



Page 193

Item 18.



Page 194

Item 18.



Page 195

Item 18.



Page 196

Item 18.



Page 197

Item 18.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve a Community Based Grant to the Bianca Rae Foundation in the 

Amount of $1,000  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider awarding a Community Based Grant (CBG) to 

the Bianca Rae Foundation in the amount of $1,000.00.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Community Based Grant Program was established in 2010 and allows the City of Coachella 

to offer financial assistance to local nonprofit organizations, schools, youth-serving organizations, 

and other community-based organizations that provide essential services, programs and activities 

to residents in Coachella. Applicant organizations are only eligible to submit one application for 

consideration each fiscal year and must be legally established with non-profit or tax-exempt status, 

be based in the Coachella Valley, or provide direct service to Coachella residents. Approval of 

grant funds does not constitute a precedent for grant allocations in subsequent years. All CBG 

grants are reimbursement grants to ensure that applicants are meeting their stated goals.  The FY 

22-23 budget includes an allocation of $15,000 for the Community Based Grant Program.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The Bianca Rae Foundation is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization with the mission to give a voice 

to the voiceless. The foundation is divided into two verticals: a concentration on providing 

guidance and leadership to Southern California youth and a focus on providing resources for 

homeless animals.  For this application, the foundation is requesting grant funding support to help 

fund the annual Rae of Hope Retreat where middle-school children convene for the day to learn 

about self-love, anti-bullying, social media safety, and more. This year, the foundation will be 

hosting two retreats: one for girls and one for boys. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Award the Bianca Rae Foundation a Community Based Grant in the amount of $1,000.00. 

2. Do not award a Community Based Grant.  

 

Page 198

Item 18.



FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the Council approves the staff recommendation, the Community Based Grant account will be 

reduced by $1,000.00.  

 

ATTACHMENT: 

 

Community-Based Grant Program Application 

 

Page 199

Item 18.



 

CITY OF COACHELLA, CA 
COMMUNITY BASED GRANT PROGRAM 

APPLICATION FOR FUNDS REQUEST 

Please Type Information and Print 
Information entered in the provided spaces cannot be saved. 

 
(Attach additional pages as needed, however applicants are encouraged to be brief.) 

 

1. Application Funding Cycle:                                           Date:  
 
July 1, 20           - June 30, 20           
 

2. Total Amount Requested:     $        
 
If requesting waiver of City fees or charges, please indicate the City service for which the waiver 
is being requested.  
 
 

3. Proposed Program/Service of Funding Request: 
 
 

4. Agency/Organization: 
 

5. Mailing Address: 
 

City:                  Zip:  
 

6. Telephone:  
 

Fax:  
 

7. Official Contact Person: 
Name:  

 
Title:  

 
Telephone:  

 
Fax:  

 
E-mail:  

 
 

09/12/2022

22 23

1000

Assistance League Coachella Valle

P.O. Box 3056

Rancho 92270

(760) 848-0084

Jennifer Gifford

Grants Chairperson

(408) 656-8929

algrants@aol.com

Operation School Bell®

Page 200

Item 19.



8. Does this organization have a non-profit status with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)?     
Yes       No      (Attach documentation) 
 

9. How long has this organization been in existence? 
 

 
10. Has the organization previously received funding from the City of Coachella?  

 Yes       No   
If yes, please identify the program/service, total prior grant allocation, and the fiscal year in 
which the funds were received. 
 
 

11. Is this request for a  New or  Existing program/service within the City? 
 

12. What is the anticipated time frame to provide the proposed program/service and the 
expenditure of the requested funds? 
 
 

13. Describe briefly how the requested funds will be used. 
 
 

 
14. Will the program/service require additional funding sources? If so, identify all funding sources 

and provide the steps taken to acquire funding. 
 
 

 
15. If the program/service is planned to continue beyond the period provided by this grant, what 

funding plans are there to sustain the program/service? 
 
 
 

16. How will the proposed program/service serve City of Coachella residents?  Will the proposed 
program/service also serve non-Coachella residents? Please describe. 
 
 

 
17. Describe the characteristics of the clients the proposed program/service anticipates to serve (i.e. 

age group, gender, income level, ethnicity, etc.) 
 
 

 
 

18. Attach a proposed budget for requested funds. 
 
Authorized Official:                                              Title:  
 
 
Signature:                                                                         Date:  

 
 

✔

✔

✔

49 years serving the Coachella Valley,

For Operation School Bell, we received $1,000 in each of the following fiscal years:2021-22, 2019-20, 2018-19, 2017-18, 2016-17 and 201
5-16.

July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Please see attached program description

Yes, we apply for grants from: local municipal and governmental agencies, private,and public
foundations.  We solicit individual donations and operate membership fundraising throughout
the year.

Funding is sought on an annual basis, depending on the number of students identified as in
need.

Please see attached program description

We serve all eligible elementary school students in the Coachella Unified School District.  
The latest information provides that the district’s minority enrollment is 100% and 65.2% of 
students are economically disadvantaged.  The students to be served are predominately 
Hispanic, English language learners

Jennifer Gifford Grants Chairperson

Page 201

Item 19.



Page 202

Item 19.



Page 203

Item 19.



 
 
 

Assistance League Coachella Valley 
Operation School Bell® Clothing and Hygiene Approved Budget 

2022-2023 Fiscal Year 
 
 
 
 

Clothing                     $200,000 
(shirts, shoes, socks, underwear) 
 
Hygiene Supplies               20,000  
(brush, comb, toothbrush, toothpaste, dental floss, shampoo, soap, deodorant)      
 
Office Supplies                           200 
 
 
TOTAL            $220,200 

Page 204

Item 19.



Page 205

Item 19.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve a Community Based Grant to the Assistance League Coachella Valley 

in the Amount of $1,000  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider awarding a Community Based Grant (CBG) to 

the Assistance League Coachella Valley in the amount of $1,000.00.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Community Based Grant Program was established in 2010 and allows the City of Coachella 

to offer financial assistance to local nonprofit organizations, schools, youth-serving organizations, 

and other community-based organizations that provide essential services, programs and activities 

to residents in Coachella. Applicant organizations are only eligible to submit one application for 

consideration each fiscal year and must be legally established with non-profit or tax-exempt status, 

be based in the Coachella Valley, or provide direct service to Coachella residents. Approval of 

grant funds does not constitute a precedent for grant allocations in subsequent years. All CBG 

grants are reimbursement grants to ensure that applicants are meeting their stated goals.  The FY 

22-23 budget includes an allocation of $15,000 for the Community Based Grant Program.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The Assistance League Coachella Valley is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization with the mission of 

volunteers transforming the lives of children through community programs.  The Assistance 

League Coachella Valley (formerly the Assistance League of Palm Springs), accomplishes its 

mission through Operation School Bell, its largest philanthropic program that provides new school 

clothing and hygiene kits to needy children.  Grant funding support will help Operation School 

Bell serve low-income, at-risk elementary school-age children in Coachella.   

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Award the Assistance League Coachella Valley a Community Based Grant in the amount of 

$1,000.00. 

2. Do not award a Community Based Grant.  

 

Page 206

Item 19.



FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the Council approves the staff recommendation, the Community Based Grant account will be 

reduced by $1,000.00.  

 

ATTACHMENT: 

 

Community-Based Grant Program Application 

 

Page 207

Item 19.



Page 208

Item 20.



Page 209

Item 20.



Page 210

Item 20.



Page 211

Item 20.



Page 212

Item 20.



Page 213

Item 20.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve a Community Based Grant to Angel View in the Amount of $1,000.00 

to Support its Outreach Program for Children 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider awarding a Community Based Grant to Angel 

View in the amount of $1,000.00 to support its Outreach Program for Children. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Community Based Grant Program was established in 2010 and allows the City of Coachella 

to offer financial assistance to local nonprofit organizations, schools, youth-serving organizations, 

and other community-based organizations that provide essential services, programs and activities 

to residents in Coachella. Applicant organizations are only eligible to submit one application for 

consideration each fiscal year and must be legally established with non-profit or tax-exempt status, 

be based in the Coachella Valley, or provide direct service to Coachella residents. Approval of 

grant funds does not constitute a precedent for grant allocations in subsequent years. All CBG 

grants are reimbursement grants to ensure that applicants are meeting their stated goals.  The FY 

22-23 budget includes an allocation of $15,000 for the Community Based Grant Program.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Angel View is a nonprofit organization with the mission of helping children and adults with 

disabilities reach their maximum potential.  Each year, Angel View helps hundreds of people make 

significant gains toward independence through three primary programs: Residential Care, Day 

Program and Angel View Outreach. Angel View accepts clients without regard to race, color or 

national origin and makes every effort to accommodate clients’ cultural and religious customs.  

Through its Outreach program, Angel View provides much needed equipment like specialized car 

seats, orthopedic shoes, communication devices, adaptive equipment, and mobility devices.  Angel 

View also enables children with a wide range of disabilities to participate in programs like the 

American Youth Soccer Organization VIP Soccer League, SkillsBuilders, art classes, swim 

programs and more. 

 

 

 

Page 214

Item 20.



ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Award a Community Based Grant to Angel View in the Amount of $1,000.00 to Support Its 

Outreach Program for Children 

 

2. Do Not Award a Community Based Grant to Angel View 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the City Council approves a grant award, the Community Based Grant account will be reduced 

by $1,000.00. 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

Community Based Grant Application 

  
 

 

 

Page 215

Item 20.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Youth Sports Association 

Soccer League in the Amount of $1,000  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider awarding a Community Based Grant (CBG) to 

the Coachella Youth Sports Association Soccer League in the amount of $1,000.00.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Community Based Grant Program was established in 2010 and allows the City of Coachella 

to offer financial assistance to local nonprofit organizations, schools, youth-serving organizations, 

and other community-based organizations that provide essential services, programs and activities 

to residents in Coachella. Applicant organizations are only eligible to submit one application for 

consideration each fiscal year and must be legally established with non-profit or tax-exempt status, 

be based in the Coachella Valley, or provide direct service to Coachella residents. Approval of 

grant funds does not constitute a precedent for grant allocations in subsequent years. All CBG 

grants are reimbursement grants to ensure that applicants are meeting their stated goals.  The FY 

22-23 budget includes an allocation of $15,000 for the Community Based Grant Program.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The Coachella Youth Sports Association Soccer League is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization that 

was established in 2009 and is dedicated to fostering sports competition amongst youth.  CYSA 

Soccer League is requesting grant funding support to purchase new soccer goal posts for field 

number two, which is located at the open green space owned by Armtec Defense on Avenue 53. 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Award the Coachella Youth Sports Association Soccer League a Community Based Grant in 

the amount of $1,000.00. 

2. Do not award a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Youth Sports Association Soccer 

League. 

 

Page 216

Item 21.



 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the Council approves the staff recommendation, the Community Based Grant account will be 

reduced by $1,000.00.  

 

ATTACHMENT: 

 

Community-Based Grant Program Application 

 

Page 217

Item 21.



Page 218

Item 21.



Page 219

Item 21.



Page 220

Item 21.



Page 221

Item 21.



Page 222

Item 21.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Authorize a Community Based Grant to Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount 

of $1,000 to Support its Art Center  
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider awarding a Community Based Grant (CBG) to 

Culturas Music and Arts in the amount of $1,000.00 to help offset the expense of general liability 

insurance for one year. 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Community Based Grant Program was established in 2010 and allows the City of Coachella 

to offer financial assistance to local nonprofit organizations, youth-serving organizations, and 

other community-based organizations that provide essential services, programs and activities to 

residents in Coachella. Applicant organizations are only eligible to submit one application for 

consideration each fiscal year and must be legally established with non-profit or tax-exempt status, 

be based in the Coachella Valley, or provide direct service to Coachella residents. Approval of 

grant funds does not constitute a precedent for grant allocations in subsequent years. All CBG 

grants are reimbursement grants to ensure that applicants are meeting their stated goals.  The FY 

22-23 budget included an allocation of $15,000 for the Community Based Grant Program.  

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Culturas Music and Arts is a nonprofit organization based in the city of Coachella dedicated to 

art, culture and music.  Culturas Music and Arts is requesting grant funding support to help offset 

the expense of general liability insurance for one year at its Art Center, located at 510 Vine 

Avenue, Coachella, CA 92236. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Authorize a Community Based Grant to Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $1,000 to 

Support Its Art Center 

 

2. Not Authorize a Community Based Grant to Culturas Music and Arts  

 

Page 223

Item 22.



FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Should the City Council approve the staff recommendation, the Community Based Grant account 

will be reduced by $1,000.00. 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

 

1. Copy of Application 

 

Page 224

Item 22.



Page 225

Item 22.



Oralia Ortiz

DirectorOralia Ortiz

05/31/2022

Page 226

Item 22.



Page 227

Item 22.



Page 228

Item 22.



Page 229

Item 22.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Award construction agreement to WGJ Enterprises Inc. (dba PCI) for the FY 

2023-26 On-Call Striping Contract Project No. 083122.     
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award construction agreement to WGJ Enterprises Inc. (dba PCI) for the FY 2023-26 On-Call 

Striping Contract Project No. 083122. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The City published a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for on-call striping services for fiscal years 

2023-2026.  This RFP closed on October 4, 2022 at 2pm.  The City received one responsive and 

responsible proposal from WGH Enterprises Inc., the total base bid amount was $144,294.  The 

base bid comprised of a total of over thirty striping and street marking options for a one-mile 

distance.  Based on unit pricing provided staff will prioritize striping work needed on major 

arterials for fiscal year 2022/2023.    

 

Staff has reviewed the response received from WGH Enterprises Inc. (dba PCI) and is 

recommending award of a construction agreement for a one-year term, with the option to extend 

for up to three additional one-year terms for on-call striping services.  The contract term being 

November 1, 2022-October 31, 2026.  The recommended award amount is a not to exceed amount 

of $120,000, based on available budget. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The recommended action will not have a fiscal impact. 

 

Attachments: 

Proposed Agreement 

 

 

Page 230

Item 23.



CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

This Contract for Construction (“Contract”), is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 
2022, by and between City of Coachella, a municipal corporation, organized under the laws of the 
State of California, with its principal place of business at 53462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, 
California 92236, sometimes hereinafter called the “City” and WGJ Enterprises Inc., dba PCI, 
sometimes hereinafter called “Contractor.” 

WITNESSETH:  That the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed, and by these 
presents do covenant and agree with each other as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF WORK.   

The Contractor shall perform all Work within the time stipulated in the Contract, and shall provide 
all labor, materials, equipment, tools, utility services, and transportation to complete all of the 
Work required in strict compliance with the Contract Documents as specified in Article 5, below, 
for the following Project: 

FY 2023-26 On-Call Striping Contract  
CITY PROJECT NO. 083122 

 
 

Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent of the City.  The Contractor and its 
surety shall be liable to the City for any damages arising as a result of the Contractor’s failure to 
comply with this obligation. 

ARTICLE 2. TERM.   

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 1st day of November  2022, and shall terminate 
on the 31st day of October 2023, unless terminated earlier as set forth herein.   

This Agreement may be mutually extended for up to three additional one-year terms, through 
fiscal year 2025/2026, upon satisfactory performance of all aspects of this Agreement.  The City 
may submit written notice that the Agreement is to be extended at the same terms and 
compensation as the existing Agreement.   

Contractor and City agree that time is of the essence regarding the performance of this 
Agreement.  All work called for under this Agreement will require the Contractor submit and City 
approve a Project Schedule for completion of work requested.  

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT PRICE.   

The City shall pay to the Contractor as full compensation for the performance of the Contract, 
subject to any additions or deductions as provided in the Contract Documents, and including all 
applicable taxes and costs, the not to exceed sum of One Hundred Twenty Thousand Dollars  
($120,000.00). Payment shall be made as set forth in the General Conditions.  The City will pay 
to Contractor compensation based upon the prices set forth in the Proposal Schedule. 

Page 231

Item 23.



ARTICLE 4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.   

Contractor acknowledges that the City will sustain actual damages for each and every Working 
Day completion of the Project is delayed beyond the Contract Time (per approved Project 
Schedule). Because of the nature of the Project, it would be impracticable or extremely difficult to 
determine the City’s actual damages.  Accordingly, in accordance with Government Code section 
53069.85, it is agreed that the Contractor will pay the City the sum of $500.00 for each and every 
Working Day of delay beyond the time prescribed in the Contract Documents.  In the event this is 
not paid, the Contractor agrees the City may deduct that amount from any money due or that may 
become due the Contractor under the Contract. This Section does not exclude recovery of other 
damages specified in the Contract Documents.  Liquidated damages may be deducted from 
progress payments due Contractor, Project retention or may be collected directly from Contractor, 
or from Contractor's surety.  These provisions for liquidated damages shall not prevent the City, 
in case of Contractor's default, from terminating the Contractor. 

ARTICLE 5. COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT.   

The “Contract Documents” include the following: 

Notice Inviting Bids  
Instructions to Proposers 
ProposalForms 
ProposalAcknowledgement  
ProposalSchedule  
ProposalGuarantee 
Designation of Subcontractors 
Information Required of Proposers 
Non-Collusion Declaration Form 
Iran Contracting Act Certification 
Drug-Free Workplace Certification 
Asbestos-Free Material Certification 
Recycled Content Certification 
Public Works Contractor DIR Registration Certification 
Performance Bond 
Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond 
Contract for Construction  
General Conditions 
Special Conditions 
Technical Specifications 
Addenda 
Construction Plans and Drawings 
City of Coachella Standard Specifications and Procedures (June 2007) 
City of Coachella Standard Infrastructure Drawings (2007 Edition) including Surface 

Improvement Standards and Water Standards  
Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction “Greenbook” (2018), Except 

Sections 1-9 
Standard Plans for Public Works Construction “Greenbook” (2018) 
Caltrans Standard Specifications (2018), except Division 1 
Caltrans Standard Plans (2018)  
Applicable Local Agency Standards and Specifications, as last revised 
Reference Specifications  

Page 232

Item 23.



Approved and fully executed Change Orders 
Permits 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 

The Contractor shall complete the Work in strict accordance with all of the Contract Documents. 

All of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary.  Work required by one of the 
Contract Documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all.  In the event of conflict, 
the various Contract Documents will be given effect in the order set forth in the General 
Conditions.  This Contract shall supersede any prior agreement of the parties.   

ARTICLE 6. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW AND CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE.   

Each and every provision of law required to be included in these Contract Documents shall be 
deemed to be included in these Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall comply with all 
requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not 
limited to, the provisions of the California Labor Code and California Public Contract Code which 
are applicable to this Work. 

ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION.   

Contractor shall provide indemnification and defense as set forth in the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 8. PREVAILING WAGES.   

Contractor shall be required to pay the prevailing rate of wages in accordance with the Labor 
Code which such rates may be obtained online at http://www.dir.ca.gov and which must be 
posted at the job site. 

ARTICLE 9. FALSE CLAIMS.   

Contractor acknowledges that if a false claim is submitted to the City, it may be considered fraud 
and Contractor may be subject to criminal prosecution.  Contractor acknowledges that the False 
Claims Act, California Government Code sections 12650, et seq., provides for civil penalties 
where a person knowingly submits a false claim to a public entity.  These provisions include within 
their scope false claims made with deliberate ignorance of the false information or in reckless 
disregard of the truth or falsity of the information.  In the event the City seeks to recover penalties 
pursuant to the False Claims Act, it is entitled to recover its litigation costs, including attorneys’ 
fees.  Contractor hereby acknowledges that the filing of a false claim may the Contractor to an 
administrative debarment proceeding wherein Contractor may be prevented from further bidding 
on public contracts for a period of up to five (5) years. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  

Page 233

Item 23.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by the above-named parties, on 
the day and year above written. 

CITY OF COACHELLA  

By: 

Dr. Gabriel D. Martin 
      City Manager 
 
 

ATTEST: 

By:   
            Andrea Carranza, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:   
Best Best & Krieger LLP 
City Attorney 

 

WGJ ENTERPRISES INC., DBA PCI 

By: 

 
Its:
  

Printed 
Name:
  
 
  
By: 

 
Its:
  

Printed 
Name:
  
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Contractor’s License Number and 
Classification  

 
____________________________________ 
DIR Registration Number   

 

 
 

 

Page 234

Item 23.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Dr. Gabriel D. Martin, City Manager 

Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Sponsorship of Raices Cultura for 2022 Dia de los Muertos Celebration in the 

Amount of $15,000 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider approving a sponsorship request for Raices 

Cultura in the amount of $15,000 to be the Presenting Sponsor of their Dia de los Muertos 

celebration on November 5, 2022. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

Since 2004, the Dia de los Muertos celebration event by Raices Cultura has grown year after year 

and the 2019 event brought more than 4,000 attendees together to celebrate art, culture, and 

community health with the main event partner’s Run with Los Muertos 5k Race. Funding from 

Raices Cultura sponsors supported unique art displays from large-scale Calaveras painted by local 

artists, to the traditional ‘ofrendas’ built by intergenerational family members, artists, and 

community organizations; the community art gallery featured over a dozen visual artists, a special 

commission of two over-sized ‘titeres’ - La Catrina y El Viejito - by expert puppet-makers for the 

procession, the doubling of its thematic community-based art workshops, an interactive art 

installation photo op area, and a new curated Mercadito de Arte vendor area. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Should the City Council approve the request as submitted, an appropriation of $15,000 from 

Undesignated General Fund Reserves will be required to allow for sponsorship award in the 

requested amount of $15,000. If approved the appropriation will be made to the event from the 

General Fund. 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

 

Sponsorship Request 

Page 235

Item 24.



 

 

Dear Dr. Gabriel Martin, City Manager, City of Coachella: 

Raices Cultura would like to request your consideration to be the Presenting Sponsor for our Dia de Los Muertos 
Celebration in Coachella on November 5, 2022. Your support will not only continue to ensure the success of this long-
standing tradition and demonstrate the power of art & culture to empower community, it will signify that the City of 
Coachella is a visionary investor in engaging opportunities for residents of the Eastern Coachella Valley. 

Who We Are: Raices Cultura is committed to the empowerment of youth and adult residents through artistic self-
expression and cultural inclusivity. We promote the preservation of cultural traditions and the development of personal 
voice, creativity, and civic engagement through the arts - all in service of transformative justice. 

Event Sponsorship: This event attracts a diverse audience from the Coachella Valley and beyond where all are 
welcome. Raices Cultura’s efforts are in honor of the ancient indigenous traditions of Mesoamerican peoples combined 
with Mexican and Spanish cultural influences that celebrates the lives of loved ones who are no longer within the living 
world. 

Since 2005, we have proudly staged our event in the City of Coachella and it has grown year after year with thousands 
of attendees gathering together to celebrate art, culture, & community. Event sponsorships support everything from 
unique art displays such as our oversized calaveras painted by local artists, to the traditional ofrendas built by 
intergenerational family members, artists, and community organizations, as well as a community art gallery featuring 
dozens of visual artists, numerous thematic art workshops that educate attendees about cultural traditions, special 
projects by expert puppet-makers and visual artists, interactive photo-op areas, a curated Mercadito de Arte vendor 
area, and more! 

We respectfully request your support for our annual Dia de Los Muertos celebration. Your sponsorship will foster 
sustainability for our organization & the important work we do, greater support for artists, and expand the art offerings 
at our annual event. It is a wonderful opportunity to proudly display your commitment to strengthening community and 
increasing access to art & culture in the Coachella Valley. 

In Community, 

Marnie L. Navarro 
Raices Cultura Executive Director 

 
1536 7th Street | PO Box 714 Coachella, CA 92236 | www.raicescultura.org 

Page 236

Item 24.

http://www.raicescultura.org/


 

2022 Sponsorship Levels 

Presenting Sponsor: Chicomecoatl (Nourishment) - $15,000 (1 available) 
● Presenting Sponsor of Raices Cultura’s 2022 Dia de Los Muertos (DDLM) Event on November 5 
● Sponsor of Special Project Art Installation for event with a Presenting Sponsor placard 
● Custom nicho sculpture to keep from 2021 Somos Sagrados Exhibition at Sunnylands* 
● Special art project by Raices Artist Team for a future event of sponsor’s choice** 
● Extra large logo on banner displayed at event in prominent location and in event program 
● Logo displayed as Presenting Sponsor on 2022 printed material and on organization website in perpetuity 
● Formal acknowledgement by Master of Ceremonies during opening remarks 

Visionary Sponsor: Coatlicue (Supreme Goddess) - $10,000 (1 available) 
● 8’ x 6’ Giant Calavera custom painted by Raices artist team for display at event with Sponsor placard 
● Sponsor of Activity Zone thematic art workshops at the event with sponsor logo on display 
● Sponsor of New Augmented Reality Art Activation for 2022 event in Coachella 
● Custom nicho sculpture to keep from 2021 Somos Sagrados Exhibition at Sunnylands* 
● Large logo on banner displayed at event in prominent location and in event program 
● Logo displayed as Partner Sponsor on 2022 printed material and on organization website in perpetuity 
● Formal acknowledgement by Master of Ceremonies during opening remarks 

Program Sponsor: Quetzalcoatl (Creator of Earth) - $5,000 (4 available) 
● A 4’x4’ Large Calavera painted by local artists for display with sponsor name placard* 
● Sponsor 1 year of the following programs: Tierra de Raices, Nepantleras, Media Production, or Open Mic 
● Medium logo on banner displayed at event in prominent location and medium logo in event program 
● Logo listed as Gold Sponsor on 2022 printed material and on website in perpetuity 
● Formal acknowledgement by Master of Ceremonies during opening remarks 
● Invitation to private Artist Dinner (TBD) 

Collaborator Sponsor: Tezcatlipoca (Earth Co-Creator) - $1,000 (10 available) 
● Special sponsor art pack with (1) limited edition art print and (1) 2022 DDLM t-shirt*** 
● Small logo on banner displayed at event in prominent location and in event program 
● Logo displayed as 2022 Silver Sponsor on Raices website in perpetuity 
● Invitation to private Artist Dinner (TBD) 

Ally Sponsor: Tlaloc (Rain & Water)- $500 (10 available) 
● Small logo on banner displayed at event in prominent location and in event program 
● Logo displayed as 2022 Bronze Sponsor on Raices website in perpetuity 
● Invitation to private Artist Dinner (TBD) 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
*Option to keep the nicho/calavera or donate it back to Raices Cultura for auction or reuse. 
**Special project not to exceed $2000.00 budget 
***Indicate mailing address and size for t-shirt (S, M, L, XL, XXL) 
Please contact a representative of Raices Cultura at (760) 861-3188 if interested in a sponsorship. Make checks payable to Raices 
Cultura and mail to P.O. Box 714, Coachella, CA 92236. Sponsorships must be confirmed by October 15, 2022 to be included in 
promotional materials. Raices Cultura is a tax-exempt organization and is exempt from Federal income tax under section 501 (c) (3) 
of the Internal Revenue Code EIN# 26-4790803. Page 237

Item 24.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Gabriel Martin, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2022-91 in Support of Rebuilding, Renovations, and Upgrades to 

Coachella Valley High School 
 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The City Council has continuously expressed support for the Coachella Valley Unified School 

District and its efforts to equip every student with the knowledge, skills, character, and well-being 

to thrive. Another way for the District to support students, families, faculty, and the community is 

to rebuild, renovate, and update Coachella Valley High School (CVHS).  

 

While much has been done to develop the school since 1910, most CVHS facilities are over 70 

years old and many buildings and classrooms now require rebuilding and renovation. These 

essential updates can ensure that CVHS has modern information technology infrastructure, 

learning technology and science labs, security enhancements, and modern classrooms and 

infrastructure that will attract and retain the best teachers and staff. 

 

The purpose of the proposed Resolution is to recognize the District’s service and to request that 

the District conduct a thorough planning process to identify the rebuilding/renovations/upgrades 

needed for CVHS and determine how to responsibly finance this construction with input from 

parents, teachers, staff, students, faculty and members of the community in order to enhance 

academic achievement, achieve safety and accessibility standards, and address CVHS-specific 

priorities. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution No. 2022-91 

Page 238

Item 25.



80237.00000\40724177.1 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-91 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA IN SUPPORT OF 

REBUILDING, RENOVATIONS, AND UPGRADES TO 

COACHELLA VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL  

WHEREAS, Coachella Valley High School (“CVHS”) is a public high school in the 

Coachella Valley Unified School District (“District”) located at 83-800 Airport Boulevard in 

Thermal, California; 

WHEREAS, CVHS is a historical gem established in 1910. By 1939, the student body had 

outgrown the space and an auditorium and administration buildings were constructed with bond 

financing and grant funding. New classrooms, a music and arts building, a swimming pool, 

basketball courts, parking area, lunch area, gymnasium, and mini-gym were added in the 1950s. 

In the 1990s, a new football stadium, cafeteria, and new shade structure were built. In the late 

1990s and early 2000s a new state of the art library and new all-weather track were built. In 2014 

a new state of the art pool replaced the old pool was added to help support aquatics in the 

community; 

WHEREAS, the above-mentioned improvements have significantly enhanced the school, 

but most CVHS facilities are over 70 years old and many existing buildings and classrooms have 

not been updated and now require rebuilding and renovation;   

WHEREAS, the City of Coachella (“City”) commends the District on their efforts to equip 

every student with the knowledge, skills, character, and well-being to thrive and encourages the 

District to rebuild and upgrade CVHS in order to improve the quality of education that the students 

deserve and attract and retain qualified teachers and staff;   

WHEREAS, all City residents benefit from living in a community with good local schools 

and whether or not residents have school-age children, protecting the quality of our schools will 

keep our neighborhoods desirable places to live, attract businesses, and increase property values. 

Public schools offer amenities to the entire community such as athletic and cultural events, 

educational programs for residents, auditorium space for public meetings and other community 

group gatherings, and shelter for residents during public emergencies;  

WHEREAS, the City requests that the District undertake essential repairs and updates on 

classrooms and facilities; ensuring CVHS has updated information technology infrastructure, 

learning technology and science labs, as well as safe, secure campuses to protect students and staff 

and modern classrooms that will attract and retain the best teachers and staff;  

WHEREAS, the City requests that the District upgrade CVHS’s infrastructure and provide 

renovations to academic facilities ensuring a healthful learning environment for students and 

faculty. 

 

 

Page 239

Item 25.



Resolution No. 2022-91 

Page 2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 

Coachella, California does hereby request that the District conduct a thorough planning process to 

identify the rebuilding/renovations/upgrades needed to CVHS and determine how to responsibly 

finance this construction with input from parents, teachers, staff, students, faculty and members of 

the community in order to enhance academic achievement, achieve safety and accessibility 

standards, and address CVHS-specific priorities. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 12th day of October 2022. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney  

Page 240

Item 25.



Resolution No. 2022-91 

Page 3 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-91 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 12th day of 

October 2022, by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:  

   

NOES:    

   

ABSENT:  

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

Page 241

Item 25.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Dr. Gabriel Martin, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2022-92 in Support of Action by the Desert Community College 

District to Establish a Branch in the Eastern Coachella Valley 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2022-92 in supporting action by 

the Desert Community College District to establish a College of the Desert branch in the Eastern 

Coachella Valley.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

In 1958, the voters in the Coachella Valley approved the formation of the Desert Community 

College District (“District”) to create a local two-year college (College of the Desert) that currently 

serves over 400,000 residents, 9 local cities and 3 local K-12 school districts. In March 2004, the 

voters in the District voted overwhelmingly approved the Measure B General Obligation Bond, to 

authorize the sale of bonds, in the amount of $346.5 million, that would enable the District to 

renovate its 40-year old campus and expand for future growth. 

 

The District has already funded and completed various projects, such as renovations to the nursing 

building, the business building, and dining hall; along with new construction projects like Alumni 

Centre, Baker Foundation Nursing Complex, Burn Tower Training Facility, Central Plant, Public 

Safety Academy, Cravens Student Services Center, Indio East Valley Campus, and the Math 

Science Technology Center building. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The District currently has (Exhibit A) 10,998 students enrolled with 8,213 students being 

Hispanic/Latino, which is 75% of its student population; furthermore, 3,902 students enrolled at 

College of the Desert (Exhibit B) are from the City of Coachella, which makes up 35% of its 

student population. The College of the Desert is federally recognized as a Hispanic Serving 

Institution (HIS). 

 

The success of the East Valley’s economic and social future is enhanced by the educational 

attainment of its residents, especially post-secondary attainment.  Student participation in quality 

Page 242

Item 26.



post-secondary education is dependent on equitable access to transportation, affordable student 

housing and equitable instruction. Historically, students living in the eastern most portion of the 

Coachella Valley have had limited access to consistent and comprehensive post-secondary 

academic and vocational instruction, leading to associate in arts or science degrees.  

 

Currently, there are classes being offered at the Coachella Public Library; however, those coursed 

are limited and do not offer complete program or degree pathways. The College of the Desert is 

currently conducting tenant improvements in a commercially leased unit in the new Pueblo Viejo 

Villas, which is an affordable housing project located at 1279 6th Street in Coachella. The 1,355 

sq. ft. space will serve as a new Student Services for the residents of Coachella and is estimated to 

cost $667,000. On August 25, 2021, the City of Coachella leased the Old Library building, located 

at 1538 7th Street in Coachella, to the College of the Desert as a temporary Student Service Center 

until the tenant improvement project at the Pueblo Viejo Villas is complete. The City did not 

charge them a monthly lease rate; instead, it agreed to allow the District to provide $80,000 in 

tenant improvement to the Old Library Building.  

 

The City Council would like to request that the District conduct a thorough planning process with 

sufficient community outreach for a feasibility study to identify potential sites to establish a branch 

in the eastern part of the Coachella Valley. Furthermore, request that the District directs and 

authorizes the President of the District to work with the City Manager to continue to communicate 

and strategize on possible rebuilding, renovation upgrades, and programs needs within the Eastern 

Coachella Valley. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. To not approve resolution and provide new direction to Staff 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

No Fiscal Impact. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Resolution No. 2022-92 

 Exhibit “A” 

 Exhibit “B” 
 

 

 

Page 243

Item 26.



80237.00000\40724177.1 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-92 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA IN SUPPORT OF ACTION 

BY THE COLLEGE OF THE DESERT TO ESTABLISH A 

BRANCH IN THE EASTERN COACHELLA VALLEY  

WHEREAS, the California Community College system is the most extensive post-

secondary system of education in the world, enrolling approximately 2.1 million students each 

year in 116 community colleges; and  

WHEREAS, the primary mission of the California Community Colleges is to offer 

academic and vocational instruction, colleges may grant associate in arts degrees, associate in 

science degrees, and select baccalaureate degrees; and  

WHEREAS, California Community Colleges also perform essential functions in the 

State’s interest by providing workforce training and improvement services, remedial instruction, 

English as Second Language courses, adult noncredit education, and community service courses; 

and  

WHEREAS, the State has met its historic policy of access to higher education by providing 

consistent State bond capital outlay resources; and  

WHEREAS, in 1958, the voters in the Coachella Valley approved the formation of the 

Desert Community College District (“District”) to create a local two-year college (College of the 

Desert) that currently serves over 400,000 residents, 9 local cities and 3 local K-12 school districts; 

and 

WHEREAS, in March 2004, the voters in the District voted overwhelmingly approved the 

Measure B General Obligation Bond, to authorize the sale of bonds, in the amount of $346.5 

million, that would enable the District to renovate its 40-year old campus and expand for future 

growth; and 

WHEREAS, the District has already funded and completed various projects, such as 

renovations to the nursing building, the business building, and dining hall; along with new 

construction projects like Alumni Centre, Baker Foundation Nursing Complex, Burn Tower 

Training Facility, Central Plant, Public Safety Academy, Cravens Student Services Center, Indio 

East Valley Campus, and the Math Science Technology Center building; and 

WHEREAS, the District currently has (Exhibit A) 10,998 students enrolled with 8,213 

students being Hispanic/Latino which is 75% of its student population; and 

WHEREAS, 3,902 students (Exhibit B) from the City of Coachella are currently enrolled 

in the District, which makes up 35% of its student population; and 

WHEREAS, the success of the East Valley’s economic and social future is enhanced by 

the educational attainment of its residents, especially post-secondary attainment; and  

Page 244

Item 26.



Resolution No. 2022-92 

Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, student participation in quality post-secondary education is dependent on 

equitable access to transportation, affordable student housing and equitable instruction; and  

WHEREAS, students living in the eastern most portion of the Coachella Valley have 

historically had limited access to consistent and comprehensive post-secondary academic and 

vocational instruction, leading to associate in arts or science degrees; and  

WHEREAS, the classes offered at the Coachella Public Library and the Mecca Satellite 

Campus of the College of the Desert offers limited course offerings and program pathways. 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2021, the City of Coachella leased the Old Library building, 

located at 1538 7th Street, to the College of the Desert as a temporary Student Service Center until 

the tenant improvement project at the Pueblo Viejo Villas is complete. The City did not charge the 

District a monthly lease rate; instead, it agreed to allow the District to provide $80,000 in tenant 

improvement to the Old Library Building; and 

WHEREAS, the College of the Desert is currently conducting tenant improvements in a 

commercially leased unit in the new Pueblo Viejo Villas, which is an affordable housing project 

located at 1279 6th Street in Coachella. The 1,355 sq. ft. space will serve as a new Student Services 

for the residents of Coachella and is estimated to cost $667,000 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 

Coachella, California does hereby request the following: 

1. The District conduct a thorough planning process with sufficient community 

outreach for a feasibility study to identify potential sites to establish a branch in the 

eastern part of the Coachella Valley. 

2. The District directs and authorizes the President of the District to work with the 

City Manager to continue to communicate and strategize on possible rebuilding, 

renovation upgrades, and programs needs within the Eastern Coachella Valley.  

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 12th day of October 2022. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

Page 245

Item 26.



Resolution No. 2022-92 

Page 3 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney  

Page 246

Item 26.



Resolution No. 2022-92 

Page 4 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-92 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 12th day of 

October 2022, by the following vote of Council: 

 

AYES:  

   

NOES:   

   

ABSENT:  

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  

Deputy City Clerk 

 

Page 247

Item 26.



10/6/22, 8:59 AM Microsoft Power BI

https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMDcxMGNlZDAtYzNjYS00ZGUyLTgwYmItZjEzOWYzY2NkOTQ3IiwidCI6IjQ5YjIzNzc5LWQ5NjQtNGRjMy05Z… 1/1

Student Headcount
Fall Semesters 2015 to 2021

AgeGenderEthnicity

Term American Indian or Alaskan Native
 

Asian
 

Balance
 

Black or African American
 

Hispanic or Latino
 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
 

Two or more races
 

White
 

Total

Fall 2015
Fall 2016
Fall 2017
Fall 2018
Fall 2019
Fall 2020
Fall 2021

37
34
42
37
44
36
28

496
471
457
463
481
409
395

215
207
217
178
290
134
130

315
323
335
329
330
266
252

8,713
9,262
9,558
9,795
10,109
8,622
8,213

19
11
19
13
13
9
7

280
296
285
310
317
334
316

2,228
2,157
2,022
1,942
1,916
1,779
1,657

12,303
12,761
12,935
13,067
13,500
11,589
10,998

0K

2K

4K

6K

8K

10K

Fall 2015 Fall 2016 Fall 2017 Fall 2018 Fall 2019 Fall 2020 Fall 2021

Ethnicity
American Indian or Alaskan Native

Asian

Balance

Black or African American

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander

Two or more races

White

To compare individual
groups, hold down the
CTRL key and choose

the groups you want to
compare.

Microsoft Power BI  

EXHIBIT "A"

Information available on College of the Desert web page, please click here

Page 248

Item 26.

https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.collegeofthedesert.edu%2F
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.collegeofthedesert.edu%2F
https://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.collegeofthedesert.edu%2F
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkID=722383&clcid=0x409
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMDcxMGNlZDAtYzNjYS00ZGUyLTgwYmItZjEzOWYzY2NkOTQ3IiwidCI6IjQ5YjIzNzc5LWQ5NjQtNGRjMy05ZmNlLTk4NmRlNDY1MzVlOCIsImMiOjZ9


Information available at College of the Desert Dashboard, please click here

EXHIBIT "B"

Page 249

Item 26.

https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNWM5NDhkZWQtYTBiNC00MjVjLTk4M2EtY2U3ODMxMDRjNmQ2IiwidCI6IjQ5YjIzNzc5LWQ5NjQtNGRjMy05ZmNlLTk4NmRlNDY1MzVlOCIsImMiOjZ9


 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Provide staff direction for 2022 Hometown Heroes Honorees. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Provide staff direction for 2022 Hometown Heroes Honorees. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The “Hometown Heroes” monument was created to recognize people who have contributed to 

the community and culture of our community.  Currently, our “Hometown Heroes” include the 

following: 

 Cesar Chavez; Civil Rights and Labor Leader 

 Leonila Torres; Community Leader 

 Linda Garza; Government Employee 

 Elvira Acosta Murillo; Community Leader 

 Severio “Cosmo” Lira Jr.; Commitment to Youth 

 Raquel G. Medina; Community Volunteer 

 Rich Ramirez; Educator and Mentor 

 Chauncey Veatch; Educator and Mentor 

 Juan Torres; Entrepreneur and Business Leader 

 Joe and Maria Celia Munoz; Exceptional Citizens 

 Julio Diaz, Antonio Diaz and Joel Diaz; Boxing Family Champions 

 Eugenia Ortiz; Community Leader and Activist  

 Clementine Olloque, Maria Carmona-Marron, Maria Serrano, Maria Munoz; Community 

Leaders and Activists  

 Organización en California de Lideres Campesinas; Leaders and Community Activists   

 Caballero Family, Boxing Family Champions 

 Chris Romero, Exceptional Citizen 

 Mary Lou Torres, Exceptional Citizen and Advocate 

 Merlyn Hamner, Historian  

 Joe Vega; Postmaster and Exceptional Citizen 

 Lee Espinoza; Coach and Mentor 

 CYSAS La Laja; Youth Sports Leaders  

 Vanessa Madera; Youth Sports Leader  

Page 250

Item 27.



 Joe Ceja; Educator and Mentor 

 Deputy David Solis; Exceptional Valor   

 Mayor Yolanda R. Coba; Community Leader  

 Enedina Rapan; Community Activist  

 Enedina Rapan, Jesus Mota, Maria Hernandez, Prospero Montes, Jesus Sanchez; 

Inspirational Community Mentors  

 Gabriela Fundora; Youth Sports Leader  

 Citlalli Ortiz; Youth Sports Leader  

 Cesar Sanchez, Entrepreneur and Business Leader 

 Father Guy Wilson; Religious and Spiritual Leader 

 Dr. Juan De Lara; Educator and Mentor 

 Juanita Godwin; Community Leader and Youth Mentor 

 Raices Cultura; Community Leader and Activists  

 Rosa Lucas – Community Advocate and Activist  

 Mario Lazcano; Community Leader and Activist  

 Captain Frank Morales, Lieutenant Cesar Garcia, Engineer Danny Castro, Lieutenant 

George Torres; Coachella Volunteer Firefighters 

 Clara Herrera and Clara Nieblas, Community Advocate and Activist 

 Rosalia Plata; Community Advocate and Activist  

 Baltazar Aguirre; Exceptional Citizen and Activist   

 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

Annually during the City’s Tree Lighting Ceremony the City has recognized individuals / 

organizations as Hometown Heroes; staff recommends selecting 2 -3 recognitions per year.  Staff 

is requesting direction for 2022 Hometown Hero nominees.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None.  

Page 251

Item 27.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Cástulo Estrada, Utilities Manager 

SUBJECT: Construction Contract with Jacobsson Engineering Construction, Inc. in the 

amount of $762,774.00 plus 15% contingency for the Castro Mobile Home Park 

Water Consolidation Project, City Project No. W-37. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

o Authorize City Manager to execute a construction contract with Jacobsson Engineering 

Construction, Inc. in an amount $762,774.00 plus 20% contingency for the Castro Mobile 

Home Park Water Consolidation Project, City Project No. W-37. 

o Authorize City Manager to execute contract with Atlas Technical Consultants LLC for 

reoccurring, as needed, construction materials and quality assurance testing for the Castro 

Mobile Home Park Water Consolidation Project, City Project W-37. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Castro’s Mobile Home Community, a mobile home park community (MHP) located in the 

Coachella Water Authority (CWA) service area, is currently receiving an emergency water supply 

from CWA through a fire hydrant and fire hose after its groundwater well collapsed. On January 

18, 2021 the City was awarded a Proposition 1 Round 1 Integrated Regional Water Management 

(IRWM) Implementation Grant in an amount of $1,099,245 by the Department of Water Resources 

of the State of California for the Castro Mobile Home Park Water Consolidation Project. 

The project consists of the installation of an 8-inch water main and the installation of 

approximately 45 water services, meter boxes, service reconnections, and approximately 830 feet 

of pipe within the MHP site. Fire hydrants will be installed and spaced to meet fire department 

requirements.  

The primary benefit of this project is that CWA will provide Castro MHP with approximately 32 

acre-ft per year (AFY) of safe, reliable potable drinking water to a DAC that can no longer rely on 

a deteriorated shallow groundwater well. The secondary benefit of this project is that CWA will 

provide the MHP with water that on average is lower in hexavalent chromium than the MHP’s 

well. This connection to CWA will provide Castro MHP with approximately a 5 Micrograms per 

Liter (μg/L) reduction in hexavalent chromium in drinking water to below the drinking water 

standard. 

Page 252

Item 28.



 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The City requested public bids in accordance with City standards and in compliance with the 

California Public Contract Code. On September 1, 2022, the City issued the Notice Inviting Bids 

with a non-mandatory job walk help on September 8, 2022. The project bid opening was held on 

September 22, 2022 at 2:00 p.m., with four companies submitting a bid for this project. The bid 

opening results are listed below: 

 

Company Name: City: Bid Amount: 

AID Builders  Los Alamitos $1,349,225.00 

Desert Concepts Indio $834,756.00 

Jacobsson Engineering Palm Desert $762,774.00 

Tri-Star Contracting Desert Hot Springs $991,507.23 

 

This total project cost includes all base bid items as well as one add alternative item. Staff has 

reviewed the bid and determined that Jacobsson Engineering Construction is the lowest, 

responsive, responsible bidder. Total project costs, including add alternative and contingencies are 

within the grant funds. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

No fiscal impact to general fund. Project has been included in the City’s approved CIP FY 22/23 

budget. Construction contract amount of $762,774.00 and contingency in an amount of 

$114,416.10 are within appropriated budget funded from Fund 178 (Water). 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Construction Contract – Jacobsson Engineering Construction, Inc. 
2. W-37 Bid Tabulation 

3. Professional Service Agreement – Atlas Technical Consultants LLC 
4. Castro Trailer Park Citation and Compliance Order  

 

Page 253

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-55- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION  

This Contract for Construction (“Contract”), is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 
2022, by and between City of Coachella, a municipal corporation, organized under the laws of the 
State of California, with its principal place of business at 53990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, 
California 92236, sometimes hereinafter called the “City” and Jacobsson Engineering 
Construction, Inc., a corporation, with its principal place of business at P.O. Box 14430, Palm 
Desert, CA 92255, sometimes hereinafter called “Contractor.” 

WITNESSETH:  That the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed, and by these 
presents do covenant and agree with each other as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF WORK.   

The Contractor shall perform all Work within the time stipulated in the Contract, and shall provide 
all labor, materials, equipment, tools, utility services, and transportation to complete all of the 
Work required in strict compliance with the Contract Documents as specified in Article 5, below, 
for the following Project: 

CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
CITY PROJECT NO.  W-37 

 
 

Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent of the City.  The Contractor and its 
surety shall be liable to the City for any damages arising as a result of the Contractor’s failure to 
comply with this obligation. 

ARTICLE 2. TIME FOR COMPLETION.   

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Work.  The Work shall be commenced on the 
date stated in the City’s Notice to Proceed. The Contractor shall complete all Work required by 
the Contract Documents within 60 Working Days from the commencement date stated in the 
Notice to Proceed. By its signature hereunder, Contractor agrees the time for completion set forth 
above is adequate and reasonable to complete the Work. 

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT PRICE.   

The City shall pay to the Contractor as full compensation for the performance of the Contract, 
subject to any additions or deductions as provided in the Contract Documents, and including all 
applicable taxes and costs, the sum of Seven Hundred Sixty-Two Thousand Seven Hundred 
Seventy-Four Dollars ($762,774.00). Payment shall be made as set forth in the General 
Conditions.  The City will pay to Contractor compensation based upon the prices set forth in the 
Bid Schedule. 

ARTICLE 4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.   

Contractor acknowledges that the City will sustain actual damages for each and every Working 
Day completion of the Project is delayed beyond the Contract Time. Because of the nature of the 
Project, it would be impracticable or extremely difficult to determine the City’s actual damages.  
Accordingly, in accordance with Government Code section 53069.85, it is agreed that the 

Page 254

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-56- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

Contractor will pay the City the sum of $1,500.00 for each and every Working Day of delay beyond 
the time prescribed in the Contract Documents for finishing the Work, as Liquidated Damages 
and not as a penalty or forfeiture, if the Bagdouma Court Improvements are not completed by the 
date set forth in the Invitation to Bid.  In the event this is not paid, the Contractor agrees the City 
may deduct that amount from any money due or that may become due the Contractor under the 
Contract. This Section does not exclude recovery of other damages specified in the Contract 
Documents.  Liquidated damages may be deducted from progress payments due Contractor, 
Project retention or may be collected directly from Contractor, or from Contractor's surety.  These 
provisions for liquidated damages shall not prevent the City, in case of Contractor's default, from 
terminating the Contractor. 

ARTICLE 5. COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT.   

The “Contract Documents” include the following: 

Notice Inviting Bids  
Instructions to Bidders 
Bid Forms 
Bid Acknowledgement  
Bid Schedule  
Bid Guarantee 
Designation of Subcontractors 
Information Required of Bidders 
Non-Collusion Declaration Form 
Iran Contracting Act Certification 
Drug-Free Workplace Certification 
Asbestos-Free Material Certification 
Recycled Content Certification 
Public Works Contractor DIR Registration Certification 
Performance Bond 
Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond 
Contract for Construction  
General Conditions 
Special Conditions 
Technical Specifications 
Addenda 
Construction Plans and Drawings 
City of Coachella Standard Specifications and Procedures (June 2007) 
City of Coachella Standard Infrastructure Drawings (2007 Edition) including Surface 

Improvement Standards and Water Standards  
Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction “Greenbook” (2018), Except 

Sections 1-9 
Standard Plans for Public Works Construction “Greenbook” (2018) 
Caltrans Standard Specifications (2018), except Division 1 
Caltrans Standard Plans (2018)  
Applicable Local Agency Standards and Specifications, as last revised 
Reference Specifications  
Approved and fully executed Change Orders 
Permits 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 

Page 255

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-57- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

 

The Contractor shall complete the Work in strict accordance with all of the Contract Documents. 

All of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary.  Work required by one of the 
Contract Documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all.  In the event of conflict, 
the various Contract Documents will be given effect in the order set forth in the General 
Conditions.  This Contract shall supersede any prior agreement of the parties.   

ARTICLE 6. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW AND CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE.   

Each and every provision of law required to be included in these Contract Documents shall be 
deemed to be included in these Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall comply with all 
requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not 
limited to, the provisions of the California Labor Code and California Public Contract Code which 
are applicable to this Work. 

ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION.   

Contractor shall provide indemnification and defense as set forth in the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 8. PREVAILING WAGES.   

Contractor shall be required to pay the prevailing rate of wages in accordance with the Labor 
Code which such rates may be obtained online at http://www.dir.ca.gov and which must be 
posted at the job site. 

ARTICLE 9. FALSE CLAIMS.   

Contractor acknowledges that if a false claim is submitted to the City, it may be considered fraud 
and Contractor may be subject to criminal prosecution.  Contractor acknowledges that the False 
Claims Act, California Government Code sections 12650, et seq., provides for civil penalties 
where a person knowingly submits a false claim to a public entity.  These provisions include within 
their scope false claims made with deliberate ignorance of the false information or in reckless 
disregard of the truth or falsity of the information.  In the event the City seeks to recover penalties 
pursuant to the False Claims Act, it is entitled to recover its litigation costs, including attorneys’ 
fees.  Contractor hereby acknowledges that the filing of a false claim may the Contractor to an 
administrative debarment proceeding wherein Contractor may be prevented from further bidding 
on public contracts for a period of up to five (5) years. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  

Page 256

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-58- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by the above-named parties, on 
the day and year above written. 

CITY OF COACHELLA  

By: 

Gabriel Martin 
      City Manager 
 
 

ATTEST: 

By:   
            Andrea Carranza, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:   
Best Best & Krieger LLP 
City Attorney 

 

JACOBSSON ENGINEERING 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 
 
IF CORPORATION, TWO SIGNATURES,  
PRESIDENT OR VICE PRESIDENT AND 
SECRETARY OR TREASURER REQUIRED 

By: 

 
Its:  

Printed Name:  
 
 
By: 

 
Its:  

Printed Name:  
 
 
 
_A&B__#650389________________________ 
Contractor’s License Number and Classification  

 
____1000008233________________________ 
DIR Registration Number   

 

 
(CONTRACTOR’S SIGNATURE MUST BE 
NOTARIZED AND CORPORATE 
SEAL AFFIXED, IF APPLICABLE) 
 

 

END OF CONTRACT  

Page 257

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-59- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document  
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.  

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

 

Page 258

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-60- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

BOND FORMS 
 

Performance Bond 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

THAT WHEREAS, the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation, organized under the laws of 
the State of California, with its principal place of business at 53990 Enterprise Way, California 

92236, (hereinafter referred to as the “City”) has awarded to Three Peaks Corp., (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Contractor”) an agreement for Castro’s Mobile Home Park Water 
Consolidation Project, City Project No. W-37 (hereinafter referred to as the “Project”). 

 

WHEREAS, the work to be performed by the Contractor is more particularly set forth in the 
Contract Documents for the Project dated October 12, 2022, (hereinafter referred to as “Contract 
Documents”), the terms and conditions of which are expressly incorporated herein by reference; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor is required by said Contract Documents to perform the terms thereof 
and to furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said Contract Documents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, ______________________,  the undersigned Contractor and 
________________________________________________ as Surety, a corporation organized 
and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are held and 
firmly bound unto the City in the sum of Seven Hundred Sixty-Two Thousand Seven Hundred 
Seventy-Four Dollars ($762,774.00), said sum being not less than one hundred percent (100%) 
of the total amount of the Contract, for which amount well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, 
our heirs, executors and administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by 
these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that, if the Contractor, his or its heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and 
well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions and agreements in the Contract 
Documents and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and 
performed at the time and in the manner therein specified, and in all respects according to their 
intent and meaning; and shall faithfully fulfill all obligations including the one (1) year guarantee 
of all materials and workmanship; and shall indemnify and save harmless the City, its officials, 
officers, employees, and authorized volunteers, as stipulated in said Contract Documents, then 
this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefore, 
there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, incurred by the City in enforcing such obligation. 

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract Documents, unless 
otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents, the above obligation shall hold good for a 
period of one (1) year after the acceptance of the work by the City, during which time if Contractor 
shall fail to make full, complete, and satisfactory repair and replacements and totally protect the 
City from loss or damage resulting from or caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship.  
The obligations of Surety hereunder shall continue so long as any obligation of Contractor 
remains. Nothing herein shall limit the City’s rights or the Contractor or Surety’s obligations under 

Page 259

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-61- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

the Contract, law or equity, including, but not limited to, California Code of Civil Procedure Section 
337.15. 

Whenever Contractor shall be, and is declared by the City to be, in default under the Contract 
Documents, the Surety shall remedy the default pursuant to the Contract Documents, or shall 
promptly, at the City’s option: 

i. Take over and complete the Project in accordance with all terms and conditions in 
the Contract Documents; or 

ii. Obtain a bid or bids for completing the Project in accordance with all terms and 
conditions in the Contract Documents and upon determination by Surety of the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder, arrange for a Contract between such 
bidder, the Surety and the City, and make available as work progresses sufficient 
funds to pay the cost of completion of the Project, less the balance of the contract 
price, including other costs and damages for which Surety may be liable.  The term 
“balance of the contract price” as used in this paragraph shall mean the total 
amount payable to Contractor by the City under the Contract and any modification 
thereto, less any amount previously paid by the City to the Contractor and any 
other set offs pursuant to the Contract Documents. 

iii. Permit the City to complete the Project in any manner consistent with California 
law and make available as work progresses sufficient funds to pay the cost of 
completion of the Project, less the balance of the contract price, including other 
costs and damages for which Surety may be liable.  The term “balance of the 
contract price” as used in this paragraph shall mean the total amount payable to 
Contractor by the City under the Contract and any modification thereto, less any 
amount previously paid by the City to the Contractor and any other set offs 
pursuant to the Contract Documents. 

Surety expressly agrees that the City may reject any contractor or subcontractor which may be 
proposed by Surety in fulfillment of its obligations in the event of default by the Contractor. 

Surety shall not utilize Contractor in completing the Project nor shall Surety accept a bid from 
Contractor for completion of the Project if the City, when declaring the Contractor in default, 
notifies Surety of the City’s objection to Contractor’s further participation in the completion of the 
Project. 

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract Documents or to the Project to be performed 
thereunder shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of 
any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract Documents 
or to the Project. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 

 

  

Page 260

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-62- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this _______ day of 
______________, 2022. 

(Corporate Seal)      
Contractor/ Principal 

By       

Title       

(Corporate Seal)      
Surety 

By      
  Attorney-in-Fact 

(Attach Attorney-in-Fact Certificate)  Title       

The rate of premium on this bond is ____________ per thousand.  The total amount of premium 
charges is $_______________________________. 
(The above must be filled in by corporate attorney.) 

THIS IS A REQUIRED FORM 

Any claims under this bond may be addressed to: 

(Name and Address of Surety) ___________________________________________ 
___________________________________________ 
___________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Agent or ___________________________________________ 
Representative for service of   ___________________________________________ 
process in California, if different ___________________________________________ 
from above) 

(Telephone number of Surety  ___________________________________________ 
and Agent or Representative for 
service of process in California) 

  

Page 261

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-63- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document 
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.  

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

NOTE: This acknowledgment is to be completed for Contractor/Principal. 

  

Page 262

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-64- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document  
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.  

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

NOTE: This acknowledgment is to be completed for the Attorney-in-Fact.  The Power-of Attorney to 
local representatives of the bonding company must also be attached. 

END OF PERFORMANCE BOND

Page 263

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-65- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Payment Bond (Labor and Materials) 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS That 

WHEREAS, the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized and operating under the 
laws of the State of California (hereinafter designated as the “City”), by action taken or a resolution 
passed on October 12, 2022, has awarded to Jacobsson Construction Engineering, Inc. 
hereinafter designated as the “Principal,” a contract for the work described as follows: Castro’s 
Mobile Home Water Consolidation Project, City Project W-37 (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the work to be performed by the Contractor is more particularly set forth in the 
Contract Documents for the Project dated October 12, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as “Contract 
Documents”), the terms and conditions of which are expressly incorporated herein by reference; 
and 

WHEREAS, said Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with said contract; providing 
that if said Principal or any of its Subcontractors shall fail to pay for any materials, provisions, 
provender, equipment, or other supplies used in, upon, for or about the performance of the work 
contracted to be done, or for any work or labor done thereon of any kind, or for amounts due 
under the Unemployment Insurance Code or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, 
and paid over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of said 
Principal and its Subcontractors with respect to such work or labor the Surety on this bond will 
pay for the same to the extent hereinafter set forth. 

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Principal and __________________________ as Surety, are held 
and firmly bound unto the City in the penal sum Seven Hundred Sixty-Two Thousand Seven 
Hundred Seventy-Four Dollars ($762,774.00) lawful money of the United States of America, for 
the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if said Principal, his or its subcontractors, 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall fail to pay any of the persons named 
in Civil Code Section 9100, fail to pay for any materials, provisions or other supplies, used in, 
upon, for or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor 
thereon of any kind, or amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to 
work or labor performed under the contract, or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, 
and paid over to the Employment Development Department or Franchise Tax Board from the 
wages of employees of the contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to Revenue and Taxation 
Code Section 18663, with respect to such work and labor the Surety or Sureties will pay for the 
same, in an amount not exceeding the sum herein above specified, and also, in case suit is 
brought upon this bond, all litigation expenses incurred by the City in such suit, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, expert witness fees and investigation expenses. 

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any of the persons named in Civil Code Section 9100 so as 
to give a right of action to such persons or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond. 

It is further stipulated and agreed that the Surety on this bond shall not be exonerated or released 
from the obligation of this bond by any change, extension of time for performance, addition, 
alteration or modification in, to, or of any contract, plans, specifications, or agreement pertaining 
or relating to any scheme or work of improvement herein above described, or pertaining or relating 

Page 264

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-66- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

to the furnishing of labor, materials, or equipment therefore, nor by any change or modification of 
any terms of payment or extension of the time for any payment pertaining or relating to any 
scheme or work of improvement herein above described, nor by any rescission or attempted 
rescission or attempted rescission of the contract, agreement or bond, nor by any conditions 
precedent or subsequent in the bond attempting to limit the right of recovery of claimants 
otherwise entitled to recover under any such contract or agreement or under the bond, nor by any 
fraud practiced by any person other than the claimant seeking to recover on the bond and that 
this bond be construed most strongly against the Surety and in favor of all persons for whose 
benefit such bond is given, and under no circumstances shall Surety be released from liability to 
those for whose benefit such bond has been given, by reason of any breach of contract between 
the owner or the City and original contractor or on the part of any obligee named in such bond, 
but the sole conditions of recovery shall be that claimant is a person described in Civil Code 
Section 9100, and has not been paid the full amount of his claim.  

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract to be performed thereunder, shall in any way 
affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension 
of time, alteration or addition to the terms of Contract, including but not limited to, the provisions 
of Sections 2819 and 2845 of the California Civil Code. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this _______ day of 
______________, 2022. 

(Corporate Seal)      
Contractor/ Principal 

By       

Title       

(Corporate Seal)      
Surety 

By      
  Attorney-in-Fact 

(Attach Attorney-in-Fact Certificate)  Title       

  

Page 265

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-67- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document  
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.  

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

NOTE: This acknowledgment is to be completed for Contractor/Principal.  

Page 266

Item 28.



 
CASTRO’S MOBILE HOME PARK WATER 

CONSOLIDATION PROJECT 
-68- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document  
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

NOTE:  This acknowledgment is to be completed for the Attorney-in-Fact.  The Power-of-Attorney to local 
representatives of the bonding company must also be attached. 

END OF PAYMENT BOND 

Page 267

Item 28.



CITY OF COACHELLA
W-37 Castro Mobile Home Park Water Consolidation Project

Project No. W-37

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED 
PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED 

PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

1 Mobilization 1 LS $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $19,489.00 $19,489.00 $55,586.00 $55,586.00

2 Best Management Practices/Dust Control 1 LS $21,000.00 $21,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $70,992.00 $70,992.00

3 Traffic Control/Site Protection 1 LS $45,000.00 $45,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $24,000.00 $24,000.00 $49,144.00 $49,144.00

4
Furnish and Install 8” Class 200 C-900 
Water Main with Restrained Joints per 
CWA Std. Dwg. W-5

832 LF $285.00 $237,120.00 $195.00 $162,240.00 $120.00 $99,840.00 $236.10 $196,435.20

5 Furnish and Install 8” C-900 PVC Tee with 
Restrained Joints 2 EA $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,600.00 $3,200.00 $1,205.00 $2,410.00 $1,094.00 $2,188.00

6 Furnish and Install 8” X 45° C-900 PVC 
Bend with Restrained Joints 4 EA $3,000.00 $12,000.00 $800.00 $3,200.00 $557.00 $2,228.00 $875.00 $3,500.00

7 Furnish and Install 8” X 90° C-900 PVC 
Bend with Restrained Joints 1 EA $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $800.00 $800.00 $601.00 $601.00 $875.00 $875.00

8
Furnish and Install 6” Fire Hydrant 
Assembly w/ Polyethylene Encasement 
Per CWA Std. Dwg. W-4

1 EA $31,500.00 $31,500.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $19,970.00 $19,970.00 $18,185.00 $18,185.00

9

Furnish and Install 1” Water Service, with 
H-20 Traffic Rated Box & Cover, and 
Install City-Furnished ¾” Allegro 4G Water 
Meter

45 EA $39.00 $1,755.00 $1,500.00 $67,500.00 $4,192.00 $188,640.00 $2,134.00 $96,030.00

10

Contractor to Furnish and Install 2” 
Standard Water Service with H-20 Traffic 
Rated Box and Cover, and Install City 
–Furnished Allegro 1 ½” or 2”  Meter

2 EA $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $6,700.00 $13,400.00 $4,527.00 $9,054.00

11 Contractor to Pulverize Existing 3” to 4” 
Thick AC Pavement In Place 17,000 SF $3.25 $55,250.00 $3.50 $59,500.00 $0.67 $11,390.00 $1.00 $17,000.00

12 Contractor Furnish & Install 4” AC Over 
Compacted Pulverized AC Base 17,000 SF $7.50 $127,500.00 $8.50 $144,500.00 $4.13 $70,210.00 $8.99 $152,830.00

12A
Grade, Trim, and Export Excess Material 
as Required for New 4” AC to Match 
Existing Grades

200 CY $85.00 $17,000.00 $55.00 $11,000.00 $136.00 $27,200.00 $65.00 $13,000.00

13 Furnish and Install 8” DI Resilient Seated 
Gate Valve. 6 EA $6,500.00 $39,000.00 $2,200.00 $13,200.00 $5,865.00 $35,190.00 $6,626.00 $39,756.00

14 Furnish and Install 4” Guard Post Per 
CWA Std. Dwg. W-16 4 EA $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $900.00 $3,600.00 $1,335.00 $5,340.00 $1,594.00 $6,376.00

Bid Schedule AID Builders Desert Concepts Jacobsson Eng Tri-Star Contracting

Page 268

Item 28.



CITY OF COACHELLA
W-37 Castro Mobile Home Park Water Consolidation Project

Project No. W-37
15 Furnish and Install 8” Test Plate and 2” 

Temporary Blow Off.  2 EA $3,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $14,000.00 $4,435.00 $8,870.00 $5,946.00 $11,892.00

16 Furnish and Install 1” Sch. 80 PVC Pipe 2,119 LF $100.00 $211,900.00 $38.00 $80,522.00 $57.00 $120,783.00 $46.37 $98,258.03

17 Construct Water Pad Per Detail on Sheet 
4 45 EA $750.00 $33,750.00 $1,800.00 $81,000.00 $249.00 $11,205.00 $571.00 $25,695.00

18
Sawcut, Remove and Dispose of Existing 
Concrete, Pavement, Planter Materials, 
Etc., and Replace In Kind

1 LS $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $24,265.00 $24,265.00 $59,769.00 $59,769.00

19 Contractor to Locate and Connect to 
Existing 2” Pipe w/ Appropriate Fittings 2 EA $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $642.00 $1,284.00 $3,073.00 $6,146.00

20 Furnish and Install 2” Schedule 80 PVC 
Pipe with Appropriate Fittings 22 LF $100.00 $2,200.00 $42.00 $924.00 $165.00 $3,630.00 $267.00 $5,874.00

21
Contractor to Locate Connection to 
Existing Mobile Home & Connect to Unit 
with Fittings as per Details on Sheet 4

45 EA $2,250.00 $101,250.00 $1,200.00 $54,000.00 $360.00 $16,200.00 $195.00 $8,775.00

22 Contractor to Plug and Abandon Existing 
Service Line 2 EA $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $1,156.00 $2,312.00 $266.00 $532.00

23 Contractor to Locate/Remove Piping, and 
Plug Existing Corp. Stop  2 EA $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,800.00 $3,600.00 $1,156.00 $2,312.00 $2,021.00 $4,042.00

24 Contractor to Remove Existing Meter Box 
and Meter and Deliver to City Yard 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $250.00 $615.00 $615.00 $1,329.00 $1,329.00

25 Construct Asphalt Speed Hump to Match 
Existing 6 EA $1,000.00 $6,000.00 $2,500.00 $15,000.00 $2,065.00 $12,390.00 $5,048.00 $30,288.00

$1,119,725.00 $828,636.00 $745,774.00 $983,551.23

AA-1
Remove Existing Water Meters and 
Furnish & Install Water Meter Idler 
Assembly (Salvage Meter to City Yard)

34 EA $6,750.00 $229,500.00 $180.00 $6,120.00 $500.00 $17,000.00 $234.00 $7,956.00

$229,500.00 $6,120.00 $17,000.00 $7,956.00

$1,349,225.00 $834,756.00 $762,774.00 $991,507.23

Indicates Staff correction of the math.

Indicates Apparent Low Bidder

BASE BID TOTAL 
ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A

ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A TOTAL 

GRAND TOTAL BASE BID PLUS ADDITIVE ALTERNATE A

Page 269

Item 28.



A-1
80237.00000\19870870.1

CITY OF COACHELLA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 2022 by and
between the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of California with its principal place of business at 53990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, 
California 92236 (“City”) and Atlas Technical Consultants LLC a partnership with its 
principal place of business at, 6280 Riverdale Street, San Diego, CA 92120 (“Consultant”).  
The City and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as 
“Parties.” 

2. RECITALS.

2.1 Consultant.

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain
professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing professional services to 
public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar with the plans of the City. 

2.2 Project. 

The City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the Castro's Mobile 
Home Park Water Consolidation Project, City Project W-37 (“Project”) as set forth in this 
Agreement. 

3. TERMS.

3.1 Scope of Services and Term.

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to 
the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional engineering services necessary for the 
Project (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject to, and performed in 
accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of 12 calendar 
months from date of the notice to proceed unless earlier terminated as provided herein. 
Consultant shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any 
other established schedules and deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend 
the term of this Agreement if necessary to complete the Services. 

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

Page 270

Item 28.



A-2
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 
Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine 
the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  The City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an 
employee.  Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during 
the term of this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this 
Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of the City and shall at all times 
be under Consultant’s exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, 
and other amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under 
this Agreement and as required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and 
obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security 
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform the Services 
expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of 
Services set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
Consultant represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the 
Services in conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance 
with the Schedule, the City shall respond to Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon 
request of the City, Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance 
to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of the City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to the City that 
certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of 
at least equal competence upon written approval of the City.  In the event that the City and 
Consultant cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, the City shall be entitled to 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to 
perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are determined by the City to be 
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a 
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the 
Consultant at the request of the City.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are 
as follows: Mrs. Mehrnoush Yavary, P.E., - Atlas Technical Consultants LLC - Director of 
Engineering 

Page 271

Item 28.



A-3
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.2.5 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates, Castulo Estrada. –
Utilities Manager, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of 
this Agreement (“City’s Representative”).  The City’s Representative shall have the power to act 
on behalf of the City for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept direction 
or orders from any person other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Mehrnoush 
Yavary, P.E. - Director of Engineering, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for 
the performance of this Agreement (“Consultant’s Representative”).  Consultant’s 
Representative shall have full authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all 
purposes under this Agreement.  The Consultant’s Representative shall supervise and direct the 
Services, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the 
Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with the City 
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to the City’s staff, consultants and 
other staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform 
all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the 
standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the 
State of California.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional 
calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and 
subconsultants shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to 
them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and subconsultants have all licenses, 
permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the 
Services, including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be 
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification 
provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without 
reimbursement from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are 
caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any 
employee of the Consultant or its sub-consultants who is determined by the City to be 
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat 
to the safety of persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services 
in a manner acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant 
and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.8.1 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant shall 
perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 
3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Consultant shall also perform the Services in strict 
accordance with any completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits “A” or “B” 
attached hereto, or which may be separately agreed upon in writing by the City and Consultant 
(“Performance Milestones”).  Consultant agrees that if the Services are not completed within the 
aforementioned Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed 
pursuant to provisions of this Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the 
City will suffer damage.   

Page 272

Item 28.



A-4
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and 
in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting 
the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall 
give all notices required by law.  Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws and 
regulations in connection with the Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to 
be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, 
Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers, employees, and agents free and 
harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or 
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or 
regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence 
Work under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has 
secured all insurance required under this section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 
subconsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory 
to the City that the subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, 
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.  
Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance 
for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum 
levels of coverage: 

(A) Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as
broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 
Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 
Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); 
and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 
required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain
limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with 
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident 
for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s 
Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of 
California.  Employer’s Liability limits of $1,000,000  per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

3.2.10.3 Professional Liability.   Consultant shall procure and 
maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years 
following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their 

Page 273

Item 28.



A-5
80237.00000\19870870.1

profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim, and shall 
be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

3.2.10.4 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall 
contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or 
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be
endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall 
stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying 
coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and 
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall
be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 
maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 
Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 
scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 
insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 
or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 
provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All 
insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In 
addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any 
deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant 

Page 274

Item 28.



A-6
80237.00000\19870870.1

shall guarantee that, at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense 
expenses. 

3.2.10.7 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with 
insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in 
California, and satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.8 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish City 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this 
Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and 
endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 
time. 

3.2.10.9 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in 
addition to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in 
connection with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 
injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at 
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, 
and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature 
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as 
applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving 
equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and 
subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, 
confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, 
equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or 
injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety 
measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including 
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth 
in Exhibit ”C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation 
shall not exceed Fifty-Thousand Dollars ($50,000) without written approval of the 
City’s Engineer.  Extra Work may be authorized, as described below, and if authorized, 
will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Consultant shall submit to the City a monthly 
itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of the Services rendered by 
Consultant.  The statement shall describe the amount of the Services and supplies provided since 

Page 275

Item 28.



A-7
80237.00000\19870870.1

the initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as 
appropriate, through the date of the statement.  The City shall, within 45 days of receiving such 
statement, review the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any 
expenses unless authorized in writing by the City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, the City may 
request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work 
which is determined by the City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but 
which the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written 
authorization from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Labor Code Requirements.  

3.3.5.1 Prevailing Wages.  Consultant is aware of the requirements of 
California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of 
Regulations, Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the 
payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” 
and “maintenance” projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public 
works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total 
compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage 
Laws.  The City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages 
in effect at the commencement of this Agreement.  Consultant shall make copies of the 
prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to 
execute the Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the 
Consultant’s principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and 
harmless from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with 
the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.3.5.2 Registration and Labor Compliance.  If the Services are being 
performed as part of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, then, in addition to 
the foregoing, pursuant to Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, Consultant and all 
subconsultants must be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”). 
Consultant shall maintain registration for the duration of the Project and require the same of any 
subconsultants.  This Project may also be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by 
the Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Consultant’s sole responsibility to comply 
with all applicable registration and labor compliance requirements, including the submission of 
payroll records directly to the DIR.   

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain complete and 
accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 
records shall be clearly identifiable.  Consultant shall allow a representative of the City during 
normal business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any 

Page 276

Item 28.



A-8
80237.00000\19870870.1

other documents created pursuant to this Agreement.  Consultant shall allow inspection of all 
work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three 
(3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement.

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  The City may, by written notice to 
Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by 
giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, 
at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, 
Consultant shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to 
the City, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not 
terminate this Agreement except for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, the City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and 
Data and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the 
performance of the Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide such 
document and other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 
whole or in part as provided herein, the City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner 
as it may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this 
Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other 
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

Consultant: 

City: 

Atlas Technical Consultants LLC 
6280 Riverdale Street 
San Diego, CA 92120 
Attn: Mehrnoush Yavary, P.E., Director of Engineering 

City of Coachella 
53990 Enterprise Way 
Coachella, CA  92236 
Attn:  Castulo Estrada, Utilites Manager

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at
its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice
occurred, regardless of the method of service.

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

Page 277

Item 28.



A-9
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  This 
Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the City to copy, use, modify, reuse, 
or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, 
specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in 
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data 
magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be 
prepared by Consultant under this Agreement (“Documents & Data”).  Consultant shall require 
all subconsultants to agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license 
for any Documents & Data the subconsultant prepares under this Agreement.  Consultant 
represents and warrants that Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & 
Data.  Consultant makes no such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data 
which were prepared by design professionals other than Consultant or provided to Consultant by 
the City.  The City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the Documents and Data at any 
time, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement shall be at 
the City’s sole risk. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, 
procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written 
information, and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant. 
Such materials shall not, without the prior written consent of the City, be used by Consultant for 
any purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be disclosed 
to any person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project. 
Nothing furnished to Consultant which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, 
or has become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not 
use the City’s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the 
Services or the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production 
or other similar medium without the prior written consent of the City. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorneys’ Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other 
party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 
losing party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free 
and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, 
damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any 
manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any alleged acts, omissions or willful 
misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, consultants and contractors 
in connection with the performance of the Services, the Project or this Agreement, including 
without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, expert witness fees and attorneys’ 
fees and other related costs and expenses.  Consultant shall defend, at Consultant’s own cost, 
expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every 

Page 278

Item 28.



A-10
80237.00000\19870870.1

kind that may be brought or instituted against the City, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents or volunteers.  Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree 
that may be rendered against the City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or 
volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Consultant shall reimburse the 
City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and/or volunteers, for any and all 
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the 
indemnity herein provided.  Consultant’s obligation to indemnify shall survive expiration or 
termination of this Agreement and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received 
by the City, its officials officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, to the extent Consultant’s Services are subject to Civil Code Section 2782.8, the 
above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to claims 
that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of 
Consultant. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by 
both parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 
this Agreement. 

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  City reserves right to employ 
other consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate or 
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 
prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 
hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 
term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not 
work days.  All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and 
subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content or intent of this Agreement. 

Page 279

Item 28.



A-11
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment 
of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.15 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 
default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 
contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 
for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not 
paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Consultant further 
agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic 
Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 
Services.  For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 
Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 
City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Consultant represents that it is an equal 
opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, 
sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 
or termination.  Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority 
Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines 
currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies that it 
is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every 
employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and 
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

Page 280

Item 28.



A-12
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.5.22 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of 
the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 
approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 
provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

CITY OF COACHELLA ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS LLC 

By: By: 
Mehrnoush Yavary Gabriel Martin 

City Manager  Director of Engineering 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 

Page 281

Item 28.



A-1
80237.00000\19870870.1

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Page 282

Item 28.



B 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
California Prevailing Wage 

Effective February 1, 2021 

Revised February 1, 2021 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Professional (Engineering, Geology, Environment, Envelope Services) 
Director/Principal Professional ................................................................................................................................. $190 
Senior Professional .................................................................................................................................................... 165 
Project Professional ................................................................................................................................................... 145 
Staff Professional ....................................................................................................................................................... 120 
Drafter Level II.............................................................................................................................................................. 95 
Drafter Level I............................................................................................................................................................... 85 

Project Management 
Senior Project Manager ........................................................................................................................................... $160 
Project Manager ......................................................................................................................................................... 135 
Administrative Assistant ............................................................................................................................................... 67 

Field Services (Geotechnical, Special Inspection) 
Field Supervisor  ...................................................................................................................................................... $118 
LA Certified Grading Inspector  .................................................................................................................................. 123 
Off Site Inspector ......................................................................................................................................................... 91 
Laboratory Technician .................................................................................................................................................. 74 
Group 1 (Field Soils, Material Tester) ........................................................................................................................ 108 
Group 2 (Special Inspection) ...................................................................................................................................... 113 
Group 3 (NDT Testing) ............................................................................................................................................... 117 
Coring ........................................................................................................................................................................ 166 

Field Services (SUE Level B Utility Evaluations and Rebar Locating) 
Line Tracer, Ground Penetrating Radar, Electromagnetics, Magnetics 

Full Day .......................................................................................................................................................... $1,950 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $250 applies to projects billed on hourly rates) ....................................... 215 
Letter Report ........................................................................................................................................................ 300 
Map (per day of field work) .................................................................................................................................. 350 

Field Services (Geophysical Data Acquisition) 
UST, Landfill, Oil Well, Void, Pile Integrity Testing 

Full Day  ......................................................................................................................................................... $2,400 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $335 applies to projects billed on hourly rates) ....................................... 270 

Field Services (Advanced Geophysical Studies)  
Seismic, Sting ERT, Resistivity, Groundwater, UXO/MEC 

Full Day  ......................................................................................................................................................... $3,000 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $550 applies to projects billed on hourly rates) ....................................... 325 

Field Services (Seismic ReMi) 
One Line ......................................................................................................................................................... $1,500 
Each Additional Line ............................................................................................................................................ 300 
For Pavement/Requires Drilling ........................................................................................................................... 300 

Field Services (Vibration Monitoring) 
Mobilization  .................................................................................................................................................... $1,000 
Equipment (Daily)  ............................................................................................................................................... 200 
Daily Analysis & Reporting (Daily)  ........................................................................................................................ 75 
Final Report Preparation  .................................................................................................................................... 750 
Manned Vibration Monitoring ........................................................................................................................... Quote 

Field Services (Building Envelope) 
Field Tech Level II .................................................................................................................................................... $125 
Field Tech Level I ....................................................................................................................................................... 115 
Electronic Leak Detection (hourly, 4 hour minimum) .................................................................................................. 250 
Fenestration Testing (ASTM E1105/E783) – Hourly Rate (2 technicians) ................................................................. 400 
Fenestration Testing (AAMA 501.2) – Hourly Rate (2 technicians) ............................................................................ 225 
Drainage Efficiency of Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems (EIFS) Clad Wall Assemblies (ASTM E2273)  ....... 1,500 

Page 283

Item 28.



ATLAS SCHEDULE OF FEES Page 2 of 4 
Revised February 1, 2021 

Travel and Miscellaneous 
Pick Up  .............................................................................................................................................................. $55/hour 
Travel Time  ...................................  Hourly Rate (or $125/hour beyond 1 hour from San Diego for Geophysical Crews) 
Overtime and Saturday Rate  .................................................................................................. 1.5 x Regular Hourly Rate 
Sunday and Nationally Recognized Holiday Rate (including the day after Thanksgiving)  ......... 2 x Regular Hourly Rate 
Rush Surcharge  .......................................................................................................................... Normal Rate plus 50% 
Per Diem (variable, depending on location) ..........................................................................................................  Quote 
Prevailing Wage Hourly Surcharge for Technicians and Inspectors per California Labor Code §720, et. Seq  ....  Quote 
Specialty Equipment Surcharge  ...........................................................................................................................  Quote 

LABORATORY TESTS 

Soil and Aggregate 
California Bearing Ratio (ASTM D854)  ................................................................................................................... $418 
California Impact (Cal 216) ........................................................................................................................................ 206 
Clay Lumps in Aggregate (ASTM C142) .................................................................................................................... 150 
Cleanness Value (Cal 227) ........................................................................................................................................ 200 
Consolidation (ASTM D2435) .................................................................................................................................... 200 
Corrosivity Testing (Soluble Chlorides and Sulfates, pH and Resistivity) ................................................................... 187 
Crushed Particles (Cal 205, ASTM D693) .................................................................................................................. 150 
Direct Shear (ASTM D3080) ...................................................................................................................................... 260 
Durability Factor (Cal 229, ASTM D3744) .................................................................................................................... 97 
Durability Index (Cal 229, ASTM D3744) ................................................................................................................... 224 
Expansion Index (ASTM D4289) ................................................................................................................................ 177 
Fine Aggregate Angularity (AASHTO T304) .............................................................................................................. 200 
Fineness Modulus (ASTM C136) ................................................................................................................................. 24 
Flat & Elongated Pieces (ASTM D4791) .................................................................................................................... 175 
Light Weight Pieces (ASTM C123) ............................................................................................................................. 175 
Liquid Limit (Cal 204, ASTM D4318) ............................................................................................................................ 75 
Los Angeles Abrasion - 1 ½ inch and smaller (Cal 211, ASTM C131) ....................................................................... 224 
Maximum Density Check Point (ASTM D698/D1557) .................................................................................................. 88 
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture – 4 inch (ASTM D698, D1557) ........................................................................ 200 
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture – 6 inch (ASTM D698, D1557) ........................................................................ 220 
Minimum Density (ASTM D1556) ................................................................................................................................. 74 
Moisture Content (Cal 226, ASTM C566, ASTM D2216) ............................................................................................. 35 
Natural Density Chunk Sample (ASTM D2937) ........................................................................................................... 45 
Natural Moisture/Density Ring or Core Sample (ASTM D2937) ................................................................................... 40 
Organic Impurities (Cal 213, ASTM C40) ..................................................................................................................... 90 
Organic Matter (ASTM D2974)..................................................................................................................................... 75 
Percent Finer than #200 (ASTM C117, ASTM D1140) ................................................................................................ 70 
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D2434) ............................................................................................................ 200 
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D5084) ........................................................................................................ Quote 
Permeability Undisturbed Sample (ASTM D5084) ................................................................................................. Quote 
Petrographic Analysis (Cal 215, ASTM C295) ....................................................................................................... Quote 
pH & Resistivity (Cal 643, ASTM G51) ....................................................................................................................... 126 
Plasticity Index (Cal 204, ASTM 4318) ....................................................................................................................... 127 
Potential Reactivity (ASTM C289) .............................................................................................................................. 220 
Residual Shear (ASTM D6467) .................................................................................................................................. 442 
Rock Correction (ASTM D4718) ................................................................................................................................... 26 
R-Value (Cal 301, ASTM D2844) ............................................................................................................................... 276 
Sandcastle Test (USACE) .......................................................................................................................................... 195 
Sand Equivalent (Cal 217, ASTM D2419) .................................................................................................................... 88 
Sieve Analysis (ASTM C136, ASTM D6913, Cal 202) ............................................................................................... 110 
Sieve Analysis with Hydrometer (Cal 203, ASTM D422) ............................................................................................ 200 
Soil Cement Compression Strength (Cal 312, ASTM D1633) ...................................................................................... 50 
Soil Cement Cylinder Fabrication (Cal 312, ASTM D1632) ........................................................................................ 100 
Soluble Chlorides (Cal 422) ......................................................................................................................................... 62 
Soluble Sulfate (Cal 417) ............................................................................................................................................. 62 
Soundness 5 Cycles (Cal 214, ASTM C88) ............................................................................................................... 375 
Specific Gravity Coarse Aggregate (Cal 206, ASTM C127) ....................................................................................... 115 
Specific Gravity Fine Aggregate (Cal 207, ASTM C128) ............................................................................................ 115 
Triaxial Shear Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM D4767) ....................................................................................... Quote 
Triaxial Shear Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) ................................................................................... Quote 
Triaxial Staged Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM D4767) ..................................................................................... Quote 
Triaxial Staged Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) ................................................................................. Quote 
Unconfined Compression (ASTM D2166) .................................................................................................................. 162 
Unit Weight Aggregate (Cal 212, ASTM C29) .............................................................................................................. 80 

Page 284

Item 28.



ATLAS SCHEDULE OF FEES Page 3 of 4 
Revised February 1, 2021 

Asphalt Concrete 
Asphalt Core Specific Gravity (Cal 308, ASTM D2726) ............................................................................................. $68 
Asphalt Core Specific Gravity Waxed (Cal 308, ASTM D1188) ................................................................................... 84 
Emulsion Content (CTM 382) ..................................................................................................................................... 178 
Film Stripping (Cal 302) ......................................................................................................................................... Quote 
Gyratory Compacted Maximum Specific Gravity (AASHTO T312)............................................................................. 350 
Hamburg Wheel Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T324/Caltrans Section 39) ........................................................... 900 
Hveem Maximum Bulk Specific Gravity (Cal 308) ...................................................................................................... 300 
Hveem & Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) ................................................................................................................... $400 
Ignition Oven Correction Factor (AASHTO T308) ...................................................................................................... 250 
Ignition Oven Degradation Factor (AASHTO T308) ................................................................................................... 250 
Marshall Density Stability & Flow (ASTM D6927) ...................................................................................................... 400 
Marshall Density (ASTM D6926) ................................................................................................................................ 300 
Moisture Content of Asphalt Mixtures Using Microwave (Cal 370) ............................................................................... 50 
Moisture Vapor Susceptibility (Cal 307) ................................................................................................................. Quote 
Optimum Bitumen Content (AASHTO R35/Cal 367)  .............................................................................................. 3,100 
Percent Bitumen Asphaltic Concrete (Cal 382, ASTM D6307) .................................................................................. 180 
Residue by Evaporation (Cal 331) ............................................................................................................................. 178 
Rice Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity AC (Cal 309, ASTM D2041) .................................................................. 133 
Sieve Analysis Extracted Aggregate (Cal 382, ASTM D5444) ..................................................................................... 90 
Stability and Flow (ASTM D1559) .............................................................................................................................. 350 
Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) ..................................................................................................................................... 350 
RAP Testing Fractionated (ASTM D2172, AASHTO T308, Caltrans Section 39) .................................................. Quote 
RAP Testing Not Fractionated (ASTM D2172, AASHTO T308, Caltrans Section 39)  ..........................................  Quote 
Tensile Strength Ratio Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T283) .................................................................................. 900 
Wet Track Abrasion (ASTM D3910) ........................................................................................................................... 185 

Concrete 
2X2 Cube Compression  ............................................................................................................................................ $27 
Chloride Ion Testing (ASTM C1218) .......................................................................................................................... 220 
Concrete Core Compression (ASTM C42) ................................................................................................................... 59 
Concrete Cylinder Compression (Cal 521, ASTM C39) ............................................................................................... 27 
Flex Beam Modulus of Rupture (Cal 523, ASTM C78) ................................................................................................. 74 
Modulus of Elasticity (Cal 522, ASTM C469) ............................................................................................................. 261 
Shotcrete Mockup Panel (ASTM C1140)  ............................................................................................................... 1,040 
Shotcrete Panel, 3 Cores Compression (CBC) .......................................................................................................... 290 
Shrinkage Hardened Concrete (ASTM C157 Modified) ............................................................................................. 371 
Split Tensile Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C496) ............................................................................................................. 74 
Time of Set (ASTM C403) .......................................................................................................................................... 200 
Trial Batch Fabrication (ASTM C192) ........................................................................................................................ 298 
Unit Weight Hardened Concrete (ASTM C642)............................................................................................................ 55 
Unit Weight Lightweight Concrete (ASTM C567) ......................................................................................................... 69 

Masonry 
Absorption Block (ASTM C140)  .............................................................................................................................. $115 
Compression Adobe ................................................................................................................................................... 155 
Compression Block Standard (ASTM C140) .............................................................................................................. 150 
Compression Brick (ASTM C67) ................................................................................................................................ 115 
Efflorescence Block .................................................................................................................................................... 175 
Efflorescence Brick (ASTM C67) ................................................................................................................................ 175 
Grout Prism Compression (ASTM C1019) ................................................................................................................... 27 
Masonry Core Compression (ASTM C42) .................................................................................................................... 51 
Masonry Core Shear (CBC 2105A.4) ........................................................................................................................... 95 
Masonry Prism Compression (ASTM E447) .............................................................................................................. 150 
Mortar Bond Strength Pull Test (ASTM C482) ............................................................................................................. 62 
Mortar Cylinder Compression....................................................................................................................................... 27 
Mortar Shear Strength (ANSI 118) ............................................................................................................................. 100 
Relative Mortar Strength (Cal 515)  ............................................................................................................................ 850 
Shrinkage Masonry Block (ASTM C426) .................................................................................................................... 250 
Trial Grout Prisms (ASTM C942) ................................................................................................................................. 38 
Water Retention and Air Content (ASTM C270)......................................................................................................... 550 

Page 285

Item 28.



ATLAS SCHEDULE OF FEES Page 4 of 4 
Revised February 1, 2021 

Metal 
Bolt Assembly Hardness Test  ................................................................................................................................... $74 
Bolt Assembly Tensile & Proof Load Test .................................................................................................................. 125 
Modulus of Elasticity (Steel) ....................................................................................................................................... 146 
Post-Tension Tendon Tensile Testing ........................................................................................................................ 185 
Tensile Strength & Bend Test Structural Steel (ASTM A370) .................................................................................... 180 
Tensile Strength & Bend Test Reinforcing Steel (ASTM A615/A706) ........................................................................ 125 
Tensile Strength #14 - #18 Bar (ASTM A615) ........................................................................................................ Quote 
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #9 and Smaller (Cal 670) ............................................................................. Quote 
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #10 to #14 (Cal 670) .................................................................................... Quote 
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #18 (Cal 670)  .............................................................................................  Quote 

Miscellaneous 
Fire Proofing Density Test (ASTM E605)  .................................................................................................................. $69 
Fiber Reinforced Polymer Tensile (ASTM D3039) ..................................................................................................... 520 
Material Preparation  .................................................................................................................................................... 70 
Relative Humidity Test (ASTM F2170)  ..................................................................................................................  80/kit 
Concrete Vapor Emission Kits (ASTM F1869)  ......................................................................................................  72/kit 
Miscellaneous Charges  ....................................................................................................................................... Various 
Default Expense  .................................................................................................................................................. Various 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Prevailing wage rates will increase consistent with general prevailing wage determinations made by the California 
Department of Industrial Relations. 

All field services will be charged portal to portal with the following minimum charges: 

1. The client will be invoiced only for the hours actually worked in 4- and 8-hour increments.
2. A 2-hour show-up charge will be applied to any service canceled the same day of service.
3. Work in excess of 8 hours up to 12 hours in a single day will be charged in 1-hour increments at 1.5 times the

standard rate.
4. Work in excess of 12 hours in a single day will be charged in 1-hour increments at 2 times the standard rate.

Work performed by field or laboratory personnel outside of normal business hours (6:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) will be 
charged a premium on a case-by-case basis. Work performed for Geophysical Studies outside of a standard work week 
will be charged an additional 30%. 

Fees for specialty geophysical services such as seismic reflection, crosshole, gravity, pile integrity testing, vibration 
monitoring, magnetotellurics, UXO, MEC, etc. will based on a per project basis. Utility focused projects requiring 
specialized training such as MSHA (mines) or RSO (refineries) will be billed at a General Geophysical rate. 

Other Direct Charges: Our company reserves the right to charge for services outside of the contract in the form of 
reimbursables, including but not limited to, the following: diamond coring bits, fuel, patching materials, mileage, travel 
time, equipment rental and administrative time. 

Mileage will be charged at the standard federal rate per mile for distances over 50 miles from the location of dispatch. 
Per Diem charges will be applied to projects outside a 50-mile radius of our office.  

Subcontracted services will be charged at cost plus 20 percent. 

Invoices will be submitted monthly. These invoices are due in full upon presentation to the client. Invoices outstanding 
over 30 days will be considered past due. A finance charge computed at the rate of 1.5 percent per month, which is an 
annual rate of 18 percent, will be charged on all past due accounts. If legal action is brought on delinquent accounts, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs of collection. 

Our services are performed in accordance with the current standards of practice in the industry. No other warranty or 
representation, express or implied, is made or intended. 

Page 286

Item 28.



(rev_6/1/20) 

Schedule B 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
California Prevailing Wage 

Effective July 1, 2019 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Professional (Engineering, Geology, Environmental) 
Principal Professional .......................................................................................................................................................................... $180 
Senior Professional ............................................................................................................................................................................... 160 
Project Professional ............................................................................................................................................................................... 140 
Staff Professional .................................................................................................................................................................................. 115 
Drafter ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... 87 

Field Services (Geotechnical, Inspection) 
Field Supervisor................................................................................................................................................................................... $115 
LA Certified Grading Inspector .............................................................................................................................................................. 120 
Off Site Inspector ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 65 
Laboratory Technician ............................................................................................................................................................................. 72 
Group 1 (Geotechnical, Concrete Sampling) ......................................................................................................................................... 106 
Group 2 (Special Inspection) ................................................................................................................................................................. 110 
Group 3 (NDT Testing) .......................................................................................................................................................................... 114 
Coring .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 162 

Field Services (Utility/Rebar Locating) 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $300 applies to projects billed on hourly rates) ....................................................................... $215 
Full Day .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 1,950 
Letter Report ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 300 
Map (per day of field work) .................................................................................................................................................................... 350 

Field Services (Geophysical Studies: UST, Landfill, Well, Void, UXO, Groundwater) 
Ground Penetrating Radar, Electromagnetics, Magnetics 
Full Day ............................................................................................................................................................................................ $2,350 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $325 applies to projects billed on hourly rates.) ........................................................................ 265 

Seismic (Refraction, MASW, Downhole/Crosshole), Resistivity (Sting, Standard, Wenner 4-Pin) 
Full Day ............................................................................................................................................................................................ $3,000 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $550 applies to projects billed on hourly rates.) ........................................................................ 325 

Seismic ReMi 
One Line ........................................................................................................................................................................................... $1,500 
Each Additional Line .............................................................................................................................................................................. 300 
For Pavement/Requires Drilling ............................................................................................................................................................. 300 

Project Management 
Senior Project Manager ....................................................................................................................................................................... $158 
Project Manager .................................................................................................................................................................................... 130 
Administrative Assistant .......................................................................................................................................................................... 67 

Travel and Miscellaneous 
Pick Up .............................................................................................................................................................................................. $55/hr 
Travel Time .................................................................. Hourly Rate (or $125/hr beyond 2 hours from San Diego for Geophysical Crews) 
Per Diem (variable, depending on location) ....................................................................................................................................... Quote 
Prevailing Wage Hourly Surcharge for Technicians and Inspectors per California Labor Code §720, et. Seq................................... Quote 
Overtime and Saturday Rate .............................................................................................................................. 1.5 x Regular Hourly Rate 
Sunday and Nationally Recognized Holiday Rate (including the day after Thanksgiving)...................................... 2 x Regular Hourly Rate 
Rush Surcharge ....................................................................................................................................................... Normal Rate plus 50% 
Specialty Equipment Surcharge ........................................................................................................................................................ Quote 

Page 287

Item 28.



(rev_6/1/20) 

SCHEDULE OF FEES CONTINUED 

LABORATORY TESTS 

Soil and Aggregate 

California Bearing Ratio (ASTM D854) ................................................................................................................................................ $418 
California Impact (Cal 216) .................................................................................................................................................................... 206 
Chloride Ion Testing (Cal 422) ............................................................................................................................................................... 150 
Clay Lumps in Aggregate (ASTM C142) ............................................................................................................................................... 150 
Cleanness Value (Cal 227) .................................................................................................................................................................... 200 
Consolidation (ASTM D2435) ................................................................................................................................................................ 200 
Corrosivity Testing (Soluble Chlorides and Sulfates, pH and Resistivity) .............................................................................................. 187 
Crushed Particles (Cal 205, ASTM D693) ............................................................................................................................................. 150 
Direct Shear (ASTM D3080) .................................................................................................................................................................. 260 
Durability Factor (Cal 229, ASTM D3744) ............................................................................................................................................... 97 
Durability Index (Cal 229, ASTM D3744) ............................................................................................................................................... 224 
Expansion Index (ASTM D4289) ........................................................................................................................................................... 177 
Fine Aggregate Angularity (AASHTO T304) .......................................................................................................................................... 200 
Fineness Modulus (ASTM C136) ............................................................................................................................................................. 24 
Flat & Elongated Pieces (ASTM D4791) ................................................................................................................................................ 175 
Light Weight Pieces (ASTM C123) ........................................................................................................................................................ 175 
Liquid Limit (Cal 204, ASTM D4318) ....................................................................................................................................................... 75 
Los Angeles Abrasion - 1 1/2” and smaller (Cal 211, ASTM C131) ....................................................................................................... 224 
Maximum Density Check Point (ASTM D698/D1557) ............................................................................................................................. 88 
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture – 4” (ASTM D698, D1557) ......................................................................................................... 200 
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture – 6” (ASTM D698, D1557) ......................................................................................................... 220 
Minimum Density (ASTM D1556) ............................................................................................................................................................ 74 
Moisture Content (Cal 226, ASTM C566, ASTM D2216) ......................................................................................................................... 35 
Natural Density - Chunk Sample (ASTM D2937) ..................................................................................................................................... 41 
Natural Moisture/Density Ring or Core Sample (ASTM D2937) .............................................................................................................. 35 
Organic Impurities (Cal 213, ASTM C40) ................................................................................................................................................ 90 
Organic Matter (ASTM D2974) ................................................................................................................................................................ 75 
Percent Finer than #200 (ASTM C117, ASTM D1140) ............................................................................................................................ 70 
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D2434) ....................................................................................................................................... 200 
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D5084) ....................................................................................................................................Quote 
Permeability Undisturbed Sample (ASTM D5084) ..............................................................................................................................Quote 
Petrographic Analysis (Cal 215, ASTM C295) ................................................................................................................................... Quote 
pH & Resistivity (Cal 643, ASTM G51) .................................................................................................................................................. 126 
Plasticity Index (Cal 204, ASTM 4318) .................................................................................................................................................. 127 
Potential Reactivity (ASTM C289) ......................................................................................................................................................... 220 
Residual Shear (ASTM D6467) ............................................................................................................................................................. 442 
Rock Correction (ASTM D4718) .............................................................................................................................................................. 26 
R-Value (Cal 301, ASTM D2844) .......................................................................................................................................................... 276 
Sand Castle Test (USACE) ................................................................................................................................................................... 195 
Sand Equivalent (Cal 217, ASTM D2419) ............................................................................................................................................... 88 
Sieve Analysis (ASTM C136, ASTM D6913, Cal 202) ........................................................................................................................... 110 
Sieve Analysis with Hydrometer (Cal 203, ASTM D422) ....................................................................................................................... 200 
Soil Cement Compression Strength (Cal 312, ASTM D1633) ................................................................................................................. 50 
Soil Cement Cylinder Fabrication (Cal 312, ASTM D1632) ................................................................................................................... 100 
Soluble Chlorides (Cal 422) ..................................................................................................................................................................... 62 
Soluble Sulfate (Cal 417) ......................................................................................................................................................................... 62 
Soundness 5 Cycles (Cal 214, ASTM C88) ........................................................................................................................................... 375 
Specific Gravity Coarse Aggregate (Cal 206, ASTM C127) ................................................................................................................... 115 
Specific Gravity Fine Aggregate (Cal 207, ASTM C128) ....................................................................................................................... 115 
Triaxial Shear Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM D4767) .................................................................................................................. Quote 
Triaxial Shear Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) .............................................................................................................. Quote 
Triaxial Staged Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM D4767) ................................................................................................................ Quote 
Triaxial Staged Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) ............................................................................................................. Quote 
Unconfined Compression (ASTM D2166) ............................................................................................................................................. 162 
Unit Weight Aggregate (Cal 212, ASTM C29) ......................................................................................................................................... 80 

Page 288

Item 28.



(rev_6/1/20) 

SCHEDULE OF FEES CONTINUED 

Asphalt Concrete 

Asphalt Core Specific Gravity (Cal 308, ASTM D2726 .......................................................................................................................... $58 
Asphalt Core Specific Gravity Waxed (Cal 308, ASTM D1188) ............................................................................................................... 74 
Emulsion Content (CTM 382) ................................................................................................................................................................ 178 
Film Stripping (Cal 302) ..................................................................................................................................................................... Quote 
Gyratory Compacted Maximum Specific Gravity (AASHTO T312) ........................................................................................................ 350 
Hamburg Wheel - Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T324/Cal-Trans Section 39) .................................................................................. 900 
Hveem - Maximum Bulk Specific Gravity (Cal 308) ............................................................................................................................... 300 
Hveem & Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) ................................................................................................................................................. 400 
Ignition Oven Correction Factor (AASHTO T308) ................................................................................................................................. 250 
Ignition Oven Degradation Factor (AASHTO T308) .............................................................................................................................. 250 
Marshall Density, Stability & Flow (ASTM D6927) ................................................................................................................................. 400 
Marshall Density (ASTM D6926) ........................................................................................................................................................... 300 
Moisture Content of Asphalt Mixtures Using Microwave (Cal 370) .......................................................................................................... 50 
Moisture Vapor Susceptibility (Cal 307) ............................................................................................................................................. Quote 
Optimum Bitumen Content (AASHTO R35/Cal 367) .......................................................................................................................... 3,100 
Percent Bitumen Asphaltic Concrete (Cal 382, ASTM D6307) .............................................................................................................. 180 
Residue by Evaporation (Cal 331) ......................................................................................................................................................... 178 
Rice - Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity AC (Cal 309, ASTM D2041) ........................................................................................... 133 
Sieve Analysis - Extracted Aggregate (Cal 382, ASTM D5444) .............................................................................................................. 90 
Stability and Flow (ASTM D1559) ......................................................................................................................................................... 350 
Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) ................................................................................................................................................................ 350 
RAP Testing - Fractionated (ASTM D2172/AASHTO T308/Cal-Trans Section 39 ............................................................................. Quote 
RAP Testing - Not Fractionated (ASTM D2172/AASHTO T308/Cal-Trans Section 39) ..................................................................... Quote 
Tensile Strength Ratio - Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T283) ........................................................................................................... 900 
Wet Track Abrasion (ASTM D3910) ...................................................................................................................................................... 185 

Concrete 

2X2 Cube Compression ........................................................................................................................................................................ $27 
Concrete Core Compression (ASTM C42) .............................................................................................................................................. 59 
Concrete Cylinder Compression (Cal 521, ASTM C39) .......................................................................................................................... 27 
Flex Beam Modulus of Rupture (Cal 523, ASTM C78) ............................................................................................................................ 74 
Modulus of Elasticity (Cal 522, ASTM C469) ......................................................................................................................................... 261 
Shotcrete Mockup Panel (ASTM C1140) ............................................................................................................................................ 1,040 
Shotcrete Panel, 3 Cores - Compression (CBC) ................................................................................................................................... 290 
Shrinkage - Hardened Concrete (ASTM C157 - Modified) .................................................................................................................... 371 
Split Tensile, Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C496) ....................................................................................................................................... 74 
Time of Set (ASTM C403) ..................................................................................................................................................................... 200 
Trial Batch Fabrication (ASTM C192) .................................................................................................................................................... 298 
Unit Weight, Hardened Concrete (ASTM C642) ...................................................................................................................................... 45 
Unit Weight, Lightweight Concrete (ASTM C567) ................................................................................................................................... 59 

Masonry 

Absorption Block (ASTM C140) ........................................................................................................................................................... $115 
Compression Adobe .............................................................................................................................................................................. 155 
Compression Block, Standard (ASTM C140) ........................................................................................................................................ 150 
Compression, Brick (ASTM C67) .......................................................................................................................................................... 115 
Efflorescence Block ............................................................................................................................................................................... 175 
Efflorescence, Brick (ASTM C67) .......................................................................................................................................................... 175 
Grout Prism Compression (ASTM C1019) .............................................................................................................................................. 27 
Masonry Core Compression (ASTM C42) ............................................................................................................................................... 51 
Masonry Core Shear (CBC 2105A.4) ...................................................................................................................................................... 95 
Masonry Prism Compression (ASTM E447) .......................................................................................................................................... 150 
Mortar Bond Strength - Pull Test (ASTM C482) ...................................................................................................................................... 62 
Mortar Cylinder Compression .................................................................................................................................................................. 27 
Mortar Shear Strength (ANSI 118) .......................................................................................................................................................... 53 

Page 289

Item 28.



(rev_6/1/20) 

SCHEDULE OF FEES CONTINUED 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Masonry - Continued 

Relative Mortar Strength (Cal 515) ...................................................................................................................................................... $850 
Shrinkage - Masonry Block (ASTM C426) ............................................................................................................................................. 250 
Trial Grout Prisms (ASTM C942) ............................................................................................................................................................. 38 
Water Retention and Air Content (ASTM C270) .................................................................................................................................... 470 

Metal 

Bolt Assembly - Hardness Test ............................................................................................................................................................. $74 
Bolt Assembly - Tensile & Proof Load Test ........................................................................................................................................... 125 
Modulus of Elasticity (Steel) .................................................................................................................................................................. 146 
Post-Tension Tendon Tensile Testing ................................................................................................................................................... 185 
Tensile Strength & Bend Test, Reinforcing Steel (ASTM A615/A706) ................................................................................................... 125 
Tensile Strength #14 - #18 Bar (ASTM A615) ................................................................................................................................... Quote 
Tensile Strength - Mechanical Splices #9 and Smaller (Cal 670) ...................................................................................................... Quote 
Tensile Strength - Mechanical Splices #10 to #14 (Cal 670) ............................................................................................................. Quote 
Tensile Strength - Mechanical Splices #18 (Cal 670) ........................................................................................................................ Quote 
Tensile Strength and Bend Test, Structural Steel (ASTM A370) ........................................................................................................... 180 

Miscellaneous 

Fire Proofing Density Test (ASTM E605) .............................................................................................................................................. $69 
Fiber Reinforced Polymer, Tensile (ASTM D3039) ............................................................................................................................... 520 
Material Preparation ............................................................................................................................................................................ 70/hr 
Relative Humidity Test (ASTM F2170) ................................................................................................................................................ 80/kit 
Concrete Vapor Emission Kits (ASTM F1869) ..................................................................................................................................... 72/kit 
Test Chamber and Water Spray Rack (ASTM E1105) .................................................................................................................. 275/hour 
Miscellaneous Charges ................................................................................................................................................................... Various 
Default Expense .............................................................................................................................................................................. Various 

All field services will be charged portal to portal with the following minimum charges: 
• A two-hour show-up charge will be applied to any service canceled the same day of service.
• The client will be invoiced only for the hours actually worked in 4 and 8 hour increments.
• Work in excess of eight hours up to twelve hours in a single day, will be charged in one-hour increments at 1.5 times the standard rate.
• Work in excess of twelve hours in a day will be charged in one-hour increments at 2.0 times the standard rate.

Work performed by field or laboratory personnel outside of normal business hours (6:30 AM – 5:00 PM) will be charged a premium on a case-by-case 
basis. 

Reimbursables: Our company reserves the right to charge for services outside of the contract in the form of reimbursables. These items include, but are 
not limited to, the following consumables: diamond coring bits, fuel, patching materials, mileage, travel time, equipment rental and administrative time. 

Subcontracted services that are included on the Fee Schedule will be charged at those rates. Subcontracted services not included in our Fee Schedule 
will be charged at cost plus 20 percent. Per Diem charges will be applied to projects outside a 50-mile radius of our office. Mileage will be charged at the 
rate of 54.4 cents per mile for distances over 50 miles from the location of dispatch. 

Invoices for all services completed or in progress will be submitted monthly. These invoices are due in full upon presentation to the client. Invoices 
outstanding over 30 days will be considered past due. A finance charge will be computed at the rate of 1.5 percent per month, which is an annual rate of 
18 percent and charged on all past due accounts. If legal action is brought on delinquent accounts, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs of collection. 

Our professional engineering, geology, and inspection services are performed in accordance with the current standards of practice in the industry. No 
other warranty or representation, express or implied, is made or intended. 

Prevailing wage rates will increase consistent with general prevailing wage determinations made by the California Department of Industrial Relations.

Page 290

Item 28.



B-1
80237.00000\19870870.1

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

October 12, 2022 through October 12, 2023. 

Page 291

Item 28.



C-1
80237.00000\19870870.1

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

Not to Exceed $50,000.00. 

Page 292

Item 28.



Page 293

Item 28.



Page 294

Item 28.



Page 295

Item 28.



Page 296

Item 28.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Andrew Simmons, P.E., City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Award Construction Contract with Jacobsson Engineering Construction, Inc. in 

the amount of $1,498,267.98 plus 20% contingency, and approve Amendment #1 

to the professional engineering services contract with KOA in an amount not to 

exceed $75,000, and Award a professional service contract for materials testing 

to Atlas Technical Consultants in an amount not to exceed $25,000,  for the 2022 

Pedestrian and Road Safety Improvements, City Project No. ST-134. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

o Authorize City Manager to execute a construction contract with Jacobsson Engineering 

Construction, Inc. in an amount $1,498,267.98 plus 20% contingency for the 2022 

Pedestrian and Road Safety Improvements, City Project No. ST-134. 

o Authorize City Manager to execute contract Amendment #1 with KOA Corporation for 

reoccurring, as needed, professional engineering services for the 2022 Pedestrian and Road 

Safety Improvements Project, City Project ST-134. 

o Authorize City Manager to execute a contract with Atlas Technical Consultants LLC for 

reoccurring, as needed, construction materials and quality assurance testing for the 2022 

Pedestrian and Road Safety Improvements Project, City Project ST-134. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On May 26, 2021 the City of Coachella approved Resolution 2021-32, adopting a list of road 

rehabilitation projects to be funded by SB1 (Gas Tax). This resolution included approximately 

$1.7 million in combined funding for street rehabilitation projects ST-105 and ST-113, and ST-

134 for the 2022 Pedestrian and Road Safety Improvement Project. The ST-134 Pedestrian and 

Road Safety Project was presented to City Council on March 9th and included proposed street 

rehabilitation and pedestrian safety projects proposed under all three projects, under one combined 

scope. Combining scopes from multiple projects provides efficiency in project management, 

design and delivery. 
 

City Staff has included thirteen locations throughout the City that need pedestrian and road safety 

improvements. These improvements include median refuges and enhanced crosswalks with rapid 

rectangular flashing beacons (RRFB), center separation medians, ADA ramps, safety striping and 

speed humps. The thirteen locations will include 18 enhanced street crossings, 3 street crossings 

Page 297

Item 29.



with push button rapid flashing pedestrian beacons, 10 new ADA ramps, nearly 1 mile of median 

curbs, over two miles of road restriping, 62,000 SF of slurry seal and three new speed humps.   

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The City requested public bids in accordance with City standards and in compliance with the 

California Public Contract Code. On September 1, 2022, the City issued the Notice Inviting Bids 

with a non-mandatory job walk held on September 8, 2022. The project bid opening was held on 

September 22, 2022 at 10:00 a.m., with one company submitting a bid for this project. The bid 

opening results are listed below: 

 

Company Name: City: Bid Amount: 

Jacobsson Engineering Construction Palm Desert $1,498,267.98 

 

Staff has reviewed the bid and determined that Jacobsson Engineering Construction is the lowest, 

responsive, responsible bidder. The total project cost, including design engineering, construction 

engineering, materials testing, construction and a 20% contingency is as follows: 

 

Project Item: Project Cost: 

Civil Design and Construction Engineering (KOA) $75,000 

ATLAS Engineering Materials Testing  $25,000 

Construction $1,498,267.98 

Construction Contingency (20%) $299,653.60 

TOTAL PROJECT COST: $1,897,921.58 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The project contains elements from ST-105, ST-113 and ST-134, which have been combined into 

one project, and have all been included in the City’s approved CIP FY 22/23 budget and listed on 

Resolution 2022-29 to be funded with SB1 Funds (Fund 109). The total project costs of 

$1,897,921.58, which includes design engineering, construction engineering, materials testing, 

construction and a 20% contingency will be funded with SB1 Funds (Fund 109) and Street DIF 

funds (Fund 127). In addition to the funds currently appropriated in ST-134 ($477,101), Funds 

will be re-appropriated from projects, ST-105 ($464,961.62) and ST-113 ($350,000) and ST-131 

($277,000).  Total SB-1 funds to be appropriated to the project will total $1,569,062.62.  Street 

DIF funds (Fund 127) will be appropriated to cover the remaining project balance ($328,858.96). 

With this action, Council will be approving applicable transfers from Funds 109 and 127 to Fund 

182 (CIP). 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Construction Contract – Jacobsson Engineering Construction, Inc. 

2. ST-134 Bid Tabulation 
3. Amendment #1 – KOA Corporation 
4. Professional Service Agreement – Atlas Technical Consultants LLC 

Page 298

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -55- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION  

This Contract for Construction (“Contract”), is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 
2022, by and between City of Coachella, a municipal corporation, organized under the laws of the 
State of California, with its principal place of business at 53990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, 
California 92236, sometimes hereinafter called the “City” and Jacobsson Engineering 
Construction, Inc., a corporation, with its principal place of business at P.O. Box 14430, Palm 
Desert, CA 92255, sometimes hereinafter called “Contractor.” 

WITNESSETH:  That the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed, and by these 
presents do covenant and agree with each other as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF WORK.   

The Contractor shall perform all Work within the time stipulated in the Contract, and shall provide 
all labor, materials, equipment, tools, utility services, and transportation to complete all of the 
Work required in strict compliance with the Contract Documents as specified in Article 5, below, 
for the following Project: 

PEDESTRIAN SAFETY AND ROADWAY IMPROVMENTS 
CITY PROJECT NO.  ST-134 

 
 

Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent of the City.  The Contractor and its 
surety shall be liable to the City for any damages arising as a result of the Contractor’s failure to 
comply with this obligation. 

ARTICLE 2. TIME FOR COMPLETION.   

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Work.  The Work shall be commenced on the 
date stated in the City’s Notice to Proceed. The Contractor shall complete all Work required by 
the Contract Documents within 60 Working Days from the commencement date stated in the 
Notice to Proceed. By its signature hereunder, Contractor agrees the time for completion set forth 
above is adequate and reasonable to complete the Work. 

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT PRICE.   

The City shall pay to the Contractor as full compensation for the performance of the Contract, 
subject to any additions or deductions as provided in the Contract Documents, and including all 
applicable taxes and costs, the sum of One Million Four Hundred Ninety-Eight Thousand Two 
Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars and Ninety-Eight Cents ($1,498,267.98). Payment shall be 
made as set forth in the General Conditions.  The City will pay to Contractor compensation based 
upon the prices set forth in the Bid Schedule. 

ARTICLE 4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.   

Contractor acknowledges that the City will sustain actual damages for each and every Working 
Day completion of the Project is delayed beyond the Contract Time. Because of the nature of the 
Project, it would be impracticable or extremely difficult to determine the City’s actual damages.  
Accordingly, in accordance with Government Code section 53069.85, it is agreed that the 
Contractor will pay the City the sum of $1,500.00 for each and every Working Day of delay beyond 

Page 299

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -56- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

the time prescribed in the Contract Documents for finishing the Work, as Liquidated Damages 
and not as a penalty or forfeiture, if the Bagdouma Court Improvements are not completed by the 
date set forth in the Invitation to Bid.  In the event this is not paid, the Contractor agrees the City 
may deduct that amount from any money due or that may become due the Contractor under the 
Contract. This Section does not exclude recovery of other damages specified in the Contract 
Documents.  Liquidated damages may be deducted from progress payments due Contractor, 
Project retention or may be collected directly from Contractor, or from Contractor's surety.  These 
provisions for liquidated damages shall not prevent the City, in case of Contractor's default, from 
terminating the Contractor. 

ARTICLE 5. COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT.   

The “Contract Documents” include the following: 

Notice Inviting Bids  
Instructions to Bidders 
Bid Forms 
Bid Acknowledgement  
Bid Schedule  
Bid Guarantee 
Designation of Subcontractors 
Information Required of Bidders 
Non-Collusion Declaration Form 
Iran Contracting Act Certification 
Drug-Free Workplace Certification 
Asbestos-Free Material Certification 
Recycled Content Certification 
Public Works Contractor DIR Registration Certification 
Performance Bond 
Payment (Labor and Materials) Bond 
Contract for Construction  
General Conditions 
Special Conditions 
Technical Specifications 
Addenda 
Construction Plans and Drawings 
City of Coachella Standard Specifications and Procedures (June 2007) 
City of Coachella Standard Infrastructure Drawings (2007 Edition) including Surface 

Improvement Standards and Water Standards  
Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction “Greenbook” (2018), Except 

Sections 1-9 
Standard Plans for Public Works Construction “Greenbook” (2018) 
Caltrans Standard Specifications (2018), except Division 1 
Caltrans Standard Plans (2018)  
Applicable Local Agency Standards and Specifications, as last revised 
Reference Specifications  
Approved and fully executed Change Orders 
Permits 
Any other documents contained in or incorporated into the Contract 

 

Page 300

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -57- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

The Contractor shall complete the Work in strict accordance with all of the Contract Documents. 

All of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary.  Work required by one of the 
Contract Documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all.  In the event of conflict, 
the various Contract Documents will be given effect in the order set forth in the General 
Conditions.  This Contract shall supersede any prior agreement of the parties.   

ARTICLE 6. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW AND CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE.   

Each and every provision of law required to be included in these Contract Documents shall be 
deemed to be included in these Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall comply with all 
requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including, but not 
limited to, the provisions of the California Labor Code and California Public Contract Code which 
are applicable to this Work. 

ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION.   

Contractor shall provide indemnification and defense as set forth in the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 8. PREVAILING WAGES.   

Contractor shall be required to pay the prevailing rate of wages in accordance with the Labor 
Code which such rates may be obtained online at http://www.dir.ca.gov and which must be 
posted at the job site. 

ARTICLE 9. FALSE CLAIMS.   

Contractor acknowledges that if a false claim is submitted to the City, it may be considered fraud 
and Contractor may be subject to criminal prosecution.  Contractor acknowledges that the False 
Claims Act, California Government Code sections 12650, et seq., provides for civil penalties 
where a person knowingly submits a false claim to a public entity.  These provisions include within 
their scope false claims made with deliberate ignorance of the false information or in reckless 
disregard of the truth or falsity of the information.  In the event the City seeks to recover penalties 
pursuant to the False Claims Act, it is entitled to recover its litigation costs, including attorneys’ 
fees.  Contractor hereby acknowledges that the filing of a false claim may the Contractor to an 
administrative debarment proceeding wherein Contractor may be prevented from further bidding 
on public contracts for a period of up to five (5) years. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  

Page 301

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -58- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract has been duly executed by the above-named parties, on 
the day and year above written. 

CITY OF COACHELLA  

By: 

Gabriel Martin 
      City Manager 
 
 

ATTEST: 

By:   
            Andrea Carranza, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:   
Best Best & Krieger LLP 
City Attorney 

 

JACOBSSON ENGINEERING 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
 
 
IF CORPORATION, TWO SIGNATURES,  
PRESIDENT OR VICE PRESIDENT AND 
SECRETARY OR TREASURER REQUIRED 

By: 

 
Its:
  

Printed 
Name:
  
 
 
By: 

 
Its:
  

Printed 
Name:
  
 
 
 
__A&B #650389_______________________ 
Contractor’s License Number and 
Classification  

 
__1000008233________________________ 
DIR Registration Number   

 

 
(CONTRACTOR’S SIGNATURE MUST BE 
NOTARIZED AND CORPORATE 
SEAL AFFIXED, IF APPLICABLE) 
 

 

END OF CONTRACT  

Page 302

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -59- CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document 
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.  

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

 

Page 303

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -60- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

BOND FORMS 
 

Performance Bond 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

THAT WHEREAS, the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation, organized under the laws of 
the State of California, with its principal place of business at 53990 Enterprise Way, California 

92236, (hereinafter referred to as the “City”) has awarded to Three Peaks Corp., (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Contractor”) an agreement for Pedestrian & Roadway Safety 
Improvements, City Project No. ST-134, (hereinafter referred to as the “Project”). 
WHEREAS, the work to be performed by the Contractor is more particularly set forth in the 
Contract Documents for the Project dated October 12, 2022, (hereinafter referred to as “Contract 
Documents”), the terms and conditions of which are expressly incorporated herein by reference; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor is required by said Contract Documents to perform the terms thereof 
and to furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said Contract Documents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, ______________________,  the undersigned Contractor and 
________________________________________________ as Surety, a corporation organized 
and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, are held and 
firmly bound unto the City in the sum of One Million Four Hundred Ninety-Eight Thousand 
Two Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars and Ninety-Eight Cents, ($1,498,267.98), said sum being 
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the total amount of the Contract, for which amount 
well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators, successors 
and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that, if the Contractor, his or its heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and 
well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions and agreements in the Contract 
Documents and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and 
performed at the time and in the manner therein specified, and in all respects according to their 
intent and meaning; and shall faithfully fulfill all obligations including the one (1) year guarantee 
of all materials and workmanship; and shall indemnify and save harmless the City, its officials, 
officers, employees, and authorized volunteers, as stipulated in said Contract Documents, then 
this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefore, 
there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, incurred by the City in enforcing such obligation. 

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract Documents, unless 
otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents, the above obligation shall hold good for a 
period of one (1) year after the acceptance of the work by the City, during which time if Contractor 
shall fail to make full, complete, and satisfactory repair and replacements and totally protect the 
City from loss or damage resulting from or caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship.  
The obligations of Surety hereunder shall continue so long as any obligation of Contractor 
remains. Nothing herein shall limit the City’s rights or the Contractor or Surety’s obligations under 
the Contract, law or equity, including, but not limited to, California Code of Civil Procedure Section 
337.15. 

Page 304

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -61- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Whenever Contractor shall be, and is declared by the City to be, in default under the Contract 
Documents, the Surety shall remedy the default pursuant to the Contract Documents, or shall 
promptly, at the City’s option: 

i. Take over and complete the Project in accordance with all terms and conditions in 
the Contract Documents; or 

ii. Obtain a bid or bids for completing the Project in accordance with all terms and 
conditions in the Contract Documents and upon determination by Surety of the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder, arrange for a Contract between such 
bidder, the Surety and the City, and make available as work progresses sufficient 
funds to pay the cost of completion of the Project, less the balance of the contract 
price, including other costs and damages for which Surety may be liable.  The term 
“balance of the contract price” as used in this paragraph shall mean the total 
amount payable to Contractor by the City under the Contract and any modification 
thereto, less any amount previously paid by the City to the Contractor and any 
other set offs pursuant to the Contract Documents. 

iii. Permit the City to complete the Project in any manner consistent with California 
law and make available as work progresses sufficient funds to pay the cost of 
completion of the Project, less the balance of the contract price, including other 
costs and damages for which Surety may be liable.  The term “balance of the 
contract price” as used in this paragraph shall mean the total amount payable to 
Contractor by the City under the Contract and any modification thereto, less any 
amount previously paid by the City to the Contractor and any other set offs 
pursuant to the Contract Documents. 

Surety expressly agrees that the City may reject any contractor or subcontractor which may be 
proposed by Surety in fulfillment of its obligations in the event of default by the Contractor. 

Surety shall not utilize Contractor in completing the Project nor shall Surety accept a bid from 
Contractor for completion of the Project if the City, when declaring the Contractor in default, 
notifies Surety of the City’s objection to Contractor’s further participation in the completion of the 
Project. 

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract Documents or to the Project to be performed 
thereunder shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of 
any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract Documents 
or to the Project. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 

 

  

Page 305

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -62- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this _______ day of 
______________, 2022. 

(Corporate Seal)      
Contractor/ Principal 

By       

Title       

(Corporate Seal)      
Surety 

By      
  Attorney-in-Fact 

(Attach Attorney-in-Fact Certificate)  Title       

The rate of premium on this bond is ____________ per thousand.  The total amount of premium 
charges is $_______________________________. 
(The above must be filled in by corporate attorney.) 

THIS IS A REQUIRED FORM 

Any claims under this bond may be addressed to: 

(Name and Address of Surety) ___________________________________________ 
___________________________________________ 
___________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Agent or ___________________________________________ 
Representative for service of   ___________________________________________ 
process in California, if different ___________________________________________ 
from above) 

(Telephone number of Surety  ___________________________________________ 
and Agent or Representative for 
service of process in California) 

  

Page 306

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -63- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document  
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

NOTE: This acknowledgment is to be completed for Contractor/Principal. 

  

Page 307

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -64- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document  
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.  

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

NOTE: This acknowledgment is to be completed for the Attorney-in-Fact.  The Power-of Attorney to 
local representatives of the bonding company must also be attached. 

END OF PERFORMANCE BOND

Page 308

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -65- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Payment Bond (Labor and Materials) 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS That 

WHEREAS, the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized and operating under the 
laws of the State of California (hereinafter designated as the “City”), by action taken or a resolution 
passed on October 12, 2022, has awarded to Jacobsson Construction Engineering, Inc. 
hereinafter designated as the “Principal,” a contract for the work described as follows: Pedestrian 
& Roadway Safety Improvements, City Project No. ST-134 (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the work to be performed by the Contractor is more particularly set forth in the 
Contract Documents for the Project dated October 12, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as “Contract 
Documents”), the terms and conditions of which are expressly incorporated herein by reference; 
and 

WHEREAS, said Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with said contract; providing 
that if said Principal or any of its Subcontractors shall fail to pay for any materials, provisions, 
provender, equipment, or other supplies used in, upon, for or about the performance of the work 
contracted to be done, or for any work or labor done thereon of any kind, or for amounts due 
under the Unemployment Insurance Code or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, 
and paid over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of said 
Principal and its Subcontractors with respect to such work or labor the Surety on this bond will 
pay for the same to the extent hereinafter set forth. 

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Principal and __________________________ as Surety, are held 
and firmly bound unto the City in the penal sum One Million Four Hundred Ninety-Eight 
Thousand Two Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars and Ninety-Eight Cents, ($1,498,267.98) lawful 
money of the United States of America, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, 
we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and 
severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if said Principal, his or its subcontractors, 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall fail to pay any of the persons named 
in Civil Code Section 9100, fail to pay for any materials, provisions or other supplies, used in, 
upon, for or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor 
thereon of any kind, or amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to 
work or labor performed under the contract, or for any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, 
and paid over to the Employment Development Department or Franchise Tax Board from the 
wages of employees of the contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to Revenue and Taxation 
Code Section 18663, with respect to such work and labor the Surety or Sureties will pay for the 
same, in an amount not exceeding the sum herein above specified, and also, in case suit is 
brought upon this bond, all litigation expenses incurred by the City in such suit, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, expert witness fees and investigation expenses. 

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any of the persons named in Civil Code Section 9100 so as 
to give a right of action to such persons or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond. 

It is further stipulated and agreed that the Surety on this bond shall not be exonerated or released 
from the obligation of this bond by any change, extension of time for performance, addition, 
alteration or modification in, to, or of any contract, plans, specifications, or agreement pertaining 
or relating to any scheme or work of improvement herein above described, or pertaining or relating 

Page 309

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -66- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

to the furnishing of labor, materials, or equipment therefore, nor by any change or modification of 
any terms of payment or extension of the time for any payment pertaining or relating to any 
scheme or work of improvement herein above described, nor by any rescission or attempted 
rescission or attempted rescission of the contract, agreement or bond, nor by any conditions 
precedent or subsequent in the bond attempting to limit the right of recovery of claimants 
otherwise entitled to recover under any such contract or agreement or under the bond, nor by any 
fraud practiced by any person other than the claimant seeking to recover on the bond and that 
this bond be construed most strongly against the Surety and in favor of all persons for whose 
benefit such bond is given, and under no circumstances shall Surety be released from liability to 
those for whose benefit such bond has been given, by reason of any breach of contract between 
the owner or the City and original contractor or on the part of any obligee named in such bond, 
but the sole conditions of recovery shall be that claimant is a person described in Civil Code 
Section 9100, and has not been paid the full amount of his claim.  

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 
alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract to be performed thereunder, shall in any way 
affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension 
of time, alteration or addition to the terms of Contract, including but not limited to, the provisions 
of Sections 2819 and 2845 of the California Civil Code. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this _______ day of 
______________, 2022. 

(Corporate Seal)      
Contractor/ Principal 

By       

Title       

(Corporate Seal)      
Surety 

By      
  Attorney-in-Fact 

(Attach Attorney-in-Fact Certificate)  Title       

  

Page 310

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -67- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document  
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.  

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

NOTE: This acknowledgment is to be completed for Contractor/Principal.  

Page 311

Item 29.



 
PEDESTRIAN AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS -68- PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

Notary Acknowledgment 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 

On   , 2022, before me, _______________________________, Notary Public, personally 
 

appeared  , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
 

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed 
the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 
 Signature of Notary Public 

OPTIONAL 

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document 
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document.  

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT 

 Individual  

 Corporate Officer 
 

 
 

 Title(s)  Title or Type of Document 

 Partner(s)  Limited   

  General  Number of Pages 

 Attorney-In-Fact   

 Trustee(s)   

 Guardian/Conservator  Date of Document 

 Other:    

Signer is representing: 
Name Of Person(s) Or Entity(ies) 

  

  

  Signer(s) Other Than Named Above 

NOTE:  This acknowledgment is to be completed for the Attorney-in-Fact.  The Power-of-Attorney to local 
representatives of the bonding company must also be attached. 

END OF PAYMENT BOND 

Page 312

Item 29.



ST-134 Bid Tabulation.xlsx

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED 
PRICE

1 Mobilization 1 LS $65,000.00 $65,000.00 $99,000.00 $99,000.00

2 Dust Control/Stormwater Best Management 
Practices (BMP’s) 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

3 Remove, Modify, and Restore Existing 
Landscape & Irrigation In Kind 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00

4 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $10,200.00 $10,200.00

5 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $700.00 $700.00 $793.00 $793.00

6 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $6,283.00 $6,283.00

7 (F&I) Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,220.00 $1,220.00

8 (F&I) Pedestrian Barricade & Signage 2 EA $800.00 $1,600.00 $1,281.00 $2,562.00

9 Sawcut and Remove Existing Asphalt 
Pavement 419 SF $6.00 $2,514.00 $10.00 $4,190.00

10 Remove Existing Curb/Curb & Gutter 32 LF $5.00 $160.00 $42.00 $1,344.00

11 Remove Existing PCC Sidewalk, Driveway, 
Ramp, or Other Concrete 215 SF $3.00 $645.00 $11.00 $2,365.00

12
Construct 8” Type D Curb 
(Over 6” CL2 AB) per COC Std. S-10 73 LF $54.00 $3,942.00 $71.00 $5,183.00

13 Clean CL2 CAB Fill Material for Island (F) 12 CY $65.00 $780.00 $145.00 $1,740.00

14 4” Thick Quarry Red Stamped PCC 302 SF $16.00 $4,832.00 $20.00 $6,040.00

15 Curb Installation Asphalt Repair 90 LF $0.80 $72.00 $80.00 $7,200.00

16 Construct Curb Ramp Case A per Detail 6 
Sheet 5 1 EA $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $5,800.00 $5,800.00

17 (F&I) Detectable Warning Surface 36 SF $25.00 $900.00 $45.00 $1,620.00

18 Construct 6” Type A Curb & Gutter (Over 6” 
CL2 AB) per COC Std. S-7 17 LF $52.00 $884.00 $117.00 $1,989.00

19 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $10,200.00 $10,200.00

20 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $700.00 $700.00 $1,159.00 $1,159.00

21 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $4,367.00 $4,367.00

Bid Schedule Engineer's Estimate Jacobsson Enginnering 
Construction

Page 313

Item 29.



ST-134 Bid Tabulation.xlsx

22 (F&I) or Relocate Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $213.00 $213.00

23 (F&I) Flashing Sign/Beacon per Plan 1 EA $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $10,126.00 $10,126.00

24 Sawcut and Remove Existing Asphalt 
Pavement 787 SF $6.00 $4,722.00 $8.50 $6,689.50

25 Remove Existing Curb/Curb & Gutter 60 LF $5.00 $300.00 $39.00 $2,340.00

26 Remove Existing PCC Sidewalk, Driveway, 
Ramp, or Other Concrete 233 SF $3.00 $699.00 $12.00 $2,796.00

27 Construct 8” Type D Curb  (Over 6” CL2 
AB) per COC Std. S-10 115 LF $54.00 $6,210.00 $70.00 $8,050.00

28 Clean CL2 CAB Fill Material for Island (F) 18 CY $65.00 $1,170.00 $145.00 $2,610.00

29 4” Thick Quarry Red Stamped PCC 440 SF $16.00 $7,040.00 $20.00 $8,800.00

30 (F&I) Detectable Warning Surface 190 SF $25.00 $4,750.00 $47.00 $8,930.00

31 4” Thick PCC Refuge Island Landing 88 SF $8.00 $704.00 $23.00 $2,024.00

32 Curb Installation Asphalt Repair  145 LF $0.80 $116.00 $80.00 $11,600.00

33 Construct Case C Curb Ramp per Det. 6 
Plan Sheet 6 1 EA $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,059.00 $3,059.00

34 Construct Case CM Curb Ramp per Det. 7 
Plan Sheet 6 1 EA $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,198.00 $10,198.00

35 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $10,203.00 $10,203.00

36 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $4,453.00 $4,453.00

37 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $6,679.00 $6,679.00

38 (F&I) or Remove Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $793.00 $793.00

39 (F&1)  Flashing Sign/Beacon per Plan 1 EA $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $10,126.00 $10,126.00

40 Relocate Flashing Sign/Beacon and 
Signage 1 EA $0.00 $0.00 $10,797.00 $10,797.00

41 Sawcut and Remove Existing Asphalt 
Pavement 1,641 SF $6.00 $9,846.00 $10.00 $16,410.00

42 Remove Existing Curb/Curb & Gutter 50 LF $5.00 $250.00 $40.00 $2,000.00

43 Remove Existing PCC Sidewalk, Driveway, 
Ramp, or Other Concrete 228 SF $3.00 $684.00 $12.00 $2,736.00

44 Construct 8” Type D Curb (Over 6” CL2 AB) 
per COC Std. S-10 54 LF $54.00 $2,916.00 $72.00 $3,888.00

45 Clean CL2 CAB Fill Material for Island (F) 13 CY $65.00 $845.00 $145.00 $1,885.00

46 4” Thick Quarry Red Stamped PCC 312 SF $16.00 $4,992.00 $20.00 $6,240.00

Page 314

Item 29.



ST-134 Bid Tabulation.xlsx

47 (F&I) Detectable Warning Surface 97 SF $25.00 $2,425.00 $47.00 $4,559.00

48 Curb Installation Asphalt Repair  257 LF $0.80 $205.60 $80.00 $20,560.00

49 Construct Case A Curb Ramp per Det. 8 
Plan Sheet 7 1 EA $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00

50 Construct 8” Curb & Gutter over 6” CL2 AB) 
per COC Std. S-8 54 LF $55.00 $2,970.00 $113.00 $6,102.00

51 Construct 4: Thick PCC Sidewalk per COC 
Std. S-25 (Over 6” CL2 AB) 806 SF $13.00 $10,478.00 $12.00 $9,672.00

52 Construct Driveway per SPPWC Std. 110-2 142 SF $15.00 $2,130.00 $21.00 $2,982.00

53 Parkway Sidewalk Clean Fill Material (F) 35 CY $67.00 $2,345.00 $145.00 $5,075.00

54 (F&I) Type 2 REAS Slurry (S) 14,710 SF $0.50 $7,355.00 $2.00 $29,420.00

55 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $10,200.00 $10,200.00

56 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $3,690.00 $3,690.00

57 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $16,738.00 $16,738.00

58 (F&I) Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $915.00 $915.00

59 (F&I) Flashing Sign/Beacon per Plan 2 EA $7,000.00 $14,000.00 $8,521.00 $17,042.00

60 Sawcut and Remove Existing Asphalt 
Pavement 826 SF $6.00 $4,956.00 $10.00 $8,260.00

61 Construct 8” Type D Curb (Over 6” CL2 AB) 
per COC Std. S-10 213 LF $54.00 $11,502.00 $69.00 $14,697.00

62 Clean CL2 CAB Fill Material for Island 20 CY $65.00 $1,300.00 $165.00 $3,300.00

63 4” Thick Quarry Red Stamped PCC 493 SF $16.00 $7,888.00 $20.00 $9,860.00

64 Curb Installation Asphalt Repair  244 LF $0.80 $195.20 $80.00 $19,520.00

65 (F&I) Type 2 REAS Slurry (S) 48,550 SF $0.50 $24,275.00 $2.00 $97,100.00

66 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

67 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,098.00 $1,098.00

68 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,387.00 $3,387.00

69 (F&I) Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $1,700.00 $1,700.00 $122.00 $122.00

70 Sawcut and Remove Existing Asphalt 
Pavement 92 SF $6.00 $552.00 $17.00 $1,564.00

Page 315

Item 29.



ST-134 Bid Tabulation.xlsx

71 Construct 8” Type D Curb (Over 6’ CL2 AB) 
per COC Std. S-10 82 LF $54.00 $4,428.00 $83.00 $6,806.00

72 Clean CL2 CAB Fill Material for Island (F) 3 CY $65.00 $195.00 $450.00 $1,350.00

73 4” Thick Quarry Red Stamped PCC 304 SF $16.00 $4,864.00 $20.00 $6,080.00

74 Curb Installation Asphalt Repair  98 LF $0.80 $78.40 $80.00 $7,840.00

75 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

76 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $6,100.00 $6,100.00

77 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $10,595.00 $10,595.00

78 (F&I) or Relocate Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $250.00 $250.00 $122.00 $122.00

79 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $31,171.68 $31,171.68

80 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $7,564.00 $7,564.00

81 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $16,598.00 $16,598.00

82 (F&I) or Remove Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $4,361.00 $4,361.00

83 Sawcut and Remove Existing Asphalt 
Pavement 17,218 SF $6.00 $103,308.00 $1.60 $27,548.80

84 Construct 8” Type D Curb (Over 6’ CL2 AB) 
per COC Std. S-10 5,740 LF $54.00 $309,960.00 $30.00 $172,200.00

85 Clean CL2 CAB Fill Material for Island (F) 343 CY $65.00 $22,295.00 $117.00 $40,131.00

86 4” Thick Quarry Red Stamped PCC 8,581 SF $16.00 $137,296.00 $9.00 $77,229.00

87 Curb Installation Asphalt Repair  5,802 LF $0.80 $4,641.60 $21.50 $124,743.00

88 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $4,585.00 $4,585.00

89 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,050.00 $3,050.00

90 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $4,819.00 $4,819.00

91 Relocate Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $250.00 $250.00 $549.00 $549.00

92 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

93 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $500.00 $500.00 $823.00 $823.00

94 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $2,873.00 $2,873.00

95 (F&I) Remove Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $2,867.00 $2,867.00

Page 316

Item 29.



ST-134 Bid Tabulation.xlsx

96 Install Thermoplastic Rumble Strips per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $7,686.00 $7,686.00

97 Sawcut and Remove Existing Asphalt 
Pavement 362 SF $6.00 $2,172.00 $12.00 $4,344.00

98 Remove Existing Curb/Curb & Gutter 32 LF $5.00 $160.00 $42.00 $1,344.00

99 Remove Existing PCC Sidewalk, Driveway, 
Ramp, or Other Concrete 173 SF $3.00 $519.00 $23.00 $3,979.00

100 Construct 8” Type D Curb (Over 6’ CL2 AB) 
per COC Std. S-10 64 LF $54.00 $3,456.00 $84.00 $5,376.00

101 Clean CL2 CAB Fill Material for Island (F) 6 CY $65.00 $390.00 $250.00 $1,500.00

102 4” Thick Quarry Red Stamped PCC 143 SF $16.00 $2,288.00 $20.00 $2,860.00

103 (F&I) Detectable Warning Surface 118 SF $25.00 $2,950.00 $47.00 $5,546.00

104 4” Thick PCC Refuge Island Landing 22 SF $8.00 $176.00 $62.00 $1,364.00

105 Curb Installation Asphalt Repair  64 LF $0.80 $51.20 $80.00 $5,120.00

106 Construct Case C Curb Ramp per Det. 6 & 
Det. 8 Plan Sheet 14 2 EA $3,500.00 $7,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00

107 (F&I) Flashing Sign/Beacon per Plan 3 EA $16,000.00 $48,000.00 $11,242.00 $33,726.00

108 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

109 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,464.00 $1,464.00

110 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $7,692.00 $7,692.00

111 (F&I) Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,745.00 $2,745.00

112 (F&I) Flashing Sign/Beacon with Push 
Button & Signage per Plan 2 EA $16,000.00 $32,000.00 $10,583.00 $21,166.00

113 (F&I) Flashing Sign/Beacon and Signage 1 EA $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $10,815.00 $10,815.00
114 Remove Existing Curb/Curb & Gutter 12 LF $5.00 $60.00 $55.00 $660.00

115 Remove Existing PCC Sidewalk, Driveway, 
Ramp, or Other Concrete 195 SF $3.00 $585.00 $21.00 $4,095.00

116 Construct Type B Passage Way Per Det. 7 
Plan Sheet 15 112 SF $20.00 $2,240.00 $49.00 $5,488.00

117 (F&I) Detectable Warning Surface 42 SF $25.00 $1,050.00 $47.00 $1,974.00

118 Construct Case C Curb Ramp per Det. 6 
Sheet 15 1 EA $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00

119 Construct 4” Thick Sidewalk per COC Std. 
25-1 77 SF $13.00 $1,001.00 $54.00 $4,158.00

120 (F&I) Pedestrian Barricade & Signage 2 EA $800.00 $1,600.00 $1,281.00 $2,562.00

Page 317

Item 29.



ST-134 Bid Tabulation.xlsx

121 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $10,200.00 $10,200.00

122 (F&I) Install Speed Humps 2 EA $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $2,521.00 $5,042.00

123 (F&I) Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $1,860.00 $1,860.00

124 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $700.00 $700.00 $2,928.00 $2,928.00

125 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $4,586.00 $4,586.00

126 (F&I) Speed Humps 2 EA $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $2,521.00 $5,042.00

127 (F&I) Signage per Plan (S) 1 LS $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $1,860.00 $1,860.00

128 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $700.00 $700.00 $2,623.00 $2,623.00

129 Traffic Control & Site Protection 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $4,586.00 $4,586.00

130 Remove Striping, Markings, & Markers per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,370.00 $10,370.00

131 Paint Striping & Markings, and Install 
Markers per Plan (S) 1 LS $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $32,232.00 $32,232.00

132 Paint Red Curb per Plan (S) 4,626 LF $3.00 $13,878.00 $1.50 $6,939.00

133 Paint Green MMAX Paint with Legends per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $15,469.00 $15,469.00

134 (F&I), Remove, or Relocate Signage per 
Plan (S) 1 LS $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $1,098.00 $1,098.00

$1,253,742.00 $1,498,267.98
Estimate Adjust 13613
Estimate Total $1,267,355.00

Indicates Staff correction of the math.

Indicates Apparent Low Bidder

TOTAL

Page 318

Item 29.



FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  
CITY OF COACHELLA 

AND KOA CORPORATION 
Project ST-134 

 
 

THIS F I R S T  AMENDMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into as of October 12, 
2022 by   and   between   the   City   of   Coachella ("City")   and   KOA Corporation (“Consultant”). 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:    
 

1.   Recitals.  This Amendment i s  made with the respect to the following facts and purposes: 
 

a. On or about March 9th, 2022 the City and Consultant entered into that certain agreement 
entitled “City of Coachella Professional Services Agreement” between the City and 
Consultant in the amount of $26,220 for project ST-134. 
 

b. The parties now desire to amend the Agreement as set forth in this Amendment. 

 
2.   Amendment.    Section 3.3.1, Compensation, of the Agreement is hereby amended in its entirely 

to read as follows: 
   

 "3.3.1   Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including authorized 
reimbursements,  for  all Services rendered  under  this Agreement  as set  forth  in Exhibit 
"A" at  the  rates  set  forth  in  Exhibit  "B" attached   hereto  and  incorporated  herein  by 
reference.     The total   compensation shall   not exceed Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars 
($75,000) without written approval of the City’s representative.   Extra Work may be authorized, 
as described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in 
this Agreement." 

 
3. Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by this Amendment, all provisions of 

the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. From and after the date of 
this Amendment, whenever the term “Agreement” appears in the Agreement, it shall mean the 
Agreement as amended by this Amendment. 

 
4. Adequate Consideration. The parties hereto irrevocably stipulate and agree that they have 

each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the obligations they 
have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment. 

  
5.  Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in duplicate originals, each of which is 

deemed to be an original, b u t  when taken together shall constitute but  one and the same 
instrument. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 319

Item 29.



 
IN WITNESS  THEREOF, the parties have executed  this Amendment  as of the day and 

year first set  forth above,  which date shall be considered by the parties to be the effective date of 
this Amendment. 

 
 
 

CITY OF COACHELLA  KOA CORPORATION. 
 
 

 
 
By:____________________________           By:_________________________ 
    Gabriel Martin, City Manager    Min Zhou, Chief Executive Officer/President             
      

 
Approved as to form: 

 
 

 
By:_____ 

 
     Carlos Campos, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
Attest:  
 
By: _______________________        _   

    Angela Zepeda, City Clerk 

 

Page 320

Item 29.



A-1
80237.00000\19870870.1

CITY OF COACHELLA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into this 12th day of October, 2022 by and
between the City of Coachella, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of California with its principal place of business at 53990 Enterprise Way, Coachella, 
California 92236 (“City”) and Atlas Technical Consultants LLC a partnership with its 
principal place of business at, 6280 Riverdale Street, San Diego, CA 92120 (“Consultant”).  
The City and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as 
“Parties.” 

2. RECITALS.

2.1 Consultant.

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain
professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing professional services to 
public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar with the plans of the City. 

2.2 Project. 

The City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the 2022 Pedestrian 
and Road Safety Improvements Project, City Project ST-134 (“Project”) as set forth in this 
Agreement. 

3. TERMS.

3.1 Scope of Services and Term.

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to 
the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work 
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional engineering services necessary for the 
Project (“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject to, and performed in 
accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

3.1.2 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of 12 calendar 
months from date of the notice to proceed unless earlier terminated as provided herein. 
Consultant shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any 
other established schedules and deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend 
the term of this Agreement if necessary to complete the Services. 

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

Page 321

Item 29.



A-2
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The 
Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine 
the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  The City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an 
employee.  Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during 
the term of this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this 
Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of the City and shall at all times 
be under Consultant’s exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, 
and other amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under 
this Agreement and as required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and 
obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security 
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform the Services 
expeditiously, within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of 
Services set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
Consultant represents that it has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the 
Services in conformance with such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant’s conformance 
with the Schedule, the City shall respond to Consultant’s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon 
request of the City, Consultant shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance 
to meet the Schedule of Services. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by 
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of the City. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to the City that 
certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of 
at least equal competence upon written approval of the City.  In the event that the City and 
Consultant cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, the City shall be entitled to 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to 
perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the City, or who are determined by the City to be 
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a 
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the 
Consultant at the request of the City.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are 
as follows: Mrs. Mehrnoush Yavary, P.E., - Atlas Technical Consultants LLC - Director of 
Engineering 

Page 322

Item 29.



A-3
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.2.5 City’s Representative.  The City hereby designates, Andrew Simmons, 
P.E. – City Engineer, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance 
of this Agreement (“City’s Representative”).  The City’s Representative shall have the power to 
act on behalf of the City for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept 
direction or orders from any person other than the City’s Representative or his or her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Mehrnoush 
Yavary, P.E. - Director of Engineering, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for 
the performance of this Agreement (“Consultant’s Representative”).  Consultant’s 
Representative shall have full authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for 
all purposes under this Agreement.  The Consultant’s Representative shall supervise and direct 
the Services, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all 
portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with the City 
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to the City’s staff, consultants 
and other staff at all reasonable times. 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform 
all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the 
standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the 
State of California.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the 
professional calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all 
employees and subconsultants shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the 
Services assigned to them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and 
subconsultants have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that 
are legally required to perform the Services, including a City Business License, and that 
such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  
As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the City, any services 
necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Consultant’s failure to 
comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Consultant or 
its sub-consultants who is determined by the City to be uncooperative, incompetent, a 
threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons or 
property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to 
the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant and shall not be re-
employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.8.1 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant shall 
perform and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in 
Section 3.1.2 above (“Performance Time”). Consultant shall also perform the Services 
in strict accordance with any completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits 
“A” or “B” attached hereto, or which may be separately agreed upon in writing by the City 
and Consultant (“Performance Milestones”).  Consultant agrees that if the Services are not 
completed within the aforementioned Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such Project 
Milestones developed pursuant to provisions of this Agreement, it is understood, 
acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer damage.   

Page 323

Item 29.



A-4
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and 
in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting 
the performance of the Project or the Services, including all Cal/OSHA requirements, and shall 
give all notices required by law.  Consultant shall be liable for all violations of such laws and 
regulations in connection with the Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing it to 
be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the City, 
Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers, employees, and agents free and 
harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any claim or 
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or 
regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence 
Work under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has 
secured all insurance required under this section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 
subconsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory 
to the City that the subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, 
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.  
Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance 
for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum 
levels of coverage: 

(A) Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as
broad as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office 
Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: 
Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto); 
and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 
required by the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain
limits no less than: (1) General Liability:  $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with 
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident 
for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s 
Liability: Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of 
California.  Employer’s Liability limits of $1,000,000  per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

3.2.10.3 Professional Liability.   Consultant shall procure and 
maintain, and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years 
following completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their 

Page 324

Item 29.



A-5
80237.00000\19870870.1

profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claim, and shall 
be endorsed to include contractual liability. 

3.2.10.4 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall 
contain the following provisions, or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or 
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) General Liability.  The general liability policy shall be
endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to the Work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall 
stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled underlying 
coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and 
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall
be endorsed to state that:  (1) the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, 
maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 
Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s 
scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. 

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the 
insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced 
or canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, has been given to the City; and (B) any failure to comply with reporting or other 
provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to 
the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All 
insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In 
addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers. 

3.2.10.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any 
deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant 

Page 325

Item 29.



A-6
80237.00000\19870870.1

shall guarantee that, at the option of the City, either:  (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense 
expenses. 

3.2.10.7 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with 
insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in 
California, and satisfactory to the City. 

3.2.10.8 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish City 
with original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this 
Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.  The certificates and endorsements for each 
insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.  All certificates and 
endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any 
time. 

3.2.10.9 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City, in 
addition to Consultant’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in 
connection with the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.11 Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid 
injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at 
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, 
and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature 
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as 
applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  (A) adequate life protection and life saving 
equipment and procedures; (B) instructions in accident prevention for all employees and 
subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks, 
confined space procedures, trenching and shoring, equipment and other safety devices, 
equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or 
injuries; and (C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety 
measures. 

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation.  Consultant shall receive compensation, including 
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth 
in Exhibit ”C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation 
shall not exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) without written approval of 
the City’s Engineer.  Extra Work may be authorized, as described below, and if 
authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation.  Consultant shall submit to the City a monthly 
itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of the Services rendered by 
Consultant.  The statement shall describe the amount of the Services and supplies provided since 

Page 326

Item 29.



A-7
80237.00000\19870870.1

the initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as 
appropriate, through the date of the statement.  The City shall, within 45 days of receiving such 
statement, review the statement and pay all approved charges thereon. 

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any 
expenses unless authorized in writing by the City. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, the City may 
request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work 
which is determined by the City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but 
which the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written 
authorization from City’s Representative. 

3.3.5 Labor Code Requirements.  

3.3.5.1 Prevailing Wages.  Consultant is aware of the requirements of 
California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of 
Regulations, Title 8, Section 1600, et seq., (“Prevailing Wage Laws”), which require the 
payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on “public works” 
and “maintenance” projects.  If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public 
works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total 
compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage 
Laws.  The City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages 
in effect at the commencement of this Agreement.  Consultant shall make copies of the 
prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to 
execute the Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the 
Consultant’s principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and 
harmless from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with 
the Prevailing Wage Laws. 

3.3.5.2 Registration and Labor Compliance.  If the Services are being 
performed as part of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, then, in addition to 
the foregoing, pursuant to Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, Consultant and all 
subconsultants must be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”). 
Consultant shall maintain registration for the duration of the Project and require the same of any 
subconsultants.  This Project may also be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by 
the Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Consultant’s sole responsibility to comply 
with all applicable registration and labor compliance requirements, including the submission of 
payroll records directly to the DIR.   

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain complete and 
accurate records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such 
records shall be clearly identifiable.  Consultant shall allow a representative of the City during 
normal business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any 

Page 327

Item 29.



A-8
80237.00000\19870870.1

other documents created pursuant to this Agreement.  Consultant shall allow inspection of all 
work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three 
(3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement.

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  The City may, by written notice to 
Consultant, terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by 
giving written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, 
at least seven (7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, 
Consultant shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to 
the City, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not 
terminate this Agreement except for cause. 

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, the City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and 
Data and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the 
performance of the Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide such 
document and other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 
whole or in part as provided herein, the City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner 
as it may determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this 
Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other 
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

Consultant: 

City: 

Atlas Technical Consultants LLC 
6280 Riverdale Street 
San Diego, CA 92120 
Attn: Mehrnoush Yavary, P.E., Director of Engineering 

City of Coachella 
53990 Enterprise Way 
Coachella, CA  92236 
Attn:  Andrew Simmons, P.E., City Engineer

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at
its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice
occurred, regardless of the method of service.

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

Page 328

Item 29.



A-9
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property.  This 
Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the City to copy, use, modify, reuse, 
or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, 
specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in 
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data 
magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be 
prepared by Consultant under this Agreement (“Documents & Data”).  Consultant shall require 
all subconsultants to agree in writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license 
for any Documents & Data the subconsultant prepares under this Agreement.  Consultant 
represents and warrants that Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & 
Data.  Consultant makes no such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data 
which were prepared by design professionals other than Consultant or provided to Consultant by 
the City.  The City shall not be limited in any way in its use of the Documents and Data at any 
time, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement shall be at 
the City’s sole risk. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, 
procedures, drawings, descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written 
information, and other Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant. 
Such materials shall not, without the prior written consent of the City, be used by Consultant for 
any purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be disclosed 
to any person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project. 
Nothing furnished to Consultant which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, 
or has become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not 
use the City’s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the 
Services or the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production 
or other similar medium without the prior written consent of the City. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorneys’ Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other 
party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 
losing party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

3.5.6 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free 
and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, 
damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any 
manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any alleged acts, omissions or willful 
misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, consultants and contractors 
in connection with the performance of the Services, the Project or this Agreement, including 
without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, expert witness fees and attorneys’ 
fees and other related costs and expenses.  Consultant shall defend, at Consultant’s own cost, 
expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every 

Page 329

Item 29.



A-10
80237.00000\19870870.1

kind that may be brought or instituted against the City, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents or volunteers.  Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree 
that may be rendered against the City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or 
volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Consultant shall reimburse the 
City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and/or volunteers, for any and all 
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the 
indemnity herein provided.  Consultant’s obligation to indemnify shall survive expiration or 
termination of this Agreement and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received 
by the City, its officials officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, to the extent Consultant’s Services are subject to Civil Code Section 2782.8, the 
above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to claims 
that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of 
Consultant. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by 
both parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California.  Venue shall be in Riverside County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of 
this Agreement. 

3.5.10 City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  City reserves right to employ 
other consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate or 
transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the 
prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees, 
hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted 
assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have 
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any 
term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not 
work days.  All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, and 
subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to 
City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise 
specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, 
content or intent of this Agreement. 

Page 330

Item 29.



A-11
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.5.14 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification or amendment 
of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.15 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other 
default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, 
privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any 
contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise. 

3.5.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.17 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.18 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely 
for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not 
paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Consultant further 
agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic 
Interest with the City’s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the 
Services.  For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this 
Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of 
City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this 
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

3.5.19 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Consultant represents that it is an equal 
opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, 
sex or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 
or termination.  Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City’s Minority 
Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines 
currently in effect or hereinafter enacted. 

3.5.20 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies that it 
is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every 
employer to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services. 

3.5.21 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and 
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party 
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

Page 331

Item 29.



A-12
80237.00000\19870870.1

3.5.22 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original. 

3.6 Subcontracting. 

3.6.1 Prior Approval Required.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of 
the work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written 
approval of City.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all 
provisions stipulated in this Agreement. 

CITY OF COACHELLA ATLAS TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS LLC 

By: By: 
Mehrnoush Yavary Gabriel Martin 

City Manager  Director of Engineering 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Carlos Campos 
City Attorney 

Page 332

Item 29.



A-1
80237.00000\19870870.1

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Page 333

Item 29.



B 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
California Prevailing Wage 

Effective February 1, 2021 

Revised February 1, 2021 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Professional (Engineering, Geology, Environment, Envelope Services) 
Director/Principal Professional ................................................................................................................................. $190 
Senior Professional .................................................................................................................................................... 165 
Project Professional ................................................................................................................................................... 145 
Staff Professional ....................................................................................................................................................... 120 
Drafter Level II.............................................................................................................................................................. 95 
Drafter Level I............................................................................................................................................................... 85 

Project Management 
Senior Project Manager ........................................................................................................................................... $160 
Project Manager ......................................................................................................................................................... 135 
Administrative Assistant ............................................................................................................................................... 67 

Field Services (Geotechnical, Special Inspection) 
Field Supervisor  ...................................................................................................................................................... $118 
LA Certified Grading Inspector  .................................................................................................................................. 123 
Off Site Inspector ......................................................................................................................................................... 91 
Laboratory Technician .................................................................................................................................................. 74 
Group 1 (Field Soils, Material Tester) ........................................................................................................................ 108 
Group 2 (Special Inspection) ...................................................................................................................................... 113 
Group 3 (NDT Testing) ............................................................................................................................................... 117 
Coring ........................................................................................................................................................................ 166 

Field Services (SUE Level B Utility Evaluations and Rebar Locating) 
Line Tracer, Ground Penetrating Radar, Electromagnetics, Magnetics 

Full Day .......................................................................................................................................................... $1,950 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $250 applies to projects billed on hourly rates) ....................................... 215 
Letter Report ........................................................................................................................................................ 300 
Map (per day of field work) .................................................................................................................................. 350 

Field Services (Geophysical Data Acquisition) 
UST, Landfill, Oil Well, Void, Pile Integrity Testing 

Full Day  ......................................................................................................................................................... $2,400 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $335 applies to projects billed on hourly rates) ....................................... 270 

Field Services (Advanced Geophysical Studies)  
Seismic, Sting ERT, Resistivity, Groundwater, UXO/MEC 

Full Day  ......................................................................................................................................................... $3,000 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $550 applies to projects billed on hourly rates) ....................................... 325 

Field Services (Seismic ReMi) 
One Line ......................................................................................................................................................... $1,500 
Each Additional Line ............................................................................................................................................ 300 
For Pavement/Requires Drilling ........................................................................................................................... 300 

Field Services (Vibration Monitoring) 
Mobilization  .................................................................................................................................................... $1,000 
Equipment (Daily)  ............................................................................................................................................... 200 
Daily Analysis & Reporting (Daily)  ........................................................................................................................ 75 
Final Report Preparation  .................................................................................................................................... 750 
Manned Vibration Monitoring ........................................................................................................................... Quote 

Field Services (Building Envelope) 
Field Tech Level II .................................................................................................................................................... $125 
Field Tech Level I ....................................................................................................................................................... 115 
Electronic Leak Detection (hourly, 4 hour minimum) .................................................................................................. 250 
Fenestration Testing (ASTM E1105/E783) – Hourly Rate (2 technicians) ................................................................. 400 
Fenestration Testing (AAMA 501.2) – Hourly Rate (2 technicians) ............................................................................ 225 
Drainage Efficiency of Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems (EIFS) Clad Wall Assemblies (ASTM E2273)  ....... 1,500 

Page 334

Item 29.



ATLAS SCHEDULE OF FEES Page 2 of 4 
Revised February 1, 2021 

Travel and Miscellaneous 
Pick Up  .............................................................................................................................................................. $55/hour 
Travel Time  ...................................  Hourly Rate (or $125/hour beyond 1 hour from San Diego for Geophysical Crews) 
Overtime and Saturday Rate  .................................................................................................. 1.5 x Regular Hourly Rate 
Sunday and Nationally Recognized Holiday Rate (including the day after Thanksgiving)  ......... 2 x Regular Hourly Rate 
Rush Surcharge  .......................................................................................................................... Normal Rate plus 50% 
Per Diem (variable, depending on location) ..........................................................................................................  Quote 
Prevailing Wage Hourly Surcharge for Technicians and Inspectors per California Labor Code §720, et. Seq  ....  Quote 
Specialty Equipment Surcharge  ...........................................................................................................................  Quote 

LABORATORY TESTS 

Soil and Aggregate 
California Bearing Ratio (ASTM D854)  ................................................................................................................... $418 
California Impact (Cal 216) ........................................................................................................................................ 206 
Clay Lumps in Aggregate (ASTM C142) .................................................................................................................... 150 
Cleanness Value (Cal 227) ........................................................................................................................................ 200 
Consolidation (ASTM D2435) .................................................................................................................................... 200 
Corrosivity Testing (Soluble Chlorides and Sulfates, pH and Resistivity) ................................................................... 187 
Crushed Particles (Cal 205, ASTM D693) .................................................................................................................. 150 
Direct Shear (ASTM D3080) ...................................................................................................................................... 260 
Durability Factor (Cal 229, ASTM D3744) .................................................................................................................... 97 
Durability Index (Cal 229, ASTM D3744) ................................................................................................................... 224 
Expansion Index (ASTM D4289) ................................................................................................................................ 177 
Fine Aggregate Angularity (AASHTO T304) .............................................................................................................. 200 
Fineness Modulus (ASTM C136) ................................................................................................................................. 24 
Flat & Elongated Pieces (ASTM D4791) .................................................................................................................... 175 
Light Weight Pieces (ASTM C123) ............................................................................................................................. 175 
Liquid Limit (Cal 204, ASTM D4318) ............................................................................................................................ 75 
Los Angeles Abrasion - 1 ½ inch and smaller (Cal 211, ASTM C131) ....................................................................... 224 
Maximum Density Check Point (ASTM D698/D1557) .................................................................................................. 88 
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture – 4 inch (ASTM D698, D1557) ........................................................................ 200 
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture – 6 inch (ASTM D698, D1557) ........................................................................ 220 
Minimum Density (ASTM D1556) ................................................................................................................................. 74 
Moisture Content (Cal 226, ASTM C566, ASTM D2216) ............................................................................................. 35 
Natural Density Chunk Sample (ASTM D2937) ........................................................................................................... 45 
Natural Moisture/Density Ring or Core Sample (ASTM D2937) ................................................................................... 40 
Organic Impurities (Cal 213, ASTM C40) ..................................................................................................................... 90 
Organic Matter (ASTM D2974)..................................................................................................................................... 75 
Percent Finer than #200 (ASTM C117, ASTM D1140) ................................................................................................ 70 
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D2434) ............................................................................................................ 200 
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D5084) ........................................................................................................ Quote 
Permeability Undisturbed Sample (ASTM D5084) ................................................................................................. Quote 
Petrographic Analysis (Cal 215, ASTM C295) ....................................................................................................... Quote 
pH & Resistivity (Cal 643, ASTM G51) ....................................................................................................................... 126 
Plasticity Index (Cal 204, ASTM 4318) ....................................................................................................................... 127 
Potential Reactivity (ASTM C289) .............................................................................................................................. 220 
Residual Shear (ASTM D6467) .................................................................................................................................. 442 
Rock Correction (ASTM D4718) ................................................................................................................................... 26 
R-Value (Cal 301, ASTM D2844) ............................................................................................................................... 276 
Sandcastle Test (USACE) .......................................................................................................................................... 195 
Sand Equivalent (Cal 217, ASTM D2419) .................................................................................................................... 88 
Sieve Analysis (ASTM C136, ASTM D6913, Cal 202) ............................................................................................... 110 
Sieve Analysis with Hydrometer (Cal 203, ASTM D422) ............................................................................................ 200 
Soil Cement Compression Strength (Cal 312, ASTM D1633) ...................................................................................... 50 
Soil Cement Cylinder Fabrication (Cal 312, ASTM D1632) ........................................................................................ 100 
Soluble Chlorides (Cal 422) ......................................................................................................................................... 62 
Soluble Sulfate (Cal 417) ............................................................................................................................................. 62 
Soundness 5 Cycles (Cal 214, ASTM C88) ............................................................................................................... 375 
Specific Gravity Coarse Aggregate (Cal 206, ASTM C127) ....................................................................................... 115 
Specific Gravity Fine Aggregate (Cal 207, ASTM C128) ............................................................................................ 115 
Triaxial Shear Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM D4767) ....................................................................................... Quote 
Triaxial Shear Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) ................................................................................... Quote 
Triaxial Staged Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM D4767) ..................................................................................... Quote 
Triaxial Staged Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) ................................................................................. Quote 
Unconfined Compression (ASTM D2166) .................................................................................................................. 162 
Unit Weight Aggregate (Cal 212, ASTM C29) .............................................................................................................. 80 

Page 335

Item 29.



ATLAS SCHEDULE OF FEES Page 3 of 4 
Revised February 1, 2021 

Asphalt Concrete 
Asphalt Core Specific Gravity (Cal 308, ASTM D2726) ............................................................................................. $68 
Asphalt Core Specific Gravity Waxed (Cal 308, ASTM D1188) ................................................................................... 84 
Emulsion Content (CTM 382) ..................................................................................................................................... 178 
Film Stripping (Cal 302) ......................................................................................................................................... Quote 
Gyratory Compacted Maximum Specific Gravity (AASHTO T312)............................................................................. 350 
Hamburg Wheel Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T324/Caltrans Section 39) ........................................................... 900 
Hveem Maximum Bulk Specific Gravity (Cal 308) ...................................................................................................... 300 
Hveem & Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) ................................................................................................................... $400 
Ignition Oven Correction Factor (AASHTO T308) ...................................................................................................... 250 
Ignition Oven Degradation Factor (AASHTO T308) ................................................................................................... 250 
Marshall Density Stability & Flow (ASTM D6927) ...................................................................................................... 400 
Marshall Density (ASTM D6926) ................................................................................................................................ 300 
Moisture Content of Asphalt Mixtures Using Microwave (Cal 370) ............................................................................... 50 
Moisture Vapor Susceptibility (Cal 307) ................................................................................................................. Quote 
Optimum Bitumen Content (AASHTO R35/Cal 367)  .............................................................................................. 3,100 
Percent Bitumen Asphaltic Concrete (Cal 382, ASTM D6307) .................................................................................. 180 
Residue by Evaporation (Cal 331) ............................................................................................................................. 178 
Rice Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity AC (Cal 309, ASTM D2041) .................................................................. 133 
Sieve Analysis Extracted Aggregate (Cal 382, ASTM D5444) ..................................................................................... 90 
Stability and Flow (ASTM D1559) .............................................................................................................................. 350 
Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) ..................................................................................................................................... 350 
RAP Testing Fractionated (ASTM D2172, AASHTO T308, Caltrans Section 39) .................................................. Quote 
RAP Testing Not Fractionated (ASTM D2172, AASHTO T308, Caltrans Section 39)  ..........................................  Quote 
Tensile Strength Ratio Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T283) .................................................................................. 900 
Wet Track Abrasion (ASTM D3910) ........................................................................................................................... 185 

Concrete 
2X2 Cube Compression  ............................................................................................................................................ $27 
Chloride Ion Testing (ASTM C1218) .......................................................................................................................... 220 
Concrete Core Compression (ASTM C42) ................................................................................................................... 59 
Concrete Cylinder Compression (Cal 521, ASTM C39) ............................................................................................... 27 
Flex Beam Modulus of Rupture (Cal 523, ASTM C78) ................................................................................................. 74 
Modulus of Elasticity (Cal 522, ASTM C469) ............................................................................................................. 261 
Shotcrete Mockup Panel (ASTM C1140)  ............................................................................................................... 1,040 
Shotcrete Panel, 3 Cores Compression (CBC) .......................................................................................................... 290 
Shrinkage Hardened Concrete (ASTM C157 Modified) ............................................................................................. 371 
Split Tensile Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C496) ............................................................................................................. 74 
Time of Set (ASTM C403) .......................................................................................................................................... 200 
Trial Batch Fabrication (ASTM C192) ........................................................................................................................ 298 
Unit Weight Hardened Concrete (ASTM C642)............................................................................................................ 55 
Unit Weight Lightweight Concrete (ASTM C567) ......................................................................................................... 69 

Masonry 
Absorption Block (ASTM C140)  .............................................................................................................................. $115 
Compression Adobe ................................................................................................................................................... 155 
Compression Block Standard (ASTM C140) .............................................................................................................. 150 
Compression Brick (ASTM C67) ................................................................................................................................ 115 
Efflorescence Block .................................................................................................................................................... 175 
Efflorescence Brick (ASTM C67) ................................................................................................................................ 175 
Grout Prism Compression (ASTM C1019) ................................................................................................................... 27 
Masonry Core Compression (ASTM C42) .................................................................................................................... 51 
Masonry Core Shear (CBC 2105A.4) ........................................................................................................................... 95 
Masonry Prism Compression (ASTM E447) .............................................................................................................. 150 
Mortar Bond Strength Pull Test (ASTM C482) ............................................................................................................. 62 
Mortar Cylinder Compression....................................................................................................................................... 27 
Mortar Shear Strength (ANSI 118) ............................................................................................................................. 100 
Relative Mortar Strength (Cal 515)  ............................................................................................................................ 850 
Shrinkage Masonry Block (ASTM C426) .................................................................................................................... 250 
Trial Grout Prisms (ASTM C942) ................................................................................................................................. 38 
Water Retention and Air Content (ASTM C270)......................................................................................................... 550 

Page 336

Item 29.



ATLAS SCHEDULE OF FEES Page 4 of 4 
Revised February 1, 2021 

Metal 
Bolt Assembly Hardness Test  ................................................................................................................................... $74 
Bolt Assembly Tensile & Proof Load Test .................................................................................................................. 125 
Modulus of Elasticity (Steel) ....................................................................................................................................... 146 
Post-Tension Tendon Tensile Testing ........................................................................................................................ 185 
Tensile Strength & Bend Test Structural Steel (ASTM A370) .................................................................................... 180 
Tensile Strength & Bend Test Reinforcing Steel (ASTM A615/A706) ........................................................................ 125 
Tensile Strength #14 - #18 Bar (ASTM A615) ........................................................................................................ Quote 
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #9 and Smaller (Cal 670) ............................................................................. Quote 
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #10 to #14 (Cal 670) .................................................................................... Quote 
Tensile Strength Mechanical Splices #18 (Cal 670)  .............................................................................................  Quote 

Miscellaneous 
Fire Proofing Density Test (ASTM E605)  .................................................................................................................. $69 
Fiber Reinforced Polymer Tensile (ASTM D3039) ..................................................................................................... 520 
Material Preparation  .................................................................................................................................................... 70 
Relative Humidity Test (ASTM F2170)  ..................................................................................................................  80/kit 
Concrete Vapor Emission Kits (ASTM F1869)  ......................................................................................................  72/kit 
Miscellaneous Charges  ....................................................................................................................................... Various 
Default Expense  .................................................................................................................................................. Various 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Prevailing wage rates will increase consistent with general prevailing wage determinations made by the California 
Department of Industrial Relations. 

All field services will be charged portal to portal with the following minimum charges: 

1. The client will be invoiced only for the hours actually worked in 4- and 8-hour increments.
2. A 2-hour show-up charge will be applied to any service canceled the same day of service.
3. Work in excess of 8 hours up to 12 hours in a single day will be charged in 1-hour increments at 1.5 times the

standard rate.
4. Work in excess of 12 hours in a single day will be charged in 1-hour increments at 2 times the standard rate.

Work performed by field or laboratory personnel outside of normal business hours (6:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) will be 
charged a premium on a case-by-case basis. Work performed for Geophysical Studies outside of a standard work week 
will be charged an additional 30%. 

Fees for specialty geophysical services such as seismic reflection, crosshole, gravity, pile integrity testing, vibration 
monitoring, magnetotellurics, UXO, MEC, etc. will based on a per project basis. Utility focused projects requiring 
specialized training such as MSHA (mines) or RSO (refineries) will be billed at a General Geophysical rate. 

Other Direct Charges: Our company reserves the right to charge for services outside of the contract in the form of 
reimbursables, including but not limited to, the following: diamond coring bits, fuel, patching materials, mileage, travel 
time, equipment rental and administrative time. 

Mileage will be charged at the standard federal rate per mile for distances over 50 miles from the location of dispatch. 
Per Diem charges will be applied to projects outside a 50-mile radius of our office.  

Subcontracted services will be charged at cost plus 20 percent. 

Invoices will be submitted monthly. These invoices are due in full upon presentation to the client. Invoices outstanding 
over 30 days will be considered past due. A finance charge computed at the rate of 1.5 percent per month, which is an 
annual rate of 18 percent, will be charged on all past due accounts. If legal action is brought on delinquent accounts, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs of collection. 

Our services are performed in accordance with the current standards of practice in the industry. No other warranty or 
representation, express or implied, is made or intended. 

Page 337

Item 29.



(rev_6/1/20) 

Schedule B 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
California Prevailing Wage 

Effective July 1, 2019 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Professional (Engineering, Geology, Environmental) 
Principal Professional .......................................................................................................................................................................... $180 
Senior Professional ............................................................................................................................................................................... 160 
Project Professional ............................................................................................................................................................................... 140 
Staff Professional .................................................................................................................................................................................. 115 
Drafter ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... 87 

Field Services (Geotechnical, Inspection) 
Field Supervisor................................................................................................................................................................................... $115 
LA Certified Grading Inspector .............................................................................................................................................................. 120 
Off Site Inspector ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 65 
Laboratory Technician ............................................................................................................................................................................. 72 
Group 1 (Geotechnical, Concrete Sampling) ......................................................................................................................................... 106 
Group 2 (Special Inspection) ................................................................................................................................................................. 110 
Group 3 (NDT Testing) .......................................................................................................................................................................... 114 
Coring .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 162 

Field Services (Utility/Rebar Locating) 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $300 applies to projects billed on hourly rates) ....................................................................... $215 
Full Day .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 1,950 
Letter Report ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 300 
Map (per day of field work) .................................................................................................................................................................... 350 

Field Services (Geophysical Studies: UST, Landfill, Well, Void, UXO, Groundwater) 
Ground Penetrating Radar, Electromagnetics, Magnetics 
Full Day ............................................................................................................................................................................................ $2,350 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $325 applies to projects billed on hourly rates.) ........................................................................ 265 

Seismic (Refraction, MASW, Downhole/Crosshole), Resistivity (Sting, Standard, Wenner 4-Pin) 
Full Day ............................................................................................................................................................................................ $3,000 
Hourly Rate (A Mob/Demob charge of $550 applies to projects billed on hourly rates.) ........................................................................ 325 

Seismic ReMi 
One Line ........................................................................................................................................................................................... $1,500 
Each Additional Line .............................................................................................................................................................................. 300 
For Pavement/Requires Drilling ............................................................................................................................................................. 300 

Project Management 
Senior Project Manager ....................................................................................................................................................................... $158 
Project Manager .................................................................................................................................................................................... 130 
Administrative Assistant .......................................................................................................................................................................... 67 

Travel and Miscellaneous 
Pick Up .............................................................................................................................................................................................. $55/hr 
Travel Time .................................................................. Hourly Rate (or $125/hr beyond 2 hours from San Diego for Geophysical Crews) 
Per Diem (variable, depending on location) ....................................................................................................................................... Quote 
Prevailing Wage Hourly Surcharge for Technicians and Inspectors per California Labor Code §720, et. Seq................................... Quote 
Overtime and Saturday Rate .............................................................................................................................. 1.5 x Regular Hourly Rate 
Sunday and Nationally Recognized Holiday Rate (including the day after Thanksgiving)...................................... 2 x Regular Hourly Rate 
Rush Surcharge ....................................................................................................................................................... Normal Rate plus 50% 
Specialty Equipment Surcharge ........................................................................................................................................................ Quote 

Page 338

Item 29.



(rev_6/1/20) 

SCHEDULE OF FEES CONTINUED 

LABORATORY TESTS 

Soil and Aggregate 

California Bearing Ratio (ASTM D854) ................................................................................................................................................ $418 
California Impact (Cal 216) .................................................................................................................................................................... 206 
Chloride Ion Testing (Cal 422) ............................................................................................................................................................... 150 
Clay Lumps in Aggregate (ASTM C142) ............................................................................................................................................... 150 
Cleanness Value (Cal 227) .................................................................................................................................................................... 200 
Consolidation (ASTM D2435) ................................................................................................................................................................ 200 
Corrosivity Testing (Soluble Chlorides and Sulfates, pH and Resistivity) .............................................................................................. 187 
Crushed Particles (Cal 205, ASTM D693) ............................................................................................................................................. 150 
Direct Shear (ASTM D3080) .................................................................................................................................................................. 260 
Durability Factor (Cal 229, ASTM D3744) ............................................................................................................................................... 97 
Durability Index (Cal 229, ASTM D3744) ............................................................................................................................................... 224 
Expansion Index (ASTM D4289) ........................................................................................................................................................... 177 
Fine Aggregate Angularity (AASHTO T304) .......................................................................................................................................... 200 
Fineness Modulus (ASTM C136) ............................................................................................................................................................. 24 
Flat & Elongated Pieces (ASTM D4791) ................................................................................................................................................ 175 
Light Weight Pieces (ASTM C123) ........................................................................................................................................................ 175 
Liquid Limit (Cal 204, ASTM D4318) ....................................................................................................................................................... 75 
Los Angeles Abrasion - 1 1/2” and smaller (Cal 211, ASTM C131) ....................................................................................................... 224 
Maximum Density Check Point (ASTM D698/D1557) ............................................................................................................................. 88 
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture – 4” (ASTM D698, D1557) ......................................................................................................... 200 
Maximum Density/Optimum Moisture – 6” (ASTM D698, D1557) ......................................................................................................... 220 
Minimum Density (ASTM D1556) ............................................................................................................................................................ 74 
Moisture Content (Cal 226, ASTM C566, ASTM D2216) ......................................................................................................................... 35 
Natural Density - Chunk Sample (ASTM D2937) ..................................................................................................................................... 41 
Natural Moisture/Density Ring or Core Sample (ASTM D2937) .............................................................................................................. 35 
Organic Impurities (Cal 213, ASTM C40) ................................................................................................................................................ 90 
Organic Matter (ASTM D2974) ................................................................................................................................................................ 75 
Percent Finer than #200 (ASTM C117, ASTM D1140) ............................................................................................................................ 70 
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D2434) ....................................................................................................................................... 200 
Permeability Remold Sample (ASTM D5084) ....................................................................................................................................Quote 
Permeability Undisturbed Sample (ASTM D5084) ..............................................................................................................................Quote 
Petrographic Analysis (Cal 215, ASTM C295) ................................................................................................................................... Quote 
pH & Resistivity (Cal 643, ASTM G51) .................................................................................................................................................. 126 
Plasticity Index (Cal 204, ASTM 4318) .................................................................................................................................................. 127 
Potential Reactivity (ASTM C289) ......................................................................................................................................................... 220 
Residual Shear (ASTM D6467) ............................................................................................................................................................. 442 
Rock Correction (ASTM D4718) .............................................................................................................................................................. 26 
R-Value (Cal 301, ASTM D2844) .......................................................................................................................................................... 276 
Sand Castle Test (USACE) ................................................................................................................................................................... 195 
Sand Equivalent (Cal 217, ASTM D2419) ............................................................................................................................................... 88 
Sieve Analysis (ASTM C136, ASTM D6913, Cal 202) ........................................................................................................................... 110 
Sieve Analysis with Hydrometer (Cal 203, ASTM D422) ....................................................................................................................... 200 
Soil Cement Compression Strength (Cal 312, ASTM D1633) ................................................................................................................. 50 
Soil Cement Cylinder Fabrication (Cal 312, ASTM D1632) ................................................................................................................... 100 
Soluble Chlorides (Cal 422) ..................................................................................................................................................................... 62 
Soluble Sulfate (Cal 417) ......................................................................................................................................................................... 62 
Soundness 5 Cycles (Cal 214, ASTM C88) ........................................................................................................................................... 375 
Specific Gravity Coarse Aggregate (Cal 206, ASTM C127) ................................................................................................................... 115 
Specific Gravity Fine Aggregate (Cal 207, ASTM C128) ....................................................................................................................... 115 
Triaxial Shear Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM D4767) .................................................................................................................. Quote 
Triaxial Shear Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) .............................................................................................................. Quote 
Triaxial Staged Consolidated - Undrained (ASTM D4767) ................................................................................................................ Quote 
Triaxial Staged Unconsolidated - Undrained (ASTM D2850) ............................................................................................................. Quote 
Unconfined Compression (ASTM D2166) ............................................................................................................................................. 162 
Unit Weight Aggregate (Cal 212, ASTM C29) ......................................................................................................................................... 80 

Page 339

Item 29.



(rev_6/1/20) 

SCHEDULE OF FEES CONTINUED 

Asphalt Concrete 

Asphalt Core Specific Gravity (Cal 308, ASTM D2726 .......................................................................................................................... $58 
Asphalt Core Specific Gravity Waxed (Cal 308, ASTM D1188) ............................................................................................................... 74 
Emulsion Content (CTM 382) ................................................................................................................................................................ 178 
Film Stripping (Cal 302) ..................................................................................................................................................................... Quote 
Gyratory Compacted Maximum Specific Gravity (AASHTO T312) ........................................................................................................ 350 
Hamburg Wheel - Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T324/Cal-Trans Section 39) .................................................................................. 900 
Hveem - Maximum Bulk Specific Gravity (Cal 308) ............................................................................................................................... 300 
Hveem & Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) ................................................................................................................................................. 400 
Ignition Oven Correction Factor (AASHTO T308) ................................................................................................................................. 250 
Ignition Oven Degradation Factor (AASHTO T308) .............................................................................................................................. 250 
Marshall Density, Stability & Flow (ASTM D6927) ................................................................................................................................. 400 
Marshall Density (ASTM D6926) ........................................................................................................................................................... 300 
Moisture Content of Asphalt Mixtures Using Microwave (Cal 370) .......................................................................................................... 50 
Moisture Vapor Susceptibility (Cal 307) ............................................................................................................................................. Quote 
Optimum Bitumen Content (AASHTO R35/Cal 367) .......................................................................................................................... 3,100 
Percent Bitumen Asphaltic Concrete (Cal 382, ASTM D6307) .............................................................................................................. 180 
Residue by Evaporation (Cal 331) ......................................................................................................................................................... 178 
Rice - Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity AC (Cal 309, ASTM D2041) ........................................................................................... 133 
Sieve Analysis - Extracted Aggregate (Cal 382, ASTM D5444) .............................................................................................................. 90 
Stability and Flow (ASTM D1559) ......................................................................................................................................................... 350 
Stabilometer Value (Cal 366) ................................................................................................................................................................ 350 
RAP Testing - Fractionated (ASTM D2172/AASHTO T308/Cal-Trans Section 39 ............................................................................. Quote 
RAP Testing - Not Fractionated (ASTM D2172/AASHTO T308/Cal-Trans Section 39) ..................................................................... Quote 
Tensile Strength Ratio - Plant Produced HMA (AASHTO T283) ........................................................................................................... 900 
Wet Track Abrasion (ASTM D3910) ...................................................................................................................................................... 185 

Concrete 

2X2 Cube Compression ........................................................................................................................................................................ $27 
Concrete Core Compression (ASTM C42) .............................................................................................................................................. 59 
Concrete Cylinder Compression (Cal 521, ASTM C39) .......................................................................................................................... 27 
Flex Beam Modulus of Rupture (Cal 523, ASTM C78) ............................................................................................................................ 74 
Modulus of Elasticity (Cal 522, ASTM C469) ......................................................................................................................................... 261 
Shotcrete Mockup Panel (ASTM C1140) ............................................................................................................................................ 1,040 
Shotcrete Panel, 3 Cores - Compression (CBC) ................................................................................................................................... 290 
Shrinkage - Hardened Concrete (ASTM C157 - Modified) .................................................................................................................... 371 
Split Tensile, Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C496) ....................................................................................................................................... 74 
Time of Set (ASTM C403) ..................................................................................................................................................................... 200 
Trial Batch Fabrication (ASTM C192) .................................................................................................................................................... 298 
Unit Weight, Hardened Concrete (ASTM C642) ...................................................................................................................................... 45 
Unit Weight, Lightweight Concrete (ASTM C567) ................................................................................................................................... 59 

Masonry 

Absorption Block (ASTM C140) ........................................................................................................................................................... $115 
Compression Adobe .............................................................................................................................................................................. 155 
Compression Block, Standard (ASTM C140) ........................................................................................................................................ 150 
Compression, Brick (ASTM C67) .......................................................................................................................................................... 115 
Efflorescence Block ............................................................................................................................................................................... 175 
Efflorescence, Brick (ASTM C67) .......................................................................................................................................................... 175 
Grout Prism Compression (ASTM C1019) .............................................................................................................................................. 27 
Masonry Core Compression (ASTM C42) ............................................................................................................................................... 51 
Masonry Core Shear (CBC 2105A.4) ...................................................................................................................................................... 95 
Masonry Prism Compression (ASTM E447) .......................................................................................................................................... 150 
Mortar Bond Strength - Pull Test (ASTM C482) ...................................................................................................................................... 62 
Mortar Cylinder Compression .................................................................................................................................................................. 27 
Mortar Shear Strength (ANSI 118) .......................................................................................................................................................... 53 

Page 340

Item 29.



(rev_6/1/20) 

SCHEDULE OF FEES CONTINUED 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Masonry - Continued 

Relative Mortar Strength (Cal 515) ...................................................................................................................................................... $850 
Shrinkage - Masonry Block (ASTM C426) ............................................................................................................................................. 250 
Trial Grout Prisms (ASTM C942) ............................................................................................................................................................. 38 
Water Retention and Air Content (ASTM C270) .................................................................................................................................... 470 

Metal 

Bolt Assembly - Hardness Test ............................................................................................................................................................. $74 
Bolt Assembly - Tensile & Proof Load Test ........................................................................................................................................... 125 
Modulus of Elasticity (Steel) .................................................................................................................................................................. 146 
Post-Tension Tendon Tensile Testing ................................................................................................................................................... 185 
Tensile Strength & Bend Test, Reinforcing Steel (ASTM A615/A706) ................................................................................................... 125 
Tensile Strength #14 - #18 Bar (ASTM A615) ................................................................................................................................... Quote 
Tensile Strength - Mechanical Splices #9 and Smaller (Cal 670) ...................................................................................................... Quote 
Tensile Strength - Mechanical Splices #10 to #14 (Cal 670) ............................................................................................................. Quote 
Tensile Strength - Mechanical Splices #18 (Cal 670) ........................................................................................................................ Quote 
Tensile Strength and Bend Test, Structural Steel (ASTM A370) ........................................................................................................... 180 

Miscellaneous 

Fire Proofing Density Test (ASTM E605) .............................................................................................................................................. $69 
Fiber Reinforced Polymer, Tensile (ASTM D3039) ............................................................................................................................... 520 
Material Preparation ............................................................................................................................................................................ 70/hr 
Relative Humidity Test (ASTM F2170) ................................................................................................................................................ 80/kit 
Concrete Vapor Emission Kits (ASTM F1869) ..................................................................................................................................... 72/kit 
Test Chamber and Water Spray Rack (ASTM E1105) .................................................................................................................. 275/hour 
Miscellaneous Charges ................................................................................................................................................................... Various 
Default Expense .............................................................................................................................................................................. Various 

All field services will be charged portal to portal with the following minimum charges: 
• A two-hour show-up charge will be applied to any service canceled the same day of service.
• The client will be invoiced only for the hours actually worked in 4 and 8 hour increments.
• Work in excess of eight hours up to twelve hours in a single day, will be charged in one-hour increments at 1.5 times the standard rate.
• Work in excess of twelve hours in a day will be charged in one-hour increments at 2.0 times the standard rate.

Work performed by field or laboratory personnel outside of normal business hours (6:30 AM – 5:00 PM) will be charged a premium on a case-by-case 
basis. 

Reimbursables: Our company reserves the right to charge for services outside of the contract in the form of reimbursables. These items include, but are 
not limited to, the following consumables: diamond coring bits, fuel, patching materials, mileage, travel time, equipment rental and administrative time. 

Subcontracted services that are included on the Fee Schedule will be charged at those rates. Subcontracted services not included in our Fee Schedule 
will be charged at cost plus 20 percent. Per Diem charges will be applied to projects outside a 50-mile radius of our office. Mileage will be charged at the 
rate of 54.4 cents per mile for distances over 50 miles from the location of dispatch. 

Invoices for all services completed or in progress will be submitted monthly. These invoices are due in full upon presentation to the client. Invoices 
outstanding over 30 days will be considered past due. A finance charge will be computed at the rate of 1.5 percent per month, which is an annual rate of 
18 percent and charged on all past due accounts. If legal action is brought on delinquent accounts, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs of collection. 

Our professional engineering, geology, and inspection services are performed in accordance with the current standards of practice in the industry. No 
other warranty or representation, express or implied, is made or intended. 

Prevailing wage rates will increase consistent with general prevailing wage determinations made by the California Department of Industrial Relations.

Page 341

Item 29.



B-1
80237.00000\19870870.1

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

October 12, 2022 through October 12, 2023. 

Page 342

Item 29.



C-1
80237.00000\19870870.1

EXHIBIT “C” 

COMPENSATION 

Not to Exceed $25,000.00. 

Page 343

Item 29.



  

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella Art Mural at 

Acrisure Arena in the Amount of $10,000 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council considers approving and awarding a grant to Flat Black 
Art Supply in the amount of $10,000 from the City of Coachella’s Art in Public Places Program 
to install a mural at Acrisure Arena as part of the Nine Desert Cities wall art initiative that will be 
displayed on the Iceplex for each city.  The City of Coachella Cultural and Arts Commission 
reviewed and approved this item for Council’s final approval at its meeting held on September 27, 
2022. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
On January 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public 
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction, 

remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places 

ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of 

Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment 

and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality 

works of public art. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The submitted proposal is a painted mural project as part of the #TheDesertNine art initiative at 

Acrisure Arena where all nine desert cities will each have a mural representing their city.  The 

mural size will be 10-foot wide by 20-foot in height. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 344

Item 30.



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wall Display Area at Acrisure Arena 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Mural Rendering 

 

Artist: Frank Lemus 

Page 345

Item 30.



Funding Request: $10,000 

 

Sponsorship (paid to Flat Black Art Supply) includes: 

 Curation and creation of all artwork 

 Installation and insurance requirements (provided by Flat Black Art Supply) 

 Artist recognition plaques and large format signage highlighting the collection and each 

desert city produced by Acrisure Arena 

 1,000 oversized postcards representing each mural produced by Acrisure Arena 

 Invitations for up to 10 guests to attend #TheDesertNine Reveal party (produced by 

Acrisure Arena) 

 Acrisure Arena Website highlight, minimum one post and story via social channels 

@AcrisureArena, and feature in Arena e-newsletter 

 Inclusion in Arena opening PR campaign, distributed nationally.  

 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Not Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella Mural at Acrisure 

Arena in the Amount of $10,000 

2. Not Approve 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the City Council approves the staff recommendation, the funds in the amount of $10,000 will 

be withdrawn from the Special Revenue Funds (130) – Development Impact Fees for Public Art 

for Fiscal Year 2022-23. 

 

Page 346

Item 30.



#TheDesertNine 
Proposal

Page 347

Item 30.



#TheDesertNine

In partnership with nine desert cities, and local mural curator, Flat Black Art 
Supply, create nine murals in the Arena Iceplex by local artists that celebrate 
Coachella Valley.  Showcased along the massive Iceplex walls, each mural 
will be 10’w x 20’h.  

Premium 
Level: Iceplex

Page 348

Item 30.



3

#TheDesertNine

Bold colors, iconic settings and whimsical interpretations of desert landscapes will serve as the perfect 
Instagrammable background highlighting the unique qualities of each city.  Both City and artist social handles 
will be featured, and each mural will feature a connective graphic thread.

Page 349

Item 30.



4

#TheDesertNine

Nearly 1M guests take part

#TheDesertNine

With over 200k guests* frequenting the Iceplex annually, the murals* can be seen from multiple levels, and will take visitors 
and locals on a visual journey across our Valley.

Acrisure Arena will provide the overarching theme for the murals which will celebrate unity and diversity of our remarkable 
landscape and culture.  Cities will collaborate with Flat Black Art Supply and Acrisure Arena to select artists for the project 
and Acrisure Arena will approve final artwork. 

The murals will be featured at the Arena for a minimum of three years.
Page 350

Item 30.



City Sponsorship: $10,000

Sponsorship (paid to Flat Black Art Supply) includes:
• Curation and creation of all artwork
• Installation and insurance requirements (provided by Flat Black Art Supply)
• Artist recognition plaques and large format signage highlighting the collection and each desert city produced by Acrisure Arena
• 1,000 oversized postcards representing each mural produced by Acrisure Arena
• Invitations for up to 10 guests to attend #TheDesertNine Reveal party (produced by Acrisure Arena)
• Acrisure Arena Website highlight, minimum one post and story via social channels @AcrisureArena, and feature in Arena enewsletter
• Inclusion in Arena opening PR campaign, distributed nationally. 

5
Page 351

Item 30.



August 15 - 26
• Artists selected and approved by each city, with support from Flat Black Art 

Supply and Acrisure Arena

August 29 – September 16
• Conceptual mural designs submitted to Flat Black Art Supply.  

September 19 – October 1
• Flat Black Art Supply submits mural concepts to each City and Acrisure Arena 

for review/approval.

6

October 3 – October 17
• Mural concepts approved

November 1 – 30
• Mural painting

December 1 – 9
• Plaque/signage installation, touch-ups

January 4
• Opening Celebration and Mural Unveiling 

Timeline

Page 352

Item 30.



  

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella 75th 

Anniversary Mural by Michelle Guerrero in the Amount of $16,000 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council consider approving and awarding a grant to Michelle 
Guerrero in the amount of $16,000 from the City of Coachella’s Art in Public Places Program to 
install a mural on the Anaya’s Towing building on the corner of Fifth Street and Grapefruit 
Boulevard.  The Cultural and Arts Commission reviewed and approved this item for Council’s 
final approval at its meeting held on September 27, 2022. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
On January 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public 
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction, 

remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places 

ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of 

Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment 

and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality 

works of public art. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The submitted proposal is a painted mural project approximately 40 feet in length celebrating the 

City of Coachella’s 75th anniversary featuring MrBBaby’s (Michelle Guerrero) signature character 

“Chucho”, who is a colorful furry piñata. The brief history of the piñata is that they originated in 

China when paper figures were filled with seeds and broken as a way to bring good luck for the 

coming harvest season.  In Mexico, the Aztecs honored the birthday of the solar god 

Huitzilopochtli in mid-December by decorating a pot with feathers to represent the god. In the 

ritual, the pot was broken and the fruits of the season and other edibles were shared. Life was 

meant to grow out of destruction—this message has been a driving force behind MrBBaby’s work 

and has defined Chucho, who is a symbol of hope, resilience and mental health awareness as 

Chucho is always looking at the brighter side of things, especially the negative ones.  

 

 

Page 353

Item 31.



 

Budget 

 

Installation Costs – Labor   $9,000 

Installation Costs – Equipment Rental $1,500 

Other Costs – Materials   $3,000 

Insurance     $200 

Miscellaneous Costs    $2,300 

 

TOTAL $16,000 

 

 

About the Artist 

 

Michelle Guerrero (also known as, “MrBBaby” for Michelle Ruby Brown Baby) was born and 

raised in San Diego, California. She uses elements of her heritage as an inspiration for her striking 

and lively art work. MrBbaby is heavily influenced by her community, as well as her Puerto 

Rican/Mexican heritage. By combining vibrant colors with traditional imagery, Michelle is able 

to uplift her audiences and intrigue her viewers. The artist aims to bring happiness and joy to her 

collectors and community, while also having stronger messages intertwined, all of which are open 

to the viewer's interpretation.  Michelle holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Fine Arts from the 

Academy of Art University – San Francisco, CA.  Her art murals have been commissioned by 

the following acclaimed companies: 

 

 Coachella Music and Arts Festival 

 Dodger Stadium 

 Sony Electronics 

 Cheetos 

 The Getty 

 El Pollo Loco  

 City of Chula Vista 

 San Diego Jewish Center 

 Los Angeles Art District 

 Random House (book illustration for “Crux” by Jean Guerrero) 

 Women on Walls (Puebla, Mexico) 

 Pandora Jewelry 

 Converse Shoes 

 UPS and Kids of Immigrants 

 Displayed Work at Galleries: Chicano Park, Chimmaya Gallery, Just Another Gallery  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 354

Item 31.



Proposed Mural Design Rendition 

 

75th Anniversary Mural 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Artist: Michelle Ruby Guerrero 

 

 

 

 

Page 355

Item 31.



ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Not Approve An Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella 75th Anniversary 

Mural by Michelle Guerrero in the Amount of $16,000 

2. Provide Alternative Direction 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the City Council approves the staff recommendation, the $16,000 will be withdrawn from the 

Special Revenue Funds (130) – Development Impact Fees for Public Art for Fiscal Year 2022-

23. 

 

Page 356

Item 31.



  

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella 75th 

Anniversary Mural on the U.S. Postal Service Building by Michelle Guerrero in 

the Amount of $15,000 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Cultural and Arts Commission consider approving and awarding a grant 
to Michelle Guerrero in the amount of $15,000 from the City of Coachella’s Art in Public Places 
Program to install a mural on the U.S. Postal Service building on the corner of Sixth Street and 
Orchard Street. The Cultural and Arts Commission reviewed and approved this item for Council’s 
final approval at its meeting held on September 27, 2022. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
On January 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public 
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction, 

remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places 

ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of 

Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment 

and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality 

works of public art. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The submitted proposal is a painted mural project approximately 40 feet in length celebrating the 

City of Coachella’s 75th anniversary featuring MrBBaby’s (also known as, “MrBBaby” for 

Michelle Ruby Brown Baby) signature character “Chucho”, who is a colorful furry piñata. The 

brief history of the piñata is that they originated in China when paper figures were filled with seeds 

and broken as a way to bring good luck for the coming harvest season.  In Mexico, the Aztecs 

honored the birthday of the solar god Huitzilopochtli in mid-December by decorating a pot with 

feathers to represent the god. In the ritual, the pot was broken and the fruits of the season and other 

edibles were shared. Life was meant to grow out of destruction—this message has been a driving 

force behind MrBBaby’s work and has defined Chucho, who is a symbol of hope, resilience and 

mental health awareness as Chucho is always looking at the brighter side of things, especially the 

negative ones.  

Page 357

Item 32.



 

Budget 

 

Installation Costs – Labor   $9,000 

Installation Costs – Equipment Rental $500 

Other Costs – Materials   $3,000 

Miscellaneous Costs    $2,500 

 

TOTAL $15,000 

 

 

About the Artist 

 

Michelle Guerrero (also known as, “MrBBaby” for Michelle Ruby Brown Baby) was born and 

raised in San Diego, California. She uses elements of her heritage as an inspiration for her striking 

and lively art work. MrBbaby is heavily influenced by her community, as well as her Puerto 

Rican/Mexican heritage. By combining vibrant colors with traditional imagery, Michelle is able 

to uplift her audiences and intrigue her viewers. The artist aims to bring happiness and joy to her 

collectors and community, while also having stronger messages intertwined, all of which are open 

to the viewer's interpretation.  Michelle holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Fine Arts from the 

Academy of Art University – San Francisco, CA.  Her art murals have been commissioned by 

the following acclaimed companies: 

 

 Coachella Music and Arts Festival 

 Dodger Stadium 

 Sony Electronics 

 Cheetos 

 The Getty 

 El Pollo Loco  

 City of Chula Vista 

 San Diego Jewish Center 

 Los Angeles Art District 

 Random House (book illustration for “Crux” by Jean Guerrero) 

 Women on Walls (Puebla, Mexico) 

 Pandora Jewelry 

 Converse Shoes 

 UPS and Kids of Immigrants 

 Displayed Work at Galleries: Chicano Park, Chimmaya Gallery, Just Another Gallery  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 358

Item 32.



 

Proposed Mural Design Rendition 

 

75th Anniversary Mural at U.S. Postal Service Building 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Artist: Michelle Ruby Guerrero 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 359

Item 32.



ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Not Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella 75th Anniversary Mural 

on the U.S. Postal Service Building by Michelle Guerrero in the Amount of $15,000 

2. Provide Alternative Direction 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the City Council approves the staff recommendation, the $15,000 will be withdrawn from the 

Special Revenue Funds (130) – Development Impact Fees for Public Art for Fiscal Year 2022-

23. 

 

 

Page 360

Item 32.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager 

SUBJECT: Approve an Art in Public Places Program Proposal to Restore the Shady Lane 

Murals by Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $13,000 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the Cultural and Arts Commission recommendation 
awarding a sponsorship grant to Culturas Music and Arts in the amount of $13,000 from the City 
of Coachella’s Art in Public Places Program to restore the art mural walls along Shady Lane 
between Bagdad Street and Avenue 52.  This item was previously approved by the Cultural and 
Arts Commission at its meeting held on September 21, 2021 with the condition that Culturas 
Music and Arts brought back the rendering for the blank space available on the Shady Lane Mural 
wall.  Culturas Music and Arts brought back the rendering and the Cultural and Arts Commission 
recommended this item for Council’s final approval at its meeting held on September 27, 2022. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
On January 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public 
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction, 

remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places 

ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of 

Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment 

and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality 

works of public art. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The submitted proposal is to restore the existing art murals along Shady Lane between Bagdad 

Street and Avenue 52.  Last November marked the tenth anniversary of the installation of the 

murals. Each mural that needs to be repainted is 50’ x 6’ in size and Culturas Music and Arts 

intends to clean and reseal them with anti-graffiti sealer.  It is the intention of Culturas Music and 

Arts to have the original artists work on restoring their respective murals, if they are available—

otherwise, other local artists will be sought. The original murals were painted using Nova Color 

Paint, which is the best paint product in the industry to use on outdoor murals. One mural will be 

repainted and it is the “low rider” mural, which will be painted by an artist named Alvarez Ink 

(sample works below) 

Page 361

Item 33.



According to Culturas Music and Arts, the Shady Lane Murals are the oldest Chicano public art 

murals in the State of California.  The Shady Lane Murals are a beloved public art landmark for 

the community because they depict the community’s history and heritage., which might explain 

why it has escaped all the graffiti and tagging it used to get for nearly a decade.   

 

Budget 

Installation Costs – Labor (Artists Stipends) $4,000 

Fabrication Costs – Materials   $1,000 

Fabrication Costs – Paint   $5,000 

Fabrication Costs – Resealing   $3,000 

 

TOTAL $13,000 

 

Rendering for available mural space (by artist Alvarez Ink) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Samples of art works by Artist 

 

       
 

A Segment of the Shady Lane Murals  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 362

Item 33.



ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Not Approve an Art in Public Places Program Proposal to Restore the Shady Lane Murals by 

Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $13,000 

2. Provide Alternative Direction 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the City Council approves the staff recommendation, the $13,000 will be appropriated from 

the Special Revenue Funds (130) – Development Impact Fees for Public Art for Fiscal Year 

2022-23. 

 

 

Page 363

Item 33.



 

STAFF REPORT 

10/12/2022 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Dr. Gabriel Martin, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Twenty-Nine Palms Mission 

Indians in Regards to the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 

Twenty-Nine Palms Bands of Mission Indians and the City of Coachella in regards to the Dillon 

Road Corridor Improvement Project 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Twenty-Nine Palms Band of Mission Indians (“Tribe”) is a federally recognized Indian tribe, 

and is empowered and authorized to contract on its own behalf. The Tribe operate and owns the 

Spotlight 29 Casino located at 46200 Harrison Place, Coachella, CA 92236.  

 

The Tribe are descendants of the Chemehuevi people, a peaceful and nomadic Tribe whose 

territory once covered parts of California, Utah, Arizona, and Southern Nevada.  The Twenty-Nine 

Palms Band settled at the sacred site known as the Oasis of Mara, located near the town of Twenty-

nine Palms, California.  With the European occupation of the West, many Tribal members were 

relocated to the Coachella Valley and Banning Pass areas.  The Twenty-Nine Palms Reservation 

was established by the Executive Order of 1895 in Twenty-nine Palms, CA. The Reservation was 

expanded in 1979 with an additional parcel in Coachella, California. 

  

Today, the Tribe has established business enterprises and governmental operations on its sovereign 

lands, with Spotlight 29 Casino and the Tribal Government Offices near the city of Coachella, and 

Tortoise Rock Casino near the town of Twenty-nine Palms. The Tribe provides employment to 

over 700 people, contributes to the community through charitable contributions, and supports the 

Tribe’s government operations and programs.  The Tribal Administration manages all the tribal 

affairs and general welfare programs for the tribal membership.  The Tribe has obtained several 

federal grants and has demonstrated its capability in managing programs that support its 

infrastructure. 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

This Agreement is being entered into for the purpose of establishing communication and 

Page 364

Item 34.



coordination between the Tribe and Coachella on construction and maintenance work on the 

portion of Dillon Road within the Reservation lands of the Tribe. It is not intended to limit or 

otherwise alter, enhance, or limit the respective jurisdiction of either the Tribe or Coachella. 

 

This Agreement does not authorize exchange of currency, regardless of the source, between the 

two parties. Rather, the Parties will continue discussions, in good faith, and develop further 

commitments regarding their respective contributions and cost and resource sharing on the Dillon 

Road Corridor Improvement Project. The Parties commit to engage in regular government-to-

government meetings to review the planning, construction, and financial investments for the Dillon 

Road Corridor Improvement Project at no less than monthly intervals. During such meetings, the 

Parties commit to providing appropriate decision-making personnel in attendance.   
 

The Parties agree that the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project will include the following 

elements: 

 

(a) Improved traffic signalization, signage, and other traffic control devices. 

(b) Beautification and landscaping of the center medians and along the road frontage. 

(c) Dillon Road Bridge replacement. 

(d) Lane expansion from four to six lanes of traffic. 

(e) Improvements to Dillon Road intersections with CV-Link, crosswalks, and green 

path. 

(f) Dedicated turn-in/turn-out locations, lanes and construction of new entrance to 

Spotlight 29 Casino. 

(g) Improvements to utility infrastructure. 

(h) Beautification and landscaping to Dillon Road interchanges with Interstate 10 and 

Highway 86. 

 

The Parties agree that further discussions on the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project may 

result in further amendment to the items listed above.  
 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. To not approve MOU and provide new direction to Staff 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

No Fiscal Impact 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Agreement with Attachment “A” 

 

Page 365

Item 34.



TWENTY-NINE PALMS BAND OF MISSION INDIANS 

AND 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 

REGARDING THE DILLON ROAD CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

This Memorandum of Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by the Twenty-Nine 

Palms Band of Mission Indians (“Tribe”) and the City of Coachella (“Coachella”) 

(individually “Party”, collectively “Parties”) for the purpose of establishing the Parties’ 

commitment to and responsibilities for certain construction and maintenance activities for 

a section of Dillon Road that traverses on the Reservation lands of the Tribe (“Dillon Road 

Corridor Improvement Project”). 

 

This Agreement shall be effective as to the Tribe and Coachella on the date of adoption of 

the corresponding Resolution authorizing the Agreement by the Tribe and Coachella (the 

“Effective Date”). 

 

2. AUTHORITY 

 

This Agreement is entered into under the authority granted to each party by its respective 

governing body to enter into written agreements. 

 

The City of Coachella is a public agency authorized and empowered to contract for the 

joint exercise of powers under Articles 1 through 4, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 

(commencing with Section 6500) of the Government Code of the State of California. 

 

The Twenty-Nine Palms Band of Mission Indians is a federally recognized Indian tribe, 

and is empowered and authorized to contract on its own behalf. 

 

3. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement is being entered into for the purpose of establishing communication and 

coordination between the Tribe and Coachella on construction and maintenance work on 

the portion of Dillon Road within the Reservation lands of the Tribe. It is not intended to 

limit or otherwise alter, enhance, or limit the respective jurisdiction of either the Tribe or 

Coachella. 

 

This Agreement does not authorize exchange of currency, regardless of the source, between 

the two parties. Rather, the Parties will continue discussions and develop further 

commitments regarding their respective contributions and cost and resource sharing on the 

Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project.  

 

3.1. ELEMENTS OF DILLON ROAD CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  

 

Page 366

Item 34.



Page 2 of 6 

The Parties agree that the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project will include the 

following elements: 

 

(a) Improved traffic signalization, signage, and other traffic control devices. 

(b) Beautification and landscaping of the center medians and along the road frontage. 

(c) Dillon Road Bridge replacement. 

(d) Lane expansion from four to six lanes of traffic. 

(e) Improvements to Dillon Road intersections with CV-Link, crosswalks, and green 

path. 

(f) Dedicated turn-in/turn-out locations, lanes and construction of new entrance to 

Spotlight 29 Casino. 

(g) Improvements to utility infrastructure. 

(h) Beautification and landscaping to Dillon Road interchanges with Interstate 10 and 

Highway 86. 

 

The Parties agree that further discussions on the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement 

Project may result in further amendment to the items listed above.  

 

3.2. GOOD FAITH 

 

This Agreement is mutually beneficial because the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement 

Project will ensure critical improvements to a key corridor that serves the communities of 

the Tribe and Coachella. Therefore, each of the Parties agrees to use good faith efforts to 

cooperatively share resources during the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project to 

enhance the working function of this portion of Dillon Road. This includes communication, 

coordination, and adhering to the established rules and regulations of each Party. 

 

3.3. COMMITMENT TO ENGAGE IN PRODUCTIVE MEETINGS 

 

The Parties commit to engage in regular government-to-government meetings to review 

the planning, construction, and financial investments for the Dillon Road Corridor 

Improvement Project at no less than monthly intervals. During such meetings, the Parties 

commit to providing appropriate decision-making personnel in attendance.   

 

4. SUPERVISION 

 

When personnel and/or equipment are furnished under this Agreement, the Party 

dispatching personnel and/or equipment shall have responsibility for supervising said 

personnel and/or equipment. The presiding policies and procedures of each Party shall 

prevail during their supervision of their respective resources.  Personnel dispatched from 

either Party remains an employee of that Party and is subject to the personnel policies solely 

of that Party. 

 

5. WAIVERS 

 

Each Party (“Indemnitor”) hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold free and harmless 

Page 367

Item 34.



Page 3 of 6 

the other Party (“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all liability, expense, including 

defense costs and legal fees, and claims for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, 

but not limited to, bodily injury, personal injury, death or property damage, arising from 

or connected with the Indemnitor’s activities under this Agreement, including any 

Worker’s Compensation suits, liability, or expense, arising from or connected with services 

performed on behalf of Indemnitor by any person pursuant to this Agreement, whether such 

claims, damages, liabilities, costs and/or judgments are based upon alleged negligence, a 

dangerous condition of public property, or any other theory of liability.  Indemnitor’s duty 

to indemnify Indemnitee shall survive the expiration or other termination of this Agreement 

as to any injuries, occurrences or claims occurring or alleged to have occurred prior to its 

expiration or termination. 

 

6. TERM AND TERMINATION 

 

The Term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and renew 

automatically on each anniversary thereafter.  Any Party hereto may terminate this 

Agreement at any time by giving thirty (30) days’ written notice of the intention to do so 

to the other Party. Such notice shall be sent to the governing body of the other Party. 

 

7. BENEFIT STATUS 

 

The Parties hereto recognize and agree that under this Agreement employee health and 

retirement benefits accrue in the manner prescribed by the employee's regular employment 

and are the responsibility of the regular employer as if the employee were performing the 

employee's regular duties. No additional benefits arise due to participation in assistance 

under this Agreement. 

 

8. ASSIGNMENTS/SUBCONTRACTS 

 

Except as expressly provided herein, the Parties hereto recognize and agree not to assign, 

sell, transfer, and subcontract or sublet rights, or delegate responsibilities under this 

Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written approval of the other Party 

hereto. 

 

9. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 

 

The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of all 

Parties to this Agreement and to their respective successors and assigns. 

 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS 

 

Each Party to this Agreement agrees to comply with federal laws, codes, and regulations 

applicable to the work performed under this Agreement. 

 

11. FORCE MAJEURE 

 

Page 368

Item 34.



Page 4 of 6 

No Party to this Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fires, 

riots, acts of God and/or war, which is beyond the reasonable control of the Parties. 

 

12. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by the Parties or by any 

third person to create the relationship of principal and agent, or partnership or joint venture, 

or any association between the Tribe and Coachella, and none of the provisions contained 

in this Agreement or any act of the Parties shall be deemed to create any relationship other 

than as specified herein, nor shall this Agreement be construed, except as expressly 

provided herein, to authorize either Party to act as the agent for the other. 

 

13. SEVERABILITY 

 

If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court having jurisdiction to be illegal 

or in conflict with any applicable law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions 

shall not be affected; the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and 

enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

14. AMENDMENTS 

 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 

supplemented, or amended in any manner whatsoever without prior written approval of 

the Parties hereto. 

 

15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

United States of America as interpreted by the United States Federal Courts. However, 

the Parties may attempt to resolve any dispute arising under this Agreement by any 

appropriate means of dispute resolution, except binding arbitration. 

 

16. SIGNATURES 

 

Each of the undersigned warrants and represents that he is duly authorized to execute this 

Agreement on behalf of his respective jurisdiction and to bind the staff representing such 

entity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 369

Item 34.



Page 5 of 6 

TWENTY-NINE PALMS BAND OF MISSION INDIANS 

 

 

 

 

By:              

Signature       Date 

 

Name: Darrell Mike       

 

Its: Tribal Chairman       

 

 

 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

 

 

 

By:             

Signature       Date 

 

Name: Steven Hernandez      

 

Its: Mayor          

Page 370

Item 34.



Page 6 of 6 

Attachment “A” - Map of Maintenance Area 
 

 
 

Page 371

Item 34.


	Top
	Item 1.	Resolution No. 2022-88, a Resolution to Continue Fully or Partially Virtual Public Meetings (AB 361)
	Staff Report - Resolution No 2022-88 RE AB 361
	Resolution No 2022-88 AB 361

	Item 2.	Recognizing Santa Fe Restaurant as the 2022 Small Business of the Year Award Recipient
	Santa Fe Restaurant

	Item 5.	2022 Holiday Parade Update
	Agenda - 2022 Holiday Update 10 12 22

	Item 6.	SB 1383 Update
	SB 1383 Update 10 12 22

	Item 7.	Meeting Minutes of September 14, 2022 (City Council)
	2022-09-14 City Council Minutes

	Item 8.	Voucher Listing- EFT's/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2021-22 and 2022-23 Expenditures as of October 12, 2022, $3,765,295.53.
	221012 Warrant Register

	Item 9.	Job Description Update - Customer Service and Management Analyst Series
	Customer Service & Mgmt Analyst Series - Staff Report
	Customer Service & Mgmt Analyst Series - Resolution No. 2022-83
	Management Analyst - Job Description
	Management Analyst -Senior - Job Description
	Customer Service Representative I/II- Job Description
	Customer Service Technician - Job Description

	Item 10.	Resolution 2022-90 LRSP
	Resolution 2022-90 Staff Report LRSP
	RESOLUTION NO 2022-90
	08-5294S21_City of Coachella_UnsignedMA
	5294(019)_UnsignedPSAtoAGENCY

	Item 11.	Authorize award of As Needed Miscellaneous Repair Work for the LLMDs Project No. 081122 to BRC Construction and authorize City Manager to execute maintenance agreement.
	Agenda - LLMD As Needed Misc Repair Contract Award 10 12 22
	Agreement - As Needed Misc LLMD BRC Contract 10 12 22

	Item 12.	Authorize award of As Needed Block Wall and Wrought Iron Fence Repairs for the Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts (LLMDs) to BRC Construction Project 081122B and authorize City Manager to execute corresponding maintenance agreement.
	Agenda - LLMD As Needed Fencing Repair Contract Award 10 12 22
	Agreement - Block Wall and Wrought Iron Fence LLMD BRC Contract 10 12 22

	Item 13.	Authorize award of As Needed Electrical Repairs for the City Facilities and LLMDs Project No. 081622 to Bear Electrical Solutions and Rudys Electric; authorize City Manager to execute both maintenance agreements.
	Agenda - As Needed Electrical Repairs Contract Award 10 12 22
	Agreement - As Needed Electrical Repairs Rudys Electric Contract 10 12 22
	Agreement - As Needed Electrical Repairs Bear Electrical Solutions Contract 10 12 22

	Item 14.	Approval for operation of a beer garden by Culturas Music & Arts on November 12, 2022 at Dateland Park from 11am to 8pm.
	Agenda - Synergy 2022

	Item 15.	Authorize award of professional services agreement to Christmas Kings for Holiday Lighting and Decorations Project No. 082522H.
	Agenda -RFP Holiday Lighting and Decorations Project No. 082522H
	Agreement - The Christmas Kings 10 12 22

	Item 16.	ST-93 KOA Amendment #2
	ST-93 KOA Amendment #2 Staff Report
	2nd Amendment PSE ST-93
	Proposal for Avenue 50 FO and CVWD Line 09-28-22 (002)

	Item 17.	Authorize The City of Coachella’s Tacos, Tequila and Chavelas Festival beer garden operation on October 22, 2022 at Veterans Memorial Park from 4pm to 8pm.
	Agenda - TTC Beer Garden 10 12 22

	Item 18.	Approve a Community Based Grant to the Bianca Rae Foundation in the Amount of $1,000
	CBG Application - Bianca Rae Foundation
	Staff Report - Bianca Rae Foundation

	Item 19.	Approve a Community Based Grant to the Assistance League Coachella Valley in the Amount of $1,000
	CBG Application - Assistance League Coachella Valley
	Staff Report - Assistance League Coachella Valley

	Item 20.	Approve a Community Based Grant to Angel View in the Amount of $1,000.00 to Support its Outreach Program for Children
	Application - Angel View
	Staff Report - Angel View

	Item 21.	Approve a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Youth Sports Association Soccer League in the Amount of $1,000
	Staff Report - Coachella Youth Sports Association
	CBG Application - CYSA

	Item 22.	Authorize a Community Based Grant to Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $1,000 to Support its Art Center
	Staff Report - Culturas Music and Arts
	CBG Application - Culturas Music and Arts

	Item 23.	Award construction agreement to WGJ Enterprises Inc. (dba PCI) for the FY 2023-26 On-Call Striping Contract Project No. 083122.
	Agenda -Award OnCall Striping Contract 10 12 22
	Agreement - Project 083122 WGJ Enterprises(PCI) 10 12 22

	Item 24.	Sponsorship of Raices Culturas for Dia da los Muertos
	Staff Report - Sponsorship of Raices Cultura for Dia de los Muertos Celebration
	Raices 2022 Sponsorship Letter_City of Coachella

	Item 25.	Resolution No. 2022-91 Supporting CVHS
	Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-91 Supporting CVHS
	Resolution No 2022-91 CVHS

	Item 26.	Resolution No. 2022-92 - College of the Desert
	Staff Report - Resolution No 2022-92 College of the Desert
	Resolution No 2022-92 College of the Desert
	Exhibit A To Resolution No 2022-92
	Exhibit B To Resolution No 2022-92

	Item 27.	Provide staff direction for 2022 Hometown Heroes Honorees.
	Agenda - Hometown Heroes Recommendation 2022; 10 12 22

	Item 28.	W-37 Castro's Mobile Home Park Water Consolidation Project Award
	W-37_Construction Award Staff Report
	W-37_Jacobsson Eng Construction Contract
	W-37 Bid Tabulation
	W-37_Atlas PSA
	Castros 05_63_17R_001_3301803_08

	Item 29.	ST-134 2022 Pedestrian and Road Safety Improvement Project
	ST-134 Project Award Staff Report
	ST-134 Pedestrian and Roadway Safety Imps- Contract Template
	ST-134 Bid Tabulation
	1st Amendment PSE ST-134
	ST-134_Atlas PSA

	Item 30.	Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella Art Mural at Acrisure Arena in the Amount of $10,000
	Staff Report - Acrizure Arena Mural
	Acrisure Arena's Desert Nine Mural Project

	Item 31.	Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella 75th Anniversary Mural by Michelle Guerrero in the Amount of $16,000
	Staff Report - Mural by Michelle Guerrero - Anaya Building

	Item 32.	Approve an Art in Public Places Proposal for a City of Coachella 75th Anniversary Mural on the U.S. Postal Service Building by Michelle Guerrero in the Amount of $15,000
	Staff Report - Mural by Michelle Guerrero - USPS Building

	Item 33.	Approve an Art in Public Places Program Proposal to Restore the Shady Lane Murals by Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $13,000
	Staff Report - Shady Lane Murals Restoration

	Item 34.	Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Twenty-Nine Palms Mission Indians in Regards to the Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project
	MOU 29 Palms Mission Indians Dillion Road Improvement Project - Staff Report
	MOA Dillon Road Corridor Improvement Project- 29 Palms Band of Indians

	Bottom

